
 

AGENDA 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 04, 2020 -- 6:00 PM 
 

ROLL CALL: 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Commissioner Scott Maxwell 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Herman Robinson 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. North Grade Elementary School presentation by Nicole Patterson 

B. Proclamation declaring February 11-17, 2020 as 2-1-1 Awareness Week 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. Regular Meeting - January 7, 2020 

B. Regular Meeting - January 21, 2020 

C. Work Session - January 27, 2020 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items) 

A. Work Order #7 with JW Cheatham for the District 3, Year 4 Pushbutton 
Neighborhood Road Program Project 

B. Task Order #12 with Baxter Woodman, Inc. for the Construction Engineering and 
Inspection Services (CEI) for the District 3, Year 4 Neighborhood Road Program 

C. Agreement with Environmental Services, Inc. for Historic Resources Survey Update, 
Phase IV 

D. Resolution No 04-2020 – Amending the fees and charges schedule  

E. Purchase authorization for Quicklime from LHoist North America of Alabama, LLC 
for the Water Treatment Plant 

F. Authorize Amendment 3 to Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan Agreement 
DW501710 for the 2-inch watermain phases 1A and 2 replacement projects 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 



A. Appeal by Daniel Hiatt and Frederick Schmidt of PZB case # 19-00500004: approval 
by the Planning and Zoning Board of a Conditional Use Permit at 1812 Aragon 
Avenue, Unit A 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. US-1 Multimodal Corridor Study 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 

 

 

 

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission 
with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a 
record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that 
a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and 
evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  (F.S. 286.0105) 

  



MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY  

TUESDAY, JANUARY 7, 2020 - 6:00 PM 

 

ROLL CALL:  Present were Mayor Pam Triolo; Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso; and 

Commissioners Scott Maxwell, Omari Hardy and Herman Robinson.  Also present were City 

Manager Michael Bornstein, Assistant City Attorney Pamala Ryan and City Clerk Deborah 

Andrea. 

 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: on behalf of Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  led by Commissioner Herman Robinson. 

 

AGENDA - Additions/Deletions/Reordering: 

There were no changes to the agenda. 

 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

 

A. Dr. Arce-Gonzalez gave a presentation about South Grade Elementary School including 

the history of the school, its unique strengths dual language and VPK on campus and a 

band program.  She said that the areas for improvement were that many students did not 

speak English as their primary language and had a great need for help with their food 

pantry.  She spoke about the many partnerships and grants, the student and teacher 

demographics and goals.  She said that they had great volunteers from churches and 

colleges and the Rotary Club and that Jack the Bike Man came out each month and gave a 

bike to the child who won the Character Counts program that month.  She stated that they 

had increased proficiency grades and parent participation. 

 

B. Captain Todd Baer provided an update on the community policing initiatives, which 

included overdose data, crime prevention liaisons, Operation “Full Court Press” to have a 

presence in the area of 9th Ave South, grant updates, the camera project update, anti-

bullying programs and the Holiday Toy Drive.  He reported that the crime prevention 

liaisons attended the El Bodegon annual Christmas Festival and spoke to approximately 

1,000 residents.  He stated that Operation Full Court Press culminated in 54 arrests, all of 

the tag readers and cameras were fully operational and had assisted in hundreds of arrests.   

He said that the overdose numbers were very similar to last year and although the numbers 

were coming down, they were still high.  He thanked all the sponsors, mostly City 

businesses for the golf tournament, which had generated the most money in years and was 

held at the City’s golf course. 

 

C. Cheryl Raskin, President of South Palm Park Neighborhood Association, gave an update 

of activities in the neighborhood.   She said that the neighborhood was the oldest in the 

City, running from 5th Ave. S. to 18th Ave. S., and had a great park where many activities 

were held every year.  She stated that there were a few bumps in the road this year including 

drug problems, smells from the streets and an increase in crime.  She said that the City had 

stepped up to update the roads and sewers, keep the medians nice and the streetlights 

working.  She thanked staff for the holiday lighting event this holiday. 

 



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, January 7, 2020 

D. Mayor Triolo presented the Parking Award to Ricardo Espana for ethical behavior. 

 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

 

Commissioner Robinson: wished everyone a Happy New Year and said that he looked forward 

to accomplishments that were doable.  He thanked the City employees for making the City 

beautiful over the holidays. 

 

Vice Mayor Amoroso: thanked everyone for coming to the meeting and encouraged everyone 

to attend the meetings.  He reported that he had attended a Palm Beach County League of Cities 

meeting about homelessness, especially in John Prince Park; he discovered that so many 

children were homeless and they were working to fix the issue.  He asked about Mayor Triolo’s 

initiative about reducing the speed limit on Federal Highway. 

 

Commissioner Hardy: announced that there would be a groundbreaking ceremony for the Mid, 

the new housing in District 2.  He said that 68% of the renters in the City were rent-burdened 

and he would continue to advocate for affordable housing. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell extended Happy New Year wishes. He said that he had had a nice 

holiday and reflected on how well things were going.  He stated that 2019 was a great year for 

Lake Worth Beach and 2020 would be even better. 

 

Mayor Triolo:   said Happy New Year and thanked the Arbor Day Committee as the City had 

received a Tree City Award.  She thanked everyone for the ribbon cutting for housing for 

women veterans and everyone involved in the bike giveaway over the holidays.  She stated 

that the TPA would have regular meetings in West Palm Beach where a lot of street work 

would be discussed, and Lake Worth Beach would have a seat at the table.  She announced 

that there was a ribbon cutting for the new Dunkin Donuts, there would be a pre-K 

collaboration meeting and the bus to the beach was back; she thanked Vice Mayor Amoroso 

for helping with the bus. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: 

 

The following people spoke about various issues but did not write anything on their comment 

cards:  Ted Brownstein, Michelle Sylvester, Tammy Panza. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Hardy and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to approve the 

following minutes: 

 

A. Special Meeting - November 7, 2019 

B. Regular Meeting - December 3, 2019 

C. Special Meeting - December 12, 2019 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners 

Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

 



Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, January 7, 2020 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-

Agendaed items) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Hardy and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to approve the 

Consent Agenda. 

 

A. Change Order #2 to B&B Underground Construction for District 1, Year 3 Neighborhood 

Road Program 

 

B. Resolution No. 01-2020 - authorizing the Lake Worth Beach Community Redevelopment 

Agency to issue a non-revolving credit facility in the amount of up to $1,500,000 

 

C. Ratification of appointments to various city advisory boards 

 

D. Utility Easements and Bill of Sale - Adopt-A-Family of the Palm Beaches, Inc. 

 

E. Utility Easement and Bill of Sale - Stateside Partners, LLC 

 

F. Utility Easement and Bill of Sale by- Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc. 

 

G. Work Order No. 4 with Globaltech, Inc. for Design-Build services for Radio System 

Upgrade Phase I 

 

H. Resolution No. 02-2020 - Local Agency Program Agreement 442094-1-58-01 with Florida 

Department of Transportation 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners 

Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

A. Quasi Judicial Ordinance No. 2019-15 - Second Reading - Changing the Zoning of 

Properties Located at 109 North Golfview Road, 121 North Golfview Road and 125 North 

Golfview Road 

 

Assistant City Attorney Ryan read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-15 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

CHANGING THE ZONING OF PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 109 NORTH 

GOLFVIEW ROAD, 121 NORTH GOLFVIEW ROAD, AND 125 NORTH GOLFVIEW 

ROAD AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A AND SHOWN IN 

EXHIBIT B FROM A CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH ZONING OF LOW DENSITY 

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (MF-20) TO CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

ZONING OF DOWNTOWN (DT); AUTHORIZING STAFF TO AMEND THE ZONING 

MAP; PROVIDING THAT CONFLICTING ORDINANCES ARE REPEALED; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Triolo read the title of the case into the record, reading that this was the second 

reading of an ordinance to rezone properties located at 109, 121, and 125 North Golfview 



Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, January 7, 2020 

Road from Low Density Multi-Family Residential (MF-20) to a Downtown (DT) zoning 

designation.  The request was made by property owners John Rinaldi, Thomas Greene and 

Robert Knight.  She stated that this was the second quasi-judicial hearing on the request 

and asked if the Commissioners had had any ex parte communications, personal 

investigations, or campaign contributions to disclose. 

 

Commissioner Robinson said he had no communication since the last hearing.  

 

Vice Mayor Amoroso said he had no communication since the last hearing. 

 

Commissioner Hardy reported that he had a conversation immediately following the last 

meeting with Mr. Rinaldi and Patrick McKenna. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell said he had no communication since the last hearing. 

 

Mayor Triolo said she had no communication since the last hearing. 

 

Mayor Triolo stated that the first reading of the ordinance was held on December 12, 2019, 

at which time the commission took evidence, heard testimony and public comment.  She 

reported that the commission voted 4-1 to pass the ordinance, which was all part of the 

record.  She said that the commission would take additional evidence, testimony and public 

comment at this time, and would vote on whether to adopt the ordinance. 

 

Mayor Triolo told all those giving testimony to stand, raise their right hands, face City 

Clerk Deborah Andrea, and be sworn-in.  City Clerk Andrea swore in all those giving 

testimony and announced that those testifying should state their names and addresses for 

the record and who they represented, if applicable. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked if staff had any new or updated information. 

 

Mark Stivers, Community Sustainability Deputy Director said he had no new information.  

 

Mayor Triolo asked if the applicant had any new or updated information.  There was no 

new information. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked if the affected parties or members of the public wished to make 

comments. 

 

Mayor Triolo read the comment card written by Lynn Anderson who wrote against the 

change. 

 

Mary Watson said that she was worried that the change would require people to move 

within ten years. 

 

Don Rosenshine stated that he and his wife had invested $250,000 to live in a quiet 

neighborhood and the Commissioners approved the change even though there was no plan 

for the property. 

 

Susan Guyaux said that the rezoning would change her quiet neighborhood. 



Pg. 5, Regular Meeting, January 7, 2020 

 

Richard Stowe said that he felt really bad for his friends Susan Guyaux and Don 

Rosenshine. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked if City staff had any questions for the applicant.  There were no 

questions. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked if the applicant had any questions for City staff. 

 

John Rinaldi said that he was not opposed to his neighbor opening a hotel at the end of his 

street; he found out his neighbors’ properties were designated Downtown and his property 

to have the same designation. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked the Commissioners if they had any questions for City staff or the 

applicant. 

 

Commissioner Robinson asked about the sale of the property. 

 

Mr. Rinaldi replied that the problems with the sale of the property were not the zoning, 

rather with the bankers.  He said that City staff had encouraged him to apply for rezoning. 

 

Commissioner Hardy disclosed that he had accepted a campaign contribution from Don 

Rosenshine. 

Commissioner Robinson said that he would not change his vote and would not like to see 

a change at this time.  He stated that he might reconsider when the downtown became a 

growing area. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked if staff or the applicant had any further comments or rebuttal evidence 

to present and they did not. 

 

Mayor Triolo closed the evidentiary portion of the hearing to allow for Commission 

discussion reminding everyone that the Commission already voted 4-1 on first reading to 

pass the ordinance. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked for a motion stating facts supporting the decision. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Hardy and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to approve 

Ordinance No. 2019-15 - changing the zoning of properties located at 109 North Golfview 

Road, 121 North Golfview Road, and 125 North Golfview Road. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked if there would be a new site plan on the property and was told that a plan 

would have to come before the P&Z Board. 

 

Mr. Stivers said that the last property on the north side of the street was the only property not 

currently zoned Downtown. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell 

and Hardy.  NAYS:  Commissioner Robinson. 

 

The meeting recessed at 7:24 PM and reconvened at 7:38 PM. 



Pg. 6, Regular Meeting, January 7, 2020 

B. Appeal by Thomas V. Conboy, P.E., and Cliff Kohlmeyer of HRPB Project number 19-

00100207: approval by the Historic Resources Preservation Board (HRPB) of a Certificate 

of Appropriateness for the Relocation or Demolition of ten structures located at 17 South 

M Street, 23 South M Street, 24 South L Street, 26 South L Street, 30 South L Street, and 

32 South L Street 

 

Mayor Triolo read the title of the case into the record, reading that this was an appeal by 

Thomas V. Conboy and Cliff Kohlmeyer of HRPB project # 19-00100207: approval by the 

Historic Resources Preservation Board of a Certificate of Appropriateness for the 

relocation or demolition of ten structures located at 17 South M Street, 23 South M Street, 

24 South L Street, 26 South L Street, 30 South L Street, and 32 South L Street.  She 

announced that the meeting was a quasi-judicial hearing to hear an appeal pursuant to 

section 23.2-17 of the City’s Code of Ordinances.  She said that the hearing would be a 

little different from the regular quasi-judicial process and asked Pamala Ryan, Assistant 

City Attorney, to explain how the hearing would proceed. 

 

Assistant City Attorney Ryan gave an explanation of the process, pointing out that 

overturning the HRPB’s decision would take a supermajority vote of the Commission.  She 

explained that each side would have ten minutes to give a presentation and then the 

Commissioners would have the opportunity to ask questions of the applicant and of staff.  

She stated that the Commissioners could hear whatever the public had to say but could not 

consider the comments in the appeal; only the information that had been previously 

presented to the HRPB could be considered.  She said that the Commission would 

deliberate and then make a motion to uphold or overturn the denial. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked if the Commissioners had had any ex parte communications, personal 

investigations or campaign contributions to disclose. 

 

Commissioner Robinson stated that he attended the Downtown Jewell neighborhood 

meeting and the applicant attended and there was a discussion. 

 

Vice Mayor Amoroso said that he spoke with the CRA as its liaison and during the break, 

someone spoke with him about the issue. 

 

Commissioner Hardy stated that he spoke with the applicant and the CRA in the months 

before the appeal. 

Commissioner Maxwell had no communications to report. 

 

Mayor Triolo said that she met that afternoon with applicant Thomas M. Conboy. 

 

Mayor Triolo told all those giving testimony to stand, raise their right hands, face City 

Clerk Deborah Andrea, and be sworn-in.  City Clerk Andrea swore in all those giving 

testimony and announced that those testifying should state their names and addresses for 

the record and who they represented, if applicable. 

 

Mayor Triolo told Community Sustainability staff to give their ten-minute presentation. 

William Waters, Community Sustainability Director, showed a map of contributing and 

non-contributing properties and said that there were contributing and non-contributing 

properties in the area that had been torn down.  He spoke about the various properties and 



Pg. 7, Regular Meeting, January 7, 2020 

 

showed the current condition of each.  He explained that the CRA had to advertise a request 

for people to relocate the structures before having them demolished and a demolition 

permit would not be issued until there was a new site plan. 

 

Mayor Triolo stated that there were two affected parties who had appealed the decision of 

the HRPB; each be allowed to make a ten-minute presentation.  She said that all other 

persons would be heard during public comment. 

 

Cliff Kohlmeyer said that his property was across the street from the non-contributing 

building that was not part of the project.  He stated that the HRPB’s approval was in 

violation of applicable law and inconsistent with the City’s redevelopment plan. He 

reported that the properties were boarded up without air conditioning, subject to 

deterioration.  He stated that the CRA sought to demolish the buildings before submitting 

a site plan and the removal of the properties would disrupt the quality and character in his 

neighborhood.  He spoke about various City guidelines and options, which had not been 

considered by the HRPB, and said that the demolition and removal would jeopardize the 

district’s national historic status.  He requested that the Commission grant their appeal and 

require the CRA to resubmit plans before any demolition would be done. 

 

Tom Conboy said that the HRPB had made an arbitrary and capricious decision. He stated 

that they did not follow the guidelines and presented a lengthy list of why he felt the 

decision of the HRPB was wrong.  He said that a site plan was needed before moving 

forward.  He stated that they were appealing the decision and urged the Commission to 

approve the appeal. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell left the meeting at 8:27 PM and returned at 8:29 PM. 

 

David Tolces, attorney at Weiss, Serota, et. al., representing the CRA, disputed Mr. 

Conboy’s account stating that all of the points had been supported and the proof was in the 

record.  He said that the justification statement showed that the HRPB was justified in 

granting the Certificate of Appropriateness as the HRPB determined that the CRA had met 

its burden as well as having support from City staff.  He said that there was no legal 

requirement for the CRA to have a specific plan and that the HRPB’s approval was 

consistent with the Community Redevelopment Plan goals.  He stated that the City had 

been a partner in acquiring properties and working together with the CRA to increase the 

tax base in the area.  He iterated that, with respect to the properties, there was no legal basis 

to overturn the decision, which was neither arbitrary nor capricious. 

 

Mayor Triolo stated that this was the time for public comment. 

 

Janet Serrano spoke in opposition to the appeal. 

 

Barbara Reeve said that the cottages should not be demolished but something harmonious 

should be built if they were. 

 

David Simms spoke in support of the appeal. 

Mayor Triolo read Lynn Anderson’s comment that she was for the appeal. 

 

Mary Watson spoke in favor of the appeal. 



Pg. 8, Regular Meeting, January 7, 2020 

Cathy Berger spoke in support for the appeal. 

 

Sugar Bear asked the Commissioners to approve the appeal.  

 

Jill Karlin spoke in support of the appeal. 

 

Bob Banting recommended denial of the appeal. 

 

Diane Carpentieri spoke in favor of the appeal. 

 

Andrew Gottlieb spoke in favor of the appeal. 

 

Lindy Seto spoke against the appeal. 

 

Betty Resch spoke in support of the appeal. 

 

Suzanne Cabrera, of the Housing Leadership Council, said that there was an opportunity 

to improve the area and had been helping to relocate the properties.  She stated that the 

CRA had a plan for housing and nothing would be demolished until there was a site plan. 

 

David Kislin urged residents to support the CRA as they had been positive for the City. 

 

Alex Schultz said that senior housing, not any more retail space, was needed. 

 

Paul Snitkin spoke in support of the appeal. 

 

Tom Copeland asked the Commission to deny the appeal. 

 

Tammy Panza said that she was neither for nor against the appeal. 

 

Adrian Montiso spoke in favor of the appeal. 

 

Mayor read the comments written by Sibel Kocabasi in favor of the appeal. 

 

Richard Stowe spoke in favor of the appeal. 

Ann Fairfax spoke in favor of the appeal. 

 

Richard Samons spoke in favor of the appeal. 

 

Joe Egly stated that residents had the same complaints when the previous commission 

approved townhouses along Federal Highway and it was a good time to start with the area 

in question. 

 

Mayor Triolo told the Commissioners that it was the time to ask questions of staff, the 

applicant or the affected parties. 

 

Questions/comments: 

 



Pg. 9, Regular Meeting, January 7, 2020 

 

Commissioner Maxwell asked for clarification of what to consider, whether the laws had 

been adhered to and if the decision was arbitrary and capricious.  He said that he would 

need to determine the accuracy of the testimony from the various parties and inquired if he 

should refer to Assistant City Attorney Ryan. 

 

Assistant City Attorney Ryan replied that the determination was if the decision was 

contrary to law or was arbitrary and capricious.  She suggested that he question any of the 

parties about their presentations if he had questions or consider the information in the 

backup. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked if the Commission was to talk about the cottages or the CRA’s process.  

She stated that the decision was not about what would be downtown or developing the 

property. 

 

Assistant City Attorney Ryan answered that the focus should be on the HRPB’s decision, 

the comments of the public could not be taken into consideration.  She stated that the HRPB 

heard the evidence, listened to the CRA, the public and the affected parties, went through 

the application and approved it.  She said that it should be determined whether the HRPB 

had followed the City’s ordinances in making their decision. 

 

Commissioner Hardy asked about the size of the property and how many dwelling units 

there were. 

 

Mr. Waters replied that it was 1.6 acres including the parking lot, with about 20 dwelling 

units. 

 

Commissioner Hardy said that he had to consider if the HRPB made its decision arbitrarily 

or capriciously.  He stated that this was a legal matter and he did not believe the HRPB 

acted arbitrarily or capriciously and that it had followed the laws set forth. 

 

Commissioner Robinson said that the HRPB acted in the best interest of the City within 

the law and not arbitrarily or capriciously.  He said that the CRA should meet with 

residents. 

Mayor Triolo expressed her love for the cottages.  She said that there would be need for 

further discussion and did not believe the HRPB’s decision was arbitrary nor capricious 

and they were within the law.  She stated that there was no rapid development in the City 

and requested that the property not be tied up in lawsuits.  

 

Mayor Triolo asked the Commissioner to discuss the appeal amongst themselves. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked for a motion, stating that under section 23.2-17 of the code, the 

Commission shall approve, approve with modifications or disapprove the application.  She 

said that the considerations substantiating the decision should be outlined in the motion. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Robinson and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to deny the 

appeal based on the fact that the Historic Resources Preservation Board did not act capriciously 

or arbitrarily and was within the law for Project Number 19-00100207. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners 



Pg. 10, Regular Meeting, January 7, 2020 

Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson.  NAYS:  none. 

 

The meeting recessed at 9:47 PM and reconvened at 10:01 PM. 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to extend the 

meeting for one hour. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell 

and Robinson.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Commissioner Hardy. 

 

Commissioner Hardy returned at 10:03 PM. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

 

A. Snook Island follow up per Vice Mayor Amoroso 

 

Vice Mayor Amoroso said that this item had been tabled last October and needed to come 

back.  He said that he had asked the County about overnight boat parking and they 

responded that it was not allowed.  He opined that the item should come back in a work 

session and stated that there was no maintenance attached and a funding mechanism should 

be in place.  

 

Commissioner Robinson said that the City had an underperforming asset.  He asked if the 

City could manage the docks and directed staff to see if the policy could be changed. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell said that he did not support this as the City had too much on its 

plate currently. 

 

Commissioner Hardy said that the City had a lot on its plate but should be able to do 

multiple things.  He stated that people should be charged to use the docks and the money 

received would be used for maintenance of the docks, if it were a revenue opportunity, the 

City should negotiate with FIND. 

 

Vice Mayor Amoroso said that the backup contained emails between staff and FIND 

regarding the docks.  He stated that the item needed to come back as a work session to 

provide direction. 

 

Commissioner Robinson said that there could be a new policy with management to 

emphasize the City’s waterfront. 

 

Vice Mayor Amoroso said that staff had contacted FIND and expressed agreement that 

there should be a way to police the boats that currently docked there.  He reiterated that 

overnight docking was not allowed and a plan would be needed. 

 

Mayor Triolo requested a workshop with a representative from FIND in attendance. 

City Manager Bornstein said that there were two issues, the use of the docks with FIND’s 

conditions and the management of the docks.  He stated that staff was stretched to do 

everything necessary currently and could not manage the docks.  He said if the City would 

move forward with a business plan, it would be necessary to know the cost of the operation 



Pg. 11, Regular Meeting, January 7, 2020 

 

and to get FIND to agree with the plan, and it might not be possible to find the money to 

do this. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked what the regulations were to moor a boat in the intracoastal waterway.  

She said that it could be a start to allow dinghies to go out to the boats moored there. 

 

City Manager Bornstein replied that the intracoastal was a public right of way and anyone 

could moor there with no regulations.  He recommended against having dinghies because 

the City did not have an operational mooring field.  

 

Commissioner Hardy asked where the prohibition against overnight parking was in the 

agreement; if it was not in the agreement why was it being followed and if it were an 

ordinance, the Commission could change it. 

 

Juan Ruiz, Assistant City Manager, responded that the prohibition was in a City ordinance 

that docking could only be from sunrise to sunset because of security issues.  He said that 

the intent was for a transient operation accessible to all County residents.  He had asked if 

the City could charge for overnight boat docking and was told that it was not allowed. 

 

Commissioner Hardy stated that the issue about charging should be pursued. 

Vice Mayor Amoroso asked if there were boats illegally docked and if the City had a 

mechanism to fine them. 

 

Assistant City Manager Ruiz answered that the boats were red tagged but there was a very 

slow process with no ability to tow them, which would require a court appearance and 

attorney fees.  He stated that the existing facility, which did not have electricity, security 

nor a pump out, could not accommodate the boaters traveling the Intracoastal. 

Commissioner Hardy said that when luminaries of the community make a request to the 

City, it should be done.  He opined that the City was against this from the beginning and 

said that FIND should be contacted. 

 

Commissioner Robinson requested a work session, which was agreed to by Mayor Triolo 

and Vice Mayor Amoroso. 

 

Assistant City Manager Ruiz asked for direction for the context of the work session. 

 

Mayor Triolo said that the item had been discussed for 30 minutes and would go to a work 

session. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

A. Ordinance No. 2020-01 - amending Chapter 2, Article XIX "Chronic Nuisance Property 

Code", Division 1 "Chronic nuisance services," by repealing ordinance 2017-12, replacing 

it with a  new ordinance to insert provisions unintentionally removed from Ordinance 2017-

12 and providing for additional nuisance activities and setting the second reading and 

public hearing for January 21, 2020 

 

Assistant City Attorney Ryan read the ordinance by title only. 

 



Pg. 12, Regular Meeting, January 7, 2020 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

REPEALING ORDINANCE 2017-12 WHICH AMENDED DIVISION 1 “CHRONIC 

NUISANCE SERVICES” OF CHAPTER 2 “ADMINISTRATION”, ARTICLE XIX 

“CHRONIC NUISANCE PROPERTY CODE”, TO PROVIDE FOR ADDITIONAL 

VIOLATIONS RELATING TO OVERDOSING AND CODE ENFORCEMENT, 

POSTING NOTICES, ENTERING INTO AGREEMENTS WITH PROPERTY 

OWNERS, AND ADDITIONAL PENALTIES AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW 

ORDINANCE TO INSERT PROVISIONS UNINTENTIONALLY REMOVED FROM 

ORDINANCE 2017-12 AND PROVIDING FOR ADDITIONAL  NUISANCE 

ACTIVITY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, THE REPEAL OF LAWS IN 

CONFLICT, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Maxwell and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to approve 

Ordinance 2020-01 on first reading and set the second reading and public hearing for January 

21, 2020. 

 

Comments/requests summary: 

 

Commissioner Hardy said that there had been litigation regarding chronic nuisance 

ordinances regarding people’s rights.  He stated that unscrupulous owners should be 

punished for not keeping up their properties, but tenants were not retaliated against for the 

property owners being cited. 

 

Assistant City Attorney Ryan explained that the ordinance was already on the books.  She 

stated that there had been a business with an overdosing problem, but after receiving a 

letter from the City, the owner installed security and ended the problem.  She said that she 

would investigate if there were any litigation in Florida about chronic nuisance before the 

second hearing. 

 

Mayor Triolo announced that this was the time for public comment.  No one from the 

public commented. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners 

Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:  

 

Assistant City Attorney Ryan did not provide a report. 

 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

 

City Manager Bornstein did not provide a report. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Action:  Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Hardy to adjourn the 

meeting at 10:36 PM. 

 



Pg. 13, Regular Meeting, January 7, 2020 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners 

Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Pam Triolo, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: February 4, 2020 

 

A digital audio recording of this meeting will be available in the Office of the City Clerk. 

 



MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING  

TUESDAY, JANUARY 21, 2020 - 6:00 PM 

 

ROLL CALL:  Present were Mayor Pam Triolo; Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso; and 

Commissioners Scott Maxwell, Omari Hardy and Herman Robinson.  Also present were City 

Manager Michael Bornstein, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and City Clerk Deborah M. 

Andrea. 

 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: on behalf of Commissioner Herman 

Robinson. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  led by Commissioner Scott Maxwell. 

 

AGENDA - Additions/Deletions/Reordering: 
 

Presentation items B and C, proclamations to commemorate the retirements of Scott Sanders 

and Henry Rhiney, were added to the agenda and New Business B, Second Amendment to the 

Incentive Agreement with The Mid, was added and then deleted from the meeting, to be heard 

at a future meeting. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Maxwell and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve 

the agenda as amended. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell 

and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. (Commissioner Hardy was absent for the vote) 

 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

 

A. Mary Lindsey gave a presentation about the incredible library, completed in 1941 that the 

citizens of Lake Worth built with their own money and no taxpayer funds.  She spoke about 

the new hours of operation due to the recent staff cuts, the artwork, which would be curated, 

a leasing program to obtain books, the Spanish family library selection and various 

programs that the library had, including BiblioArte, for the children of the City.  She 

reported that many patrons used the library each month. 

 

B. (added) Mayor Triolo read the proclamation to commemorate the retirement of Scott 

Sanders.  Jamie Brown, Public Works Director, presented a service award in honor of his 

24 years with the City. 

 

C. (added) Mayor Triolo read the proclamation to commemorate the retirement of Henry 

Rhiney.  Jamie Brown presented him with a service award for his 29 years of service to the 

City. 

 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 
 

Vice Mayor Amoroso:  stated that Martin Luther King (MLK), Jr. festivities were fabulous 

and many people attended the parade and speeches.  He said that he would be attending the 

Palm Beach League of Cities luncheon and the Sober Home Task Force.  He announced that 

the Street Painting Festival and Gay Pride Week were coming up. 

 



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, January 21, 2020 

 

Commissioner: Robinson: said that he enjoyed the three MLK celebrations, the presentations 

for the two retiring employees and hearing about the children using library, who were the 

future.  He came close to hitting a bicyclist and cautioned everyone to pay attention on our 

roads. 

 

Commissioner Hardy: stated that he attended the ground breaking for the Mid, which would 

be the first luxury apartment complex in the City.  He said that the MLK celebration was a 

wonderful event and there were many great volunteers.  He reported attending Palm Beach 

County Days in Tallahassee where he spoke with legislators about appropriations for the City 

and was hopeful that the City would get funding. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell:  wished everyone a Happy New Year and said that the City would 

have a dynamic 2020 as there were many things going on.  He stated that the MLK events were 

wonderful and Retha Lowe did a great job.  He expressed admiration for Mary Lindsey’s 

library presentation. 

 

Mayor Triolo:  reported that she attended the MLK events and thanked Retha Lowe, Paul and 

Carla Blockson and Ted Brownstein.  She stated that The Mid ground breaking was incredible 

and it was great to see it coming together.  She said that it was good to work with the schools 

in Palm Beach County to encourage our kids and attended a presentation about VPK with Erica 

Whitfield.  She announced that the beach now had its own PalmTran route 62, the “Beach 

Bus”.  She said that she attended the Color of Hope bike ride for Haiti, the Mayor’s parade at 

the County Fair where they rode around the fair and awarded scholarships and the Census 

Community meeting; an accurate count was important and she thanked staff and everyone who 

had stepped up.  She announced that the TPA was opening an office in West Palm Beach.  She 

said that there would be several community crime walks each year, the first one held on 

Saturday at 3:00 PM; PBSO would be there and she invited everyone to attend. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: 

 

Todd Townsend spoke against a public private partnership, because someone else could set the 

hours of operation and such for the pool.  He stated that the CRA would ruin the downtown 

with the parking garage. 

 

Philip Scott Rice said that he served on many organizations involved with mitigating the opioid 

crisis and had learned that Lake Worth Beach was overlooked for resources in addressing the 

crisis.  He offered his services to help with the issue. 

 

Sandra Ekberg said that the Gulfstream condominium did not have enough parking spaces for 

the residents and requested that the City address the parking issue. 

 

Richard Disiedue suggested two solutions to the parking situation at the Gulfstream 

condominium, open the row of parking spaces that faced the park to all night parking and 

have “resident only” parking spaces when the Gulfstream Hotel reopened. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
There were no minutes on the agenda. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-

Agendaed items) 



Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, January 21, 2020 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Hardy and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to approve the 

Consent Agenda. 

 

A. Approve Task Order # 8 with Wantman Group, Inc. for professional services for parking 

study phase two. 

 

B. Work Order No. 5 with Globaltech, Inc. for design-build services for miscellaneous 

improvements at the master lift station 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell, 

Hardy and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

A. Ordinance No. 2020-01 – second reading - amending Chapter 2, Article XIX "Chronic 

Nuisance Property Code", Division 1 "Chronic nuisance services," by repealing ordinance 

2017-12, replacing it with a  new ordinance to insert provisions unintentionally removed 

from Ordinance 2017-12 and providing for additional nuisance activities 

 

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

REPEALING ORDINANCE 2017-12 WHICH AMENDED DIVISION 1 “CHRONIC 

NUISANCE SERVICES” OF CHAPTER 2 “ADMINISTRATION”, ARTICLE XIX 

“CHRONIC NUISANCE PROPERTY CODE”, TO PROVIDE FOR ADDITIONAL 

VIOLATIONS RELATING TO OVERDOSING AND CODE ENFORCEMENT, 

POSTING NOTICES, ENTERING INTO AGREEMENTS WITH PROPERTY 

OWNERS, AND ADDITIONAL PENALTIES AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW 

ORDINANCE TO INSERT PROVISIONS UNINTENTIONALLY REMOVED FROM 

ORDINANCE 2017-12 AND PROVIDING FOR ADDITIONAL  NUISANCE 

ACTIVITY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, THE REPEAL OF LAWS IN 

CONFLICT, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Action:  Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to approve 

Ordinance 2020-01 to repeal and replace Ordinance 2017-12. 

 

Comments/requests summary: 

 

1. Commissioner Robinson asked why it would take three years to hold property owners 

responsible. 

 

City Attorney Goddeau explained that a property owner could be cited after the second 

repeat offense.  She stated that the intent was to have a code process and the ordinance 

gave the City another tool to make those property owners who became chronic 

nuisances to make with an action plan and come into voluntary compliance. 

 

2. Commissioner Hardy raised the issue of differentiating between victims of crimes like 

domestic violence not having to worry about being cited for chronic nuisance.  He 

stated that property owners should not be held responsible when they were victims of 

a crime. 

 



Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, January 21, 2020 

 

City Attorney Goddeau said that there as an exception in the ordinance so that a victim 

of a crime would not be subject to chronic nuisance. 

 

Commissioner Hardy said that due to Good Samaritan laws, if there were calls for 

service related to overdoses, care should be taken that the calls for service would not 

be labeled chronic nuisance, not for domestic violence and/or for overdose calls. 

 

3. Commissioner Maxwell asked about second repeat offenses. 

 

City Attorney Goddeau explained that the decision was made to bring the offenses 

forward as a chronic nuisance after the second repeat of the offense. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell asked what would preclude an owner from saying “it was not 

theirs” regarding the dumpster violations. 

 

4. Vice Mayor Amoroso said that the police officers were very well trained in domestic 

violence calls.  He reported that he received many calls about illegal dumping and the 

property owners were told that it was their problem if it was on their property.  He 

expressed hope that the dumping would be caught with all the cameras in the city. 

 

5. Commissioner Robinson asked would be done if there were a dumping into a dumpster 

the day after it had been collected. 

 

Mayor Triolo announced that this was the time for public comment.  No one from the 

public commented. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners 

Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Resolution No. 03-2020 - adopting the Lake Worth Beach Opportunity Zone Master Plan 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 03-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

ADOPTING THE LAKE WORTH BEACH OPPORTUNITY ZONE MASTER PLAN; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Maxwell and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to approve 

Resolution No. 03-2020 adopting the Lake Worth Beach Opportunity Zone Master Plan. 

 

William Waters, Community Sustainability Director, said that WGI had done a master plan 

study for the City’s opportunity zone area last spring and that there were meetings with the 

neighborhoods involved last summer.  He spoke about the potential benefits such as jobs, 

housing, improved roads and new businesses and stated that residents favored having a 

laundromat, healthcare facility or grocery store.  He described the five nodes in the zone 

and showed examples of each: Mixed use/Residential, Transit Oriented Development, 

Neighborhood Core, Artisanal/Makers District and Health and Tech Incubator, which 

followed the requirements of the City’s zoning districts and the future land use plan.  He 



Pg. 5, Regular Meeting, January 21, 2020 

 

said that Community Sustainability would work on the missing middle types of housing 

that were lacking in the City such as townhomes, apartment and condos.  He stated that the 

final plan document would be available on the website and have pamphlets for developers; 

the Business Development Board and Palm Beach County had requested links to the 

document.  He reported that legislation was pending to extend the benefit window for 

opportunity zones, which ended at the end of 2019. 

 

Mayor Triolo announced that this was the time for public comment.  No one from the 

public commented. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners 

Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

 

B. (added then deleted) Second Amendment to the Incentive Agreement with The Mid. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:  

 

City Attorney Goddeau provided the following report: 

 

 Stated that she was working on the Second Amendment for The Mid, which could be 

presented at a special meeting the following Monday or Tuesday. 

 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

 

City Manager Bornstein provided the following report: 

 

 Announced that the pier would be closed until Friday due to inclement weather and ocean 

swells. 

 Said that the Casino Ballroom won the Wedding Wire Couples Choice Award for wedding 

venue for the fourth year in a row. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Maxwell and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to adjourn 

the meeting at 7:24 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners 

Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

___________________________ 

Pam Triolo, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: February 4, 2020 

 

A digital audio recording of this meeting will be available in the Office of the City Clerk.  

 



MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION - PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS 

MONDAY, JANUARY 27, 2020 – 6:00 PM 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Pam Triolo on the above date at 6:00 PM in the 

City Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL:  Present were; Mayor Pam Triolo; Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso; and 

Commissioners Scott Maxwell, Omari Hardy and Herman Robinson.  Also present were City 

Manager Michael Bornstein, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and Deputy City Clerk Melissa 

Ann Coyne. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  led by Commissioner Omari Hardy. 

 

UPDATES/FUTURE ACTION/DIRECTION: 

 

Public Private Partnerships 

City Manager Bornstein stated that Public Private Partnerships (P3s) had been discussed in 

various jurisdictions across the country the past and by the City Commissioners more 

frequently.  He stated that the purpose of the work session would be to get information about 

P3s and allow the Commissioners to ask questions of the experts and staff. 

 

Jim Gilmore, Partner at Gilmore Hagan Partners (GHP), stated that GHP was a diversified 

economic development and government relations firm that specialized in public/private 

partnerships, incentive negotiation, strategic planning and public outreach and strategic 

communications; GHP had invented many options that were in place throughout the state.  He 

explained that a P3 was a close business transaction involving trust between the parties and 

could produce a “win-win” for both by achieving investment and return objectives with 

additional benefits including job creation and other intangible benefits resulting from the 

capital investment.  He said that the Public Sector/Private Sector would take the lead to identify 

objectives such as infrastructure, redevelopment programs, public parking with revenues and 

municipal facilities.  He spoke about the importance of having a communications strategy, 

contacting the correct developers and having the proper tools for project market analytics.  He 

stated the significance of being protected in case of “what if” scenarios and considering the 

risk factors related to financing a project.  He said that the City would have to determine the 

vision for the Beach Casino Property and different options for the type of P3 involved.  He 

spoke about the next steps for the casino property including market data collection, private 

market opportunities, identifying potential private partners and developing public outreach 

programs, and next steps for parking including a parking study, analysis of parking demand 

and potential locations. 

 

Comments/requests summary: 

 

1. Commissioner Robinson stated that there were two potential opportunities for P3s with the 

casino property and parking; the City would have to decide what was wanted.  He asked 



Pg. 2, Work Session, 1/27/20  

what GHP would assist with and if they had done P3s with big projects comparable to the 

beach property.  He inquired if GHP would help with the County’s involvement.  He said 

that six million dollars had been set aside for the waterfront improvement, not just a pool. 

Mr. Gilmore replied that the GHP and WGI would research people in the area and provide 

a list of people with redevelopment expertise, attorneys with a deep background in 

transactional work and work on an outreach strategy within the community.  He said that 

he had worked with Jacksonville Beach, which was comparable.  He stated that the County 

should be contacted to determine their involvement.  He said that there was great interest 

in the City’s beachfront and it would be important to identify who might be interested and 

what the market might be to partner with the City. 

 

2. Mayor Triolo said that she spoke with many cities, both small and large, that had projects 

involving P3s.  She asked what the difference would be for the City to put out an RFP or 

RFQ and having a P3. 

 

Mr. Gilmore responded that just putting out an RFP or RFQ was a fishing expedition; due 

diligence would produce specific developers who would be interested in partnering with 

the City. 

 

3. Commissioner Hardy said that it would be critical to understand that a win-win would have 

to be positive for both parties; residents often made suggestions for options that a partner 

would not be interested in.  He said that there was a standoff between the services residents 

wanted and the changes that would be necessary to provide funding for the services, which 

the residents opposed.  He asked how it would be possible to get some options back on the 

table. 

 

4. Mayor Triolo stated that there were opportunities throughout the City and the P3 could be 

looked at for many different properties. 

 

5. Commissioner Robinson expressed hope that the beach property would attract hospitality 

groups.  He asked if there could be a P3 for the pool and a separate one for a restaurant. 

 

6. Vice Mayor Amoroso stated that the downtown parking was of interest to change the 

culture. 

 

7. Commissioner Maxwell said that he was comfortable with the P3 concept and asked the 

Mayor to allow public comment or ask questions.  No one from the public commented. 

 

8. Commissioner Robinson stated that he was interested in downtown parking, which was 

more of a CRA issue and could be dealt with in steps, but a partner was essential for the 

beach. 

 

9. Mayor Triolo said that it was important for the community to be engaged and there would 

be more input with a P3 process. 

 

City Manager Bornstein stated that the City would have to determine what to do at the 

beach and what the market would bear.  He asked what level of detail would be necessary 

to move the project forward and get developers interested. 

 



Pg. 3, Work Session, 2/28/19 

 

Mr. Gilmore replied that there should be simultaneous conversations with staff, the 

commission and the community about what was wanted at the beachfront and what the 

market said could be done, and with the real estate development community about what 

they would want to do there.  He recommended not putting out anything formal; he would 

help identify what was being done in the surrounding markets and which developers might 

be interested. 

 

10.  Mayor Triolo stated that the casino property issue had been contentious for decades and it 

had been almost impossible to find a solution that would suit everyone, but the community 

was agreeing with the types of things they wanted there. 

 

11. Commissioner Hardy said that there should be a process to define what would be non-

negotiable at the beach property.  He stated that he would be open to P3s anywhere in the 

City. 

 

City Manager Bornstein asked Mr. Gilmore how extending the leases at the beach to 30 

years would benefit P3s. 

 

Mr. Gilmore replied that a 30-year term was very important and would be sufficient for a 

private partner to obtain financing for a project and was the standard throughout the state. 

 

12. Commissioner Robinson said that he was looking forward to finding a partner who would 

be able to leverage the six million dollars committed to the property.  He asked what the 

next step would be. 

 

City Manager Bornstein iterated the three ballot issues, which were the 30-years leases, the 

Steinhardt property and the Gulfstream Hotel. 

 

13. Commissioner Maxwell said that the 30-year leases only pertained to property east of A1A 

and that it would be difficult to get developers interested in projects in other parts of the 

City. 

 

14. Commissioner Hardy said that it would be necessary to have discussions with the residents 

about what must happen and what the consequences would be if no changes were made. 

 

15. Mayor Triolo said that after showing the residents that the City was a good steward of their 

money, they might gain confidence and buy into the projects. 

 

16. Vice Mayor Amoroso said that after the March election there should be a conversation 

about putting the 30-year leases for the rest of the City on the November ballot. 

 

City Manager Bornstein asked for clarity regarding next steps. 

 

Mr. Gilmore recommended against having an RFQ until after the March election.  He stated 

that in the time before the election, GHP would gather the market data and talk to the 

development community to determine who might be interested in a partnership with the 

City. 

 

17. Commissioner Hardy said that the City should wait until after the March election to 

proceed. 



Pg. 4, Work Session, 1/27/20  

18. Commissioner Maxwell stated that the City would need to have all the components of the 

transaction considerations in place before going ahead.  He agreed that the City should wait 

until after the election before taking action. 

 

19. Mayor Triolo said that it would be important to move ahead with the beach property but 

not to muddy the waters before the election.  She spoke in favor of having a P3 no matter 

the outcome of the election. 

 

City Manager Bornstein said that he would speak with GHP about gathering market data 

to be ready once the ballot question was decided.  GHP had fulfilled the contractual 

obligations regarding P3s and discussion regarding further work would be forthcoming. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

The meeting adjourned at 7:23 PM. 

 

_________________________ 

Pam Triolo, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk 

 

Minutes approved: February 4, 2020. 

 

A digital audio recording of this meeting will be available in the Office of the City Clerk.  



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
AGENDA DATE: February 4, 2020  DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 

 
 

TITLE: 

Work Order #7 with JW Cheatham for the District 3, Year 4 Pushbutton Neighborhood Road 
Program Project 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Work Order authorizes JW Cheatham to construct the associated improvements as part of 
the District 3, Year 4 Pushbutton project at a cost not to exceed $3,799,731.30. 

 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Neighborhood Road Program is entering the fourth and final year of construction.  The 
engineering design work for the District 3, Year 4 Pushbutton project is completed and the 
lowest, most responsive and responsible bid is with JW Cheatham, Inc.  The City currently has 
5 construction contractors under an annual Pushbutton contract specifically to build the 
Neighborhood Road Program projects.  JW Cheatham has successfully completed multiple 
projects throughout the City and is being recommended for award for this District 3 project at a 
cost not to exceed $3,799,731.30.  The project will be completed within 180 calendar days of 
the Notice to Proceed. 

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Work Order #7 with JW Cheatham, Inc. at a cost not to exceed 
$3,799,731.30. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 

Work Order #7 – JW Cheatham, Inc. (D3,Y4) 
 

  



 

 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 
 
Capital Expenditures 3,799,731.30 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 3,799,731.30 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
C.      Public Services       

 

Account Number Account Description 

FY2020 

Budget 

Project 

# 

Pre Exp; 

Balance 

Expenditure 

for this item 

Post Exp; 

Balance 

308-5020-519-63-15 

Improve other than 

build  NR2003 0.00 3,799,731.30  

D. Department Fiscal Review:_________ 









DISTRICT 3 YEAR 4 ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

Project JW CHEATHAM

No. FDOT No. ITEM DESCRIPTION EST QTY UNIT Quantity UNIT PRICE

GENERAL ITEMS

1 102-60 WORK ZONE SIGN 50 ED 0.50$                                   -$                                     

2 102-61 BUSINESS SIGN 10 EA 100.00$                               -$                                     

3 PROJECT SIGN (PER DETAIL) 8 EA 500.00$                               -$                                     

4 102-76 ARROW BOARD 2 ED 13.00$                                 -$                                     

5 102-99-A PORTABLE MESSAGE SIGN 2 ED 21.00$                                 -$                                     

6 102-150-1 PORTABLE REGULATORY SIGN 2 ED 13.00$                                 -$                                     

7 MOT – CERTIFIED FLAGMAN (2 flagman) 1 ED 530.00$                               -$                                     

8 102-74-1 BARRICADE, TYPE 1, II, DI, VP, DRUM 50 ED 0.25$                                   -$                                     

9 HI-VISIBILITY CONES 50 ED 0.25$                                   -$                                     

10 104-18 INLET PROTECTION 50 EA 63 160.00$                               10,080.00$                          

11 110-2-A SELECTIVE CLEARING AND GRUBBING 1 AC 0.2 1,500.00$                            300.00$                               

SUBTOTAL 10,380.00$                          

ROADWAY

12 327-70-AA MILLING EXISTING ASPHALT PAVEMENT (1.5" AVG DEPTH) AND HAULOFF 500-1,000 SY 0 7.50$                                   -$                                     

12.1 327-70-AA MILLING EXISTING ASPHALT PAVEMENT (1.5" AVG DEPTH) AND HAULOFF Over 1,000 SY 24162 4.20$                                   101,480.40$                        

13 210-1-AA REWORKING LIMEROCK BASE 500-1,000 SY 0 8.00$                                   -$                                     

13.1 210-1-AA REWORKING LIMEROCK BASE Over 1,000 SY 16865 6.00$                                   101,190.00$                        

14 REMOVE/HAULOFF EX. PAVEMENT AND BASE (UP TO 10” DEEP) 500-1,000 SY 0 5.50$                                   -$                                     

14.1 REMOVE/HAULOFF EX. PAVEMENT AND BASE (UP TO 10” DEEP) Over 1,000 SY 9270 5.50$                                   50,985.00$                          

15 12" STABILIZED SUBGRADE 500-1,000 SY 0 10.00$                                 -$                                     

15.1 12" STABILIZED SUBGRADE Over 1,000 SY 13632 10.00$                                 136,320.00$                        

16 8” BASEROCK (LIMEROCK OR CR. CONC.) (PRIMED) 500-1,000 SY 0 18.00$                                 -$                                     

16.1 8” BASEROCK (LIMEROCK OR CR. CONC.) (PRIMED) Over 1,000 SY 9384 16.00$                                 150,144.00$                        

17 12” BASEROCK (LIMEROCK OR CR. CONC.) (PRIMED) 500 SY 0 23.00$                                 -$                                     

18 334-1-13 SUPERPAVE ASPHALTIC CONCRETE, TRAFFIC C SP9.5 50-100 TN 0 133.00$                               -$                                     

18.1 334-1-13 SUPERPAVE ASPHALTIC CONCRETE, TRAFFIC C SP9.5 Over 100 TN 2,839 118.00$                               335,016.00$                        

19 337-7-33 ASPHALT CONCRETE FRICTION COURSE, TRAFFIC C, FC 12.5 50-100 TN 0 154.00$                               -$                                     

19.1 337-7-33 ASPHALT CONCRETE FRICTION COURSE, TRAFFIC C, FC 12.5 Over 100 TN 0 129.00$                               -$                                     

20 523-A-B PATTERNED PAVEMENT, CROSSWALKS OR INTERSECTIONS 500 SY 134 115.00$                               15,410.00$                          

21 COLD IN-PLACE RECYCLING (CIR) 4”-8” DEPTH Over 1,000 SY 0 12.40$                                 -$                                     

22 ASPHALT EMULSION (FOR CIR) 1 GAL 0 2.85$                                   -$                                     

23 PORTLAND CEMENT (FOR CIR) 1 TN 0 182.00$                               -$                                     

24 ADDED RAP OR AGGREGATE (FOR CIR) 1 TN 0 20.00$                                 -$                                     

25 ASPHALT SPEED HUMP COMPLETE W/ THERMO STRIPING (PER DETAIL) 25 EA 4 6,600.00$                            26,400.00$                          

26 339-1 MISC. ASPHALT PAVEMENT Over 100 TN 0 200.00$                               -$                                     

27 305-1 BITUMINOUS CRACK AND JOINT SEALING Over 1,000 LF 0 3.00$                                   -$                                     

28 CLEAN FILL DIRT F&I 50-100 CY 0 20.00$                                 -$                                     

29 SWALE CONSTRUCTION INCL. BAHIA SODDING 500 SY 0 60.00$                                 -$                                     

30 ASPHALT MILLINGS F&I 100 TN 0 30.00$                                 -$                                     

31 PBC TRAFFIC SIGNAL LOOP RESTORATION 5 EA 0 1,400.00$                            -$                                     

SUBTOTAL 916,945.40$                        

CONCRETE

32 REMOVE EX. CONCRETE CURBING (ALL TYPES) Over 1,000 LF 13862 15.00$                                 207,930.00$                        

33 REMOVE EX. CONCRETE SIDEWALK / DRIVEWAY (4"-6") Over 1,000 SY 5719 20.00$                                 114,380.00$                        

34 522-1 CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAYS, 4" THICK (SELECTIVE REPLACEMENT) Over 1,000 SY 4729 40.00$                                 189,160.00$                        

35 522-2 CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAYS, 6" THICK (SELECTIVE REPLACEMENT) 500-1,000 SY 2926 60.00$                                 175,560.00$                        

36 MONOLITHIC CURB AND SIDEWALK (SELECTIVE REPLACEMENT) Over 1,000 SF 4107 7.00$                                   28,749.00$                          

37 520-1-AA TYPE F CURB AND GUTTER (SELECTIVE REPLACEMENT) 500-1,000 LF 14203 30.00$                                 426,090.00$                        

38 520-2-AA TYPE D CURB (SELECTIVE REPLACEMENT) 500-1,000 LF 934 30.00$                                 28,020.00$                          

39 520-3 VALLEY GUTTER  (SELECTIVE REPLACEMENT) 500-1,000 LF 4306 30.00$                                 129,180.00$                        

40 DECORATIVE STAMPED COLORED CONCRETE, 4" THICK Over 500 SF 0 10.00$                                 -$                                     

41 DECORATIVE STAMPED COLORED CONCRETE, 6" THICK Over 500 SF 0 12.00$                                 -$                                     

42 ADA CURB RAMP W/ DETECTABLE WARNINGS (CAST-IN-PLACE) Over 100 EA 0 1,000.00$                            -$                                     

SUBTOTAL 1,299,069.00$                     

STRIPING / SIGNAGE

43 705-11-A DELINEATOR 25 EA 0 55.00$                                 -$                                     

44 706-3 RETRO REFELCTIVE PAVEMENT MARKERS (RPM'S) Over 500 EA 172 5.00$                                   860.00$                               

45 REMOVAL OF EX. STRIPING (GRIND OR WATERBLAST) 100 LF 0 1.75$                                   -$                                     

46 4” DOUBLE YELLOW THERMO Over 500 LF 0 1.50$                                   -$                                     

47 4” SINGLE YELLOW THERMO 100 LF 0 0.60$                                   -$                                     

48 4” SINGLE WHITE THERMO Over 500 LF 0 0.60$                                   -$                                     

49 6” DOUBLE YELLOW THERMO 100 LF 675 1.70$                                   1,147.50$                            

50 6” SINGLE YELLOW THERMO 100 LF 0 1.00$                                   -$                                     

51 6” SINGLE WHITE THERMO 100 LF 2637 1.00$                                   2,637.00$                            

52 12” SINGLE WHITE THERMO Over 500 LF 1816 1.85$                                   3,359.60$                            

53 18” SINGLE WHITE THERMO Over 500 LF 207 2.50$                                   517.50$                               

54 24” STOP BAR WHITE THERMO Over 500 LF 375 3.65$                                   1,368.75$                            

55 700-20-11 SINGLE SIGN POST ASSEMBLY, F&I, LESS THAN 12SF Over 100 AS 14 320.00$                               4,480.00$                            

56 STANDARD STREET SIGN BLADE W/ POST ASSEMBLY Over 50 AS 14 175.00$                               2,450.00$                            

57 HISTORIC DISTRICT STREET SIGN BLADE W/ POST ASSEMBLY 25-50 AS 14 200.00$                               2,800.00$                            

58 BIKE LANE SYMBOL STRIPING (THERMO) Over 50 EA 0 425.00$                               -$                                     

59 HANDICAP PARKING STALL COMPLETE W/ SIGN (PAINT) 10 EA 0 335.00$                               -$                                     

60 REMOVE / RELOCATE EXISTING SIGN W/ POST Over 50 EA 39 211.00$                               8,229.00$                            

SUBTOTAL 27,849.35$                          

Reference IFB 

NEIGHBORHOOD ROAD PROGRAM - ANNUAL PAVING, CONCRETE AND HARDSCAPE

                            BID TABULATION - NEIGHBORHOOD ROAD PROGRAM

                       City of Lake Worth



MISC. WORK

61 ST. AUGUSTINE SOD Over 100 SY 0 4.00$                                   -$                                     

62 BAHIA SOD Over 100 SY 0 4.00$                                   -$                                     

63 CHOCOLATE BROWN MULCH 100 CY 0 75.00$                                 -$                                     

64 425-4 ADJUST INLET Over 25 EA 12 605.00$                               7,260.00$                            

65 425-5-A ADJUST MANHOLES Over 25 EA 20 400.00$                               8,000.00$                            

66 425-6 ADJUST VALVE BOX Over 25 EA 20 330.00$                               6,600.00$                            

67 REPLACE MANHOLE RING AND COVER Over 25 EA 0 790.00$                               -$                                     

68 22”x22”x8” CONCRETE COLLAR (CLEANOUTS) 25 EA 0 500.00$                               -$                                     

69 30"X30"X8" CONCRETE COLLAR (VALVES) 25 EA 0 500.00$                               -$                                     

70 5'X5'X8" CONCRETE COLLAR (MANHOLES AND INLETS) 25 EA 0 500.00$                               -$                                     

71 526-1-A ARCHITECTURAL PAVERS (PER DETAIL) 100-250 SY 0 350.00$                               -$                                     

72 110-7-A MAILBOX RELOCATION Over 100 EA 14 50.00$                                 700.00$                               

73 PAVER BRICK REPAIR (REINSTALL EXIST. BRICKS) 100-250 SY 74 110.00$                               8,140.00$                            

74 FEC RAILROAD FLAGMAN 1 HR 0 400.00$                               -$                                     

SUBTOTAL 30,700.00$                          

ADDITIONAL ITEMS: ROADWAY

75
RESTORATION OF DRIVEWAYS AND WALKWAYS INCLUDING CONCRETE (6" THICK), 

TEXTURED CONCRETE, AND PAVER DRIVEWAYS (ON PRIVATE PROPERTY)
SY 315 120.00$                               37,800.00$                          

76 CONCRETE BUMPOUT EA 12 2,900.00$                            34,800.00$                          

77 HEDGE REPLACEMENT LS 1 3,500.00$                            3,500.00$                            

78 REPLACE BRICK WALL LS 1 5,000.00$                            5,000.00$                            

79 HEADER CURB LF 4776 45.00$                                 214,920.00$                        

80 527-2 DETECTABLE WARNINGS SF 1045 50.00$                                 52,250.00$                          

81 571-1-13 PERFORMANCE TURF, SOD SY 2787 15.00$                                 41,805.00$                          

82 700-2-11 MULTI- POST SIGN, F&I GROUND MOUNT, UP TO 12 SF AS 1 5,075.00$                            5,075.00$                            

83 500-109-AA FENCE, SPECIAL TYPE, RESET EXISTING LF 151 40.00$                                 6,040.00$                            

84 120-1 REGULAR EXCAVATION CY 406 50.00$                                 20,300.00$                          

85 120-6 EMBANKMENT CY 269 50.00$                                 13,450.00$                          

86 ROADWAY TESTING ALLOWANCE (DO NOT BID) LS 1 7,500.00$                            7,500.00$                            

SUBTOTAL 442,440.00$                        

ADDITIONAL ITEMS: STORM DRAINAGE

87 425-1-201 INLET, CURB TYPE 9 EA 9 4,875.00$                            43,875.00$                          

88 INLET, CURB TYPE 9, PARTIAL EA 3 3,240.00$                            9,720.00$                            

89 INLET, VALLEY GUTTER, PARTIAL EA 2 3,240.00$                            6,480.00$                            

90 INLET, VALLEY GUTTER, <10' EA 4 4,875.00$                            19,500.00$                          

90 425-2-41 MANHOLES, P-7, <10' EA 4 6,125.00$                            24,500.00$                          

91 425-2-71 MANHOLES, J-7, <10' EA 1 10,200.00$                          10,200.00$                          

92 425-11 MODIFY EXISTING DRAINAGE STRUCTURE EA 3 1,680.00$                            5,040.00$                            

93 FURNISH & INSTALL REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE (CLASS III) - 15" LF 1578 175.00$                               276,150.00$                        

94 FURNISH & INSTALL REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE (CLASS III) - 36" LF 8 540.00$                               4,320.00$                            

95 SANITARY SEWER LATERAL (REMOVE EXISTING & REPLACE) EA 2 3,500.00$                            7,000.00$                            

94 REMOVE INLET WITH RCP EA 2 1,680.00$                            3,360.00$                            

96 TESTING ALLOWANCE (DO NOT BID) EA 1 3,500.00$                            3,500.00$                            

SUBTOTAL 413,645.00$                        

ADDITIONAL ITEMS: POTABLE WATER

97 REMOVAL OF EXISTING 6” CIP LF 40 86.00$                                 3,440.00$                            

98 6” WATER MAIN (DIP) LF 40 126.00$                               5,040.00$                            

99 6” 45 MJ BENDS EA 8 960.00$                               7,680.00$                            

100 6” GATE VALVES EA 2 1,872.00$                            3,744.00$                            

101 1644-111-08 FIRE HYDRANT, FURNISH & INSTALL, STANDARD, SINGLE HOSE, 6" EA 1 5,240.00$                            5,240.00$                            

102 UTILITY TESTING ALLOWANCE (DO NOT BID) LS 1 2,000.00$                            2,000.00$                            

SUBTOTAL 27,144.00$                          

SUBTOTAL ITEMS 3,157,792.75$                    

MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC (General Items 1-9) 8.00% 252,623.42$                        

CONTINGENCY 12.00% 378,935.13$                        

TOTAL 3,799,731.30$                    



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
AGENDA DATE: February 4th, 2020  DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 

 
TITLE: 
Task Order #12 with Baxter Woodman, Inc. for the Construction Engineering and Inspection 
Services (CEI) for the District 3, Year 4 Neighborhood Road Program 
 
SUMMARY: 

The Task Order #12 with Baxter Woodman authorizes the consultant to perform the CEI 
services for the Neighborhood Road Program’s Year 4, District 3 construction project at a cost 
not to exceed $53,150.00. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
The Neighborhood Road Program is entering the fourth and final year of construction and the 
design services are completed and ready for construction.  Baxter Woodman, Inc. is one of the 
City’s four engineering consultants on contract and is responsible for the construction 
engineering and inspection services for this project.  The project is scheduled to be completed 
within 180 calendar days and the consultant will be monitoring and certifying the construction 
work for a total of 20 hours per week.  Task Order #12 will be issued to Baxter Woodman at a 
cost not to exceed $53,150.00.   
 
MOTION: 
Move to approve/disapprove Task Order #12 with Baxter Woodman, Inc. 
 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Task Order #12 
 

  



 

 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 
 
Capital Expenditures 53,150 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 53,150 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY20 Budget Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

       

308-5020-
519-63-15 

Improve other 
than Build 

NR2003   $53,150.00  

 

 

C. Department Fiscal Review:_________ 





















EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
AGENDA DATE: February 4, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability  

 

TITLE: 

Agreement with Environmental Services, Inc. for Historic Resources Survey Update, Phase IV 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Agreement authorizes Environmental Services, Inc. to complete the Lake Worth Beach 
Historic Resources Survey Update, Phase IV in the amount of $63,000.00.  

 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The State of Florida, Department of State, Division of Historical Resources is providing the City 
with $50,000 under the FY 2019-2020 Small Matching Historic Preservation Grants Program. 
The purpose of this grant award is to provide the City with funding assistance to procure the 
services of a cultural resources management consultant to assist the City in developing Phase 
IV of the City’s historic resources survey.  

This survey is intended to provide updated and accurate information regarding contributing and 
noncontributing properties within the City’s six historic districts. The fourth phase will complete 
this effort by surveying remaining districts that have not yet been updated. These areas are 
primarily located in the Southeast Lucerne and Old Lucerne Local Historic Districts. The City 
will utilize the services of Environmental Services Inc. to oversee the project, conduct the field 
surveys, update the existing Florida Master Site forms, create new Florida Master Site forms, 
and assemble the survey documentation.  

On September 29, 2019, the City published a Request for Proposals for qualified consultants 
for the scope of the grant. On November 5, 2019, the City evaluated the proposals and selected 
Environmental Services, Inc. as the highest scoring candidate. Environmental Services, Inc. 
was selected in prior years to complete the Lake Worth Beach Historic Resources Survey 
Updates I, II, and III.  

This Agreement will utilize the $50,000 small matching historic preservation grant and a local 
cost share of $13,000 to engage with Environmental Services, Inc. for the completion of the 
Lake Worth Beach Historical Resources Survey, Phase IV. 

This Agreement is in accordance with City of Lake Worth Beach Resolution 38-2019, authorizing 
the acceptance of an award from the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical 
Resources for grant funds provided through the fiscal year 2019-2020 small matching historic 
preservation grants program in the amount of $50,000 for conducting the Lake Worth Beach 
Historic Resources Survey, Phase IV.  

 

 

MOTION: 



 

Move to approve/disapprove the Agreement with Environmental Services, Inc. for the Historic 
Resources Survey Update, Phase IV. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Resolution 38-2019 
Agreement 

 
 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 63,000.00 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 50,000.00 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 13,000.00 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account Number Account Description Project Number FY20 

Budget 
Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

       

180-9720-515.31-90 
180-9700-515.31-90 

Professional Fees 
Professional Fees 

SG 2001 $50,000 
$15,000 

$100,000 
$15,000 

$50,000 
$13,000 

$50,000 
$2,000 

 

C. Department Fiscal Review:_________ 



38-2019

RESOLUTION NO. 38-2019 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,
AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF AN AWARD FROM THE FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF STATE, DIVISION OF HISTORICAL RESOURCES FOR GRANT
FUNDS PROVIDED THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 SMALL MATCHING
HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANTS PROGRAM IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000 FOR
CONDUCTING THE HISTORIC RESOURCES SURVEY PHASE IV; AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE GRANT AGREEMENT AND ALL RELATED
DOCUMENTS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the Small Matching Historic Matching Grant Program is administered
by the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources (the “Division”); and

WHEREAS, the Division has provided notice to the City of an award of a Small
Matching Grant as a Certified Local Government in the amount of $50,000 for the purpose
of conducting the Phase IV survey of the City’s historic resources; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to accept this award to procure the services of a
cultural resources management consultant to assist the City wfth the Phase IV survey
historic districts not yet updated of for historical significance; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Division both desire to enter in Agreement for this
purpose; and

WHEREAS, the proposed project serves a valid public purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that:

SECTION 1: The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, hereby
authorizes the acceptance of an award from the Florida Department of State, Division of
Historic Preservation for grant funds made available through the Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Small Matching Historic Preservation Grants Program in an amount of $50,000 to procure
the services of a cultural resources management consultant to assist the City in
conducting the Phase IV survey of the City’s historic resources.

SECTION 2: The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, hereby
authorizes the Mayor to execute the Agreement and all documents related to the City’s
award.



Pg, 2, Reso. 38-2019

SECTION 3: The City Commission hereby authorizes Kevin Fischer, Planning and
Preservation Manager, or his designee, to serve in the capacity of Project Manager for
this purpose.

SECTION 4: Upon execution of the resolution, one copy shall be delivered to the
Planning and Preservation Manager. The fully executed original shall be maintained by
the City Clerk as a public record of the City.

SECTION 5: This resolution shall become effective upon adoption.

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner Maxwell, seconded
by Vice Mayor Amoroso, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:

Mayor Pam Triolo AYE
Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso AYE
Commissioner Scott Maxwell AYE
Commissioner Oman Hardy AYE
Commissioner Herman Robinson AYE

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 20th

day of August, 2019.

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

By:

________________

Pam Triblo, Mayo

ATTEST:



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
(historic Resources Survey Update, Phase IV)

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered on

_____

day of
2019, by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation

(“City”) and Environmental Services, Inc., a Florida corporation (“Consultant”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City issued a Request for Proposals #19-2 14 (“RFP”, incorporated fully herein
by reference) for a consultant to provide Historic Resources Survey Update, Phase N; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant submitted a proposal to provide the services described and set out in
the RfP; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to accept the Consultant’s proposal (consisting of 31 pages and
incorporated fully herein by reference) and enter into an agreement with the Consultant for the provisions
of services as set forth in the RFP; and

WHEREAS, the City finds awarding the RFP to the Consultant as described herein serves a valid
public purpose.

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to set forth certain terms and conditions for the
provision of services by the Consultant to the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein contained, the
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the City and the Consultant agree as follows:

SECTION 1: INCORPORATION OF RECiTALS. The foregoing Recitals are incorporated into this
Agreement as true and correct statements.

SECTION 2: cQNSIJLTANT’S SERVICES. Consultant is hereby engaged by the City to perform a historic
resources survey update in accordance with the requirements and terms and conditions of RFP 19-214,
specifically including the grant requirements in the Agreement between the City and the State of Florida. RFP
19-214 as well as the Consultant’s proposal is hereby incorporated into this contract. In the event of a conflict,
the term of this Professional services Agreement shall govern first; second, the RFP 19-214; and third the
Consultant’s proposal.

SECTION 3: INDEPENDEN CO1IRACTQ RELATiQNSH. No relationship of employer or
employee is created by this Agreement, it being understood that Consultant will act hereunder as an
independent contractor and none of the Consultant’s, officers, directors, employees, independent contractors,
representatives or agents performing services for Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall have any claim
under this Agreement or otherwise against the City for compensation of any kind under this Agreement. The
relationship between the City and Consultant is that of independent contractors, and neither shall be considered
a joint venturer, partner, employee, agent, representative or other relationship of the other for any purpose
expressly or by implication.

SECTION 4: TERM. TIME AND TERMINATION.

a. Ii:rn. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the approval of this Agreement
by the City Commission and shall he for the term necessary to complete all services as set forth in the
Consultant’s proposal unless earlier terminated as sated herein. The term may be extended by written
agreement of the parties for further services related to those services identified herein.

Page 1 oflO



b. IiicQpiciiQ Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. The
Consultant shall at all times carry out its duties and responsibilities as expeditiously as possible and in
accordance with the project schedule set forth in Exhibit “A”.

c. force Mjuj. Neither party hereto shall be liable for its failure to perform hereunder due
to any circumstances beyond its reasonable control, such as acts of God, wars, riots, national emergencies,
sabotage, strikes, labor disputes, accidents, and governmental laws, ordinances, rules, or regulations. The
Consultant or City may suspend its performance under this Agreement as a result of a force majeure without
being in default of this Agreement, but upon the removal of such force majeure, the Consultant or City shall
resume its performance as soon as is reasonably possible. Upon the Consultant’s rcquest, the City shall
consider the facts and extent of any failure to perform the services and, if the Consultant’s failure to perform
was without its or its subconsukants’ fault or negligence, the schedule and/or any other affected provision
of this Agreement may be revised accordingly, subject to the City’s rights to change, terminate, or stop any
or all of the services at any time. No extension shall be made for delay occurring more than seven (7) days
before a notice of delay or claim therefore is made in writing to the City. In the case of continuing cause of
delay, only one (1) notice of delay or claim is necessary.

d. Termination without cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time with
or without cause by giving not less than thirty (30) days written notice of termination.

e. Termination for cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time in the event
that the other party engages in any act or makes any omission constituting a material breach of any term or
condition of this Agreement. The party electing to terminate this Agreement shall provide the other party
with written notice specifying the nature of the breach. The party receiving the notice shall then have three
(3) days from the date of the notice in which to remedy the breach. If such corrective action is not taken
within three (3) days, then this Agreement shall terminate at the end of the three (3) day period without
further notice or demand.

f. Early Termination. If this Agreement is terminated before the completion of all services by
either party, the Consultant shall:

1. Stop services on the date and to the extent specified including without limitation services
of any subconsultants.

2. Transfer all work in progress, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated
services to the City in the format acceptable to City.

3. Continue and complete all parts of the services that have not been terminated.

g. Effect of Termination. Tennination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights,
obligations, and liabilities of the parties arising out of transactions which occurred prior to termination.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that the City is a municipal corporation
and political subdivision of the state of florida, and as such, this Agreement (and all Exhibits hereto) are
subject to budgeting and appropriation by the City of funds sufficient to pay the costs associated herewith
in any fiscal year of the City. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in the event that
no funds are appropriated or budgeted by the City’s governing board in any fiscal year to pay the costs
associated with the City’s obligations under this Agreement, or in the event the funds budgeted or
appropriated are, or are estimated by the City to be, insufficient to pay the costs associated with the City’s
obligations hereunder in any fiscal period, then the City will notify Consultant of such occurrence and either
the City or Consultant may terminate this Agreement by notifying the other in writing, which notice shall
specify a date of termination no earlier than twenty-four (24) hours after giving of such notice. Termination
in accordance with the preceding sentence shall be without penalty or expense to the City of any kind

Page 2 oflO



whatsoever; however, City shall pay Consultant for all services performed under this Agreement through
the date of termination.

SECTION 5; COMPENSATION.

a. Payments. The City agrees to compensate the Consultant in accordance with the rate schedule set
forth in Exhibit “A”; provided that, the total amount to be paid the Consultant under this Agreement
shall not exceed Sixty Three Thousand Dollars (563,000.00). The City shall not reimburse the Consultant
for any additional costs incurred as a direct or indirect result of the Consultant providing services to the
City under this Agreement and not set forth in Exhibit “A”.

b. Invoices. The Consultant shall render quarterly invoices to the City for services that have been
rendered in conformity with this Agreement in the previous month. The invoices shall specify the services
performed and the time spent on such work. All reimbursable expenses shall also be clearly identified on
the invoice with supporting documentation. Invoices will normally be paid within thirty (30) days following
the City’s receipt of the Consultant’s invoice.

SECTION 6: ThTDEMTh4IF1CAT1ON. The Consultant, its officers, employees and agents shall indemnif’
and hold harmless the City, including its officers and employees from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs,
including but not limited to, reasonable attorneys fees (at the trial and appellate levels), to the extent caused
by the negligence, of the Consultant, its officers, directors, employees, representatives and agents employed
or utilized by the Consultant in the performance of the services under this Agreement. The City agrees to
be responsible for its own negligence. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual
relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the City or the Consultant, nor
shall this Agreement be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity for the City beyond the waiver
provided in section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 7: cOMPUANCE ANP D1SQVALIfiAIIQN. Each of the parties agrees to perform its
responsibilities under this Agreement in conformance with all laws, regulations and administrative
instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of this Agreement.

SECTION 8: 1F,RSONNEL. The Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all
necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not be
employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City. All of the services required hereunder shall be
performed by the Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services
shall be fully qualified and authorized or permitted under federal, state and local law to perform such services.

SECTION 9: SUB-CONSULTAN]’S. The City reserves the tight to accept the use of a sub-consultant or to
reject the selection of a particular sub-consultant and approve all qualifications of any sub-consultant in order
to make a determination as to the capability of the sub-consultant to peifonu properly under this Agreement.
All sub-consultants providing professional services to the Consultant under this Agreement will also be
required to provide their own insurance coverage identical to those contained in this Agreement. In the event
that a sub-consultant does not have insurance or does not meet the insurance limits as stated in this Agreement,
the Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the City for any claim in excess of the sub-consultant’s
insurance coverage, arising out of the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the sub-consultant.

SECTION 10; FEDERAL AD STATE TAX. The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and
Use Tax. The Consultant is not authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number.

SECTION H: INSURANCE. Prior to commencing any services, the Consultant shall provide proof of
insurance coverage as required hereunder. Such insurance policy(s) shall be issued by the United States
Treasury or insurance carriers approved and authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and who must

Page3 oflO



have a rating of no less than “excellent” by AM. Best or as mutually agreed upon by the City and the
Consultant. All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated without the express written
authorization of the City.

Type of Coverage Amount of Coverae

Professional liability! $1,000,000 per claim
Errors and Omissions

Commercial general liability $1, 000,000 per occurrence
(Products/completed operations
Contractual, insurance broad form property,
Independent Consultant, personal injury) $2,000,000 annual aggregate

Automobile (owned, non-owned, & hired) $ 1,000,000 single limits

Worker’s Compensation $ statutory limits

The commercial general liability and excess liability policies will name the City as an additional insured and
proof of all insurance coverage shall be ftirnished to the City by way of an endorsement to same or certificate
of insurance prior to the provision of services. The certificates shall clearly indicate that the Consultant has
obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classification as required for strict compliance with this section.
Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve Consultant of its liability and obligations
under this Agreement.

SECTION 12: SUCCESSORSANjIQi$. The City and the Consultant each binds itself and its
partners, successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party of tltis Agreement and to the
partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants
of this Agreement. Except as agreed in writing by all parties, this Agreement is not assignable.

SECTION 13: UISfJJThiESQLUTIQN. L YNIJFAND REMEDIES. All claims arising out of
this Agreement or its breach shall be submitted first to mediation. The parties shall share the mediator’s
fee equally. The mediation shall be held in Palm Beach County. Agreements reached in mediation shall be
enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. This Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any and all legal action necessary to enforce the Agreement
will be held in Palm Beach County. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive
of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every
other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No
single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or
further exercise thereof.

SECTION 14: WAIVER QF JURY TRIAL. TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE
RESOLUTION Of ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL
BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT.

SECTION 15: AcS.SANP AIIPITS. The Consultant shall maintain adequate records to justify all
payments made by the City under this Agreement for at least three (3) years after completion of this
Agreement and longer if required by applicable federal or state law. The City shall have access to such
books, records, and documents as required in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during
normal business hours, at the Consultant’s place of business. In no circumstances will Consultant be
required to disclose any confidential or proprietary information regarding its products and service costs.

Page 4 of 10



SECTION 16: NQNDJSçRIMINATION. The Consultant wan-ants and represents that all of its employees
are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national
origin, ancestry, marital status, or sexual orientation,

SECTION 17: AUIHQEJTXTO PRACTICE. The Consultant hereby represents and warrants that it has
and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required to conduct its business and provide the
services required under this Agreement, and that it will at all times conduct its business and provide the
services under this Agreement in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be
submitted to the City upon request.

SECTION 18: SEVERABILITY. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof
to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this
Agreement, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as
to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this
Agreement shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

SECTION 19: PUBLIC ENTITYC S. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate
who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public
building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public
entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract
with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold
amount provided in Section 227.017, florida Statues, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months
following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. The Consultant will advise the City
immediately if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute.

SECTION 20: NOTICE. All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by hand-delivery, certified
mail (RRR), or by nationally recognized overnight courier, and if sent to the CITY shall be sent to:

City of Lake Worth Beach
Attn: City Manager
7 N. Dixie Highway
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460

and if sent to the Consultant, shall be sent to:

Environmental Services, Inc.
7220 financial Way, Suite 100
Jacksonville, FL 32256

The foregoing names and addresses may be changed if such change is provided in writing to the other
party. Notice shall be deemed given upon receipt.

SECTION 21: ENTIRf’LQFAGREEIV[ENT, The City and the Consultant agree that this Agreement
sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other
than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Agreement may
be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the
parties hereto.

Page 5 of 10



SECTION 22: WAIVER. failure of a party to enforce or exercise any of its right(s) under this Agreement
shall not be deemed a waiver of that parties’ right to enforce or exercise said right(s) at any time thereafter.

SECTION 23: PREPARATION AND NON-EXCLUSIVE. This Agreement shall not be construed more
strongly against either party regardless of who was more responsible for its preparation. This is a non-
exclusive Agreement and the City reserves the right to contract with individuals or firms to provide the
same or similar services.

SECTION 24: MAThBJALITY. All provisions of the Agreement shall be deemed material. In the event
Consultant fails to comply with any of the provisions contained in this Agreement or exhibits, amendments
and addenda attached hereto, said failure shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and City
may at its option provide notice to the Consultant to terminate for cause.

SECTION 25: kAiFfcI. This Agreement shall not become binding and effective until approved
by the City. The Effective Date is the date this Agreement is executed by the City.

SECTION 26: i OF COMPLATS. SUITS AND REGULATORY YIOLATIQ5. Each party
will promptly notify the other of any complaint, claim, suit or cause of action threatened or commenced
against it which arises out of or relates. in any manner, to the performance of this Agreement. Each party
agrees to cooperate with the other in any investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit
in which either party is named, and shall do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance
coverage.

SECTION 27: SURVIVANLITY. Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or
imposes an obligation which extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or
earlier termination.

SECTION 28: QLiNThRPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed an original, and will become effective and binding upon the parties as of the
effective date at such time as all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this Agreement.

SECTION 29: PALM BEACH COUNTY 1Q. In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number
2011-009, the CONSULTANT acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation andlor
audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General. The CONSULTANT has reviewed Palm Reach County
ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance.

SECTION 30: ABJiEMENT D0CUMENISA pcQNIRQLLj PgQVi$TQNS. This Agreement
consists of this Agreement and Exhibit “A”. The parties agree to be bound by all the terms and conditions
set forth in the aforementioned documents. To the extent that there exists a conflict between the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and Exhibit “A”, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall prevail.
Wherever possible, the provisions of such documents shall be construed in such a manner as to avoid
conflicts between provisions of the various documents.

SECTION 31: QNRSHI?Qf LWALS. The deliverables, work product, specifications,
calculations, supporting documents, or other work products which are listed as deliverables by the
Consultant in Exhibit “A” to the City shall become the property of the City. The Consultant may keep
copies or samples thereof and shall have the right to use the same for its own purposes. The City accepts
sole responsibility for the reuse of any such deliverables in a manner other than as initially intended or for
any use of incomplete documents.

SECTION 32: RRESENTATIONS AND BTNDING AUTHORITY. By signing this Agreement, on
behalf of the Consultant, the undersigned hereby represents to the City that he or she has the authority and
full legal power to execute this Agreement and any and all documents necessary to effectuate and implement

Page 6 oflO



the terms of this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant for whom he or she is signing and to bind and
obligate such party with respect to all provisions contained in this Agreement.

SECTION 33: PUBLIC RECORDS. The Consultant shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act,
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under section
119.011(2), florida Statutes, specifically agrees to:

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service.

(b) Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, providc the City with a copy
of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost
that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Agreement
and following completion of this Agreement if the Consultant does not transfer the records to the City.

(d) Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in possession
of the Consultant or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service, lithe
Consultant transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Agreement, the Consultant shall
destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential or exempt from public records
disclosure requirements. If the Consultant keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the
Agreement, the Consultant shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records
stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s custodian of public records
or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City.

IF THE CONSULTANT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION Of CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE
CONSULTANTS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING
TO THIS AGREEMENT, PLEASE CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF
PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH
BEACH, ATTN: DEBBIE ANDREA, AT (561) 5$6-1662,
DANDREA@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV, 7 N. DIXIE HIGHWAY,
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL 33460.

SECTION 34: c IPBNIIALANP ?RQPR TAY INFORMATION. Each party (the “Receiving
Party”) will keep confidential and not disclose to any other person or entity or use (except as expressly
and unambiguously authorized by this Agreement) information, technology or software (“Confidential
Information”) obtained from the other party (the “Disclosing Party”); provided, however, that the
Receiving Party will not be prohibited from disclosing or using information (1) that at the time of
disclosure is publicly available or becomes publicly available through no act or omission of the Receiving
Party, (ii) that is or has been disclosed to the Receiving Party by a third party who is not under, and to
whom the Receiving Party does not owe, an obligation of confidentiality with respect thereto, (iii) that is
or has been independently acquired or developed by the Receiving Party without access to the Disclosing
Party’s Confidential Information, (iv) that is already in the Receiving Party’s possession at the time of
disclosure, or (v) that is required to be released by law.

SECTION 35: EXPORT ADMiNISTRATION. Each party agrees to comply with all export laws and
regulations of the United States (“Export Laws”) to assure that no software deliverable, item, service,
technical data or any direct product thereof arising out of or related to this Agreement is exported directly
or indirectly (as a physical export or a deemed export) in violation of Export Laws.

Page 7 of 10



SECTION 36: NO THIRD PARTY NEJcIAKJES. There are no third party beneficiaries under this
Agreement.

SECTION 37: SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES.
a. The Consultant certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies

that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel. Pursuant to section
287.135, Florida Statutes, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole
option if the Consultant or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false
certification; or if the Consultant or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized
Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of
this Agreement.

b. If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the Consultant certifies that it and its
subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List,
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or
engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida
Statutes. Pursuant to Section 287.135, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement
at its sole option if the Consultant, or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted
a false certification; or if the Consultant or any of its subcontractors are placed on the
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with
Activities in the fran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with
business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement.

c. The Consultant agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts
entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement.

d. The Consultant agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied
upon by the City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals.

e. The Consultant agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to
any certification herein, the Consultant shall immediately notify the City of the same.

f. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize
the above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

Page 8 of 10



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Professional
Services Agreement to Historic Resources Survey Update, Phase IV on the day and year first above written.

CITY OF LAKE WORTh BEACh, FLORIDA

ATTEST;

By:

___________—

By:

___ ________

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk Pam Tholo, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM AN1) APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: SUFFICIENCY

By: By:
-

Glen J. Torcivia. City Attorney Bruce I. Miller, Financial Services Director
!mpa

CONTRACTOR: ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC.

By: -

PrintNme:{ . ktWt

Title:Pi?O\ 7Pp. M9r.
[Corporate Seal]

STATE OF

_______

J
COUNTY Of —

Th foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 0 day of by
as V..tc\ of Environmental Services, Inc., a

corporatiiauthorized to do business in the State of Florida, and who is personally known to me or who
has produced the following

________________________________

as identification.

/, it ;t[i
Si

>otary Lublic

(i Nary
KERRYOLDS

Commission # GG 349906
My Comm. Expires Oct 24, 2023

Bo.Ued through National Notary Asso,

Page 9 of 10



EXHIBIT “A”

Revised Schedule ior ScGpe of Servkes

According to background data collected by ESI Staff in preparatIon of this proposat, we esUm ate there are
approtlmatei 547 parcels in Southeast Lucerne and Old Lucerne with resources constructed in or prior
to 1970 that have not been pceviously recorded. ESI proposes to focus field efforts on these resources
first and will coiled data on resources in other districts that were likely missed or that have become
eligible since the inception of Phase I of the survey second. Background research also identified
approidmately 130 parcels with potential resources to be confimed.

An outline of the project, proposed scope of sen.’ice deliverables, induding scheUe and compensation
are provided in th following sections.

Task 1: Engagement $4,500.00
January 2020

Tôk 2: Background Research/l)ata Collection $7,500.00
January2020 - february 2020

Task 3: Field Survey $25,00000
February 2020 March 2020

Deliverable 1: Sample FMSf Forms
February 2020

Task 4: Draft Survey Reporting & Mapping $15,000.00
mid-April 2020-mid-June 2020

Deliverable 2 Draft Survey Report

May 2, 2020

Task 5: Swvey Report. FMSF Farms, GIS Data $11,000.00
mid-May 2020- July2020

DeliverableS: Final & individual Reports

July 10,2020

Total Estimate: $65,000.00

Page 10 of 10



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
AGENDA DATE: February 4, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

 

TITLE: 

Resolution No 04-2020 – Amending the fees and charges schedule  
SUMMARY: 

The Resolution amends the adopted fee schedule to create consistency in the fee schedule, 
adjust several fee charges, and reinstate fees that were inadvertently removed from the 
schooled.    

 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

In coordinating our fee schedule with ProChamps, it came to our attention that their system 
cannot support the current bifurcated fee schedule. This amendment will provide for a single 
escalating fee schedule rather that one for improved and one for unimproved properties. The 
result will be an insignificant increase in total revenues for the city. In addition, this resolution 
will reinstate two tabs of the fee schedule related to Planning and Zoning fees and 
Miscellaneous fees that were inadvertently removed from the fee schedule and were part of the 
previously adopted fee schedule. 

 
Leisure Services is amending fees including the Golf Course frequent player card annual fee, 
youth soccer, youth flag football and winter camp to allow for early, normal and late registration 
fees. Recreation is also requesting to increase fees with our sports providers and Parking is 
adding fees for parking hearings before the City’s Special Magistrate. 

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution 04-2020 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 

Resolution No. 04-2020 

Exhibit A Fee Schedule Amendments 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 



 
The proposed changes in the fee schedule will have a minimal impact on the annual 
revenues for this fiscal year as the revenue projections already anticipated these fees.  

 

Fiscal Years 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account Number Account 

Description 
Project 
Number 

FY20 Budget Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Revenue 

Balance 
 

       

       

 

C. Department Fiscal Review:_________ 



04-2020 1 
 2 
RESOLUTION NO. 04-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 3 

AMENDING THE FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE FOR CITY SERVICES AND 4 
OTHER CHARGES FOR THE 2019-2020 FISCAL YEAR; PROVIDING FOR 5 
CONFLICTS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  6 
 7 

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth, Florida provides a variety of services to its 8 

residents and the public for the overall general health, safety and welfare of the City and 9 
its utility areas; and 10 
 11 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission desires to establish fees and charges for such 12 

City services in an amount that is based upon the reasonable associated administrative 13 
expenses to the City; and 14 
 15 

 WHEREAS, the City Commission adopted a comprehensive fees and charges 16 

structure for the first time for the 2012-2013 fiscal year for City services; and 17 
 18 

WHEREAS, the City Commission adopted a comprehensive schedule of fees and 19 

charges for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 to become effective on December 1, 2019, and 20 
 21 

 WHEREAS, the City Commission finds the adoption of the amended fees and 22 
charges for use & occupancy set forth herein serves a valid public purpose. 23 
 24 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE 25 
WORTH, FLORIDA, that: 26 

 27 
SECTION 1:  The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this resolution as true and 28 

correct statements. 29 
 30 
SECTION 2:  The current 2019-2020 fiscal year schedule of fees and charges for 31 

registration of foreclosed, abandoned and or vacant improved and unimproved properties, 32 
city parking violations, membership fees for the golf course, the fees for youth 33 

activities/Sports as well as two tabs that were inadvertently left off the fee schedule are 34 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein is hereby amended. 35 
 36 

 SECTION 3:  Except as revised by this resolution, all other fees and charges adopted 37 

by the City remain unchanged. 38 
 39 
SECTION 4.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 40 

repealed. 41 
 42 
SECTION 5.   If any provision of this resolution or the application thereof to any person 43 
or circumstances is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 44 
applications of this resolution which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 45 
application and to this end the provisions of this resolution are declared severable. 46 



Pg. 2, Reso. 04-2020 

 47 
SECTION 6: This resolution shall become effective upon adoption with the fees and 48 
charges set forth herein to apply February 5, 2020. 49 

 50 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner _______________, 51 

seconded by Commissioner _________________, and upon being put to a vote, the 52 

vote was as follows: 53 

Mayor Pam Triolo 54 
Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso 55 

Commissioner Scott Maxwell 56 
Commissioner Omari Hardy 57 

Commissioner Herman Robinson 58 
 59 

 The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 4th 60 

day of February, 2020. 61 

 62 

LAKE WORTH CITY COMMISSION 63 

 64 

By: __________________________ 65 
Pam Triolo, Mayor 66 

 67 

ATTEST: 68 
 69 
 70 

__________________________ 71 
Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk 72 



SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES

Originating Department

COMMUNITY

SUSTAINABILITY
Registration of Foreclosed, 

Abandoned, Vacant 

Properties

$200 Annually
$300  Annually
$400 Annually
$500 Annually
$600 Annually
$750 Annually

Nuisance Fees $200
$500

Cost of Services

Footnote / Explanation

Chronic Nuisance Abatement Fee

Registration of Foreclosed, Abandoned, and/or Vacant Improved and 
Unimporoved Properties 

First Year
Second Year
Third Year

Chronic Nuisance Administration Fee - First Offence
Chronic Nuisance Administration Fee - Subsequent Offence

Fourth Year
Fifth Year
Each  Subsequent Year

EXHIBIT A

Description of Services Provided Fees ($)

Code Compliance - Foreclosure Registry Program Costs

Effective: February 4, 2020



SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES

Originating 

Department

COMMUNITY

SUSTAINABILITY

MISCELLANEOUS FEES Current color copy rate
Current black/white copy rate
Current copy rate

40.00$                                            
100.00                                            
200.00                                            
50.00                                              

200.00                                            
50.00 + Actual advertising cost

15.00                                              
15.00                                              
15.00                                              

Current Retrieval Rate
Applicant to pay actual rates
45.00 per hour after 1st  hour

Footnote / Explanation

Zoning Interpretation Letter
Unity of Title Release
Certificate of Non-Conformity
Hearing Postponement Request
BTR Zoning Review - Residential
BTR Zoning Review - Non Residential
Use & occupancy Zoning Review
Records File Retrieval (per box)
Cost Recovery - Consultant Fees
Cost Recovery - Staff Research

Zoning Confirmation Letter - Specific Use

EXHIBIT A

Description of Services Provided Fees ($)

Planning, Zoning & Historic Preservation 

(LDRs)
Costs

Color Zoning or Future Land Use (FLU) Map
Black and White Zoning or FLU Map
Comprehensive Plan
Zoning Confirmation Letter



SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES

Originating Department

COMMUNITY

SUSTAINABILITY

PLANNING & ZONING FEES Variance Fees

(Cont'd)    Single Family Residential (SFR) 350.00$                    
   Single Family Residential - each additional 100.00                      

1,500.00                   
200.00                      

1,500.00                   
200.00                      
250.00                      
500.00                      
250.00                      

3,000.00                   
2,500.00                   

BUILDING PERMIT ZONING 

REVIEW 45.00                        
90.00                        
90.00                        

125.00                      

30.00                        
50.00                        
50.00                        
50.00                        

Interior Renovations/Build-Outs

25.00                        
25.00                        
25.00                        
25.00                        

   Non-Residential Single Use
   Mixed Use

Footnote / Explanation

   Multi-Family Residential

   Single Family Residential
   Multi-Family Residential
   Non-Residential Single Use
   Mixed Use

Additions

   Multi-Family Residential
   Non-Residential Single Use
   Mixed Use

   Single Family Residential

New Construction

   Multi-Family Residential (MFR)
   Multi-Family Residential - each additional
   Non-Residential and Mixed Use (NR & MU)

   Non-Residential and Mixed Use - each additional
   Boat / Recreational Vehicle Parking
   Signs
   Administrative

Zoning

   Text Amendment
   Zoning Map Amendment /Rezone

EXHIBIT A

Description of Services Provided Fees ($)

Planning, Zoning & Historic Preservation (LDRs) Costs



SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES

Originating 

Department

LEISURE Non-

SERVICES Resident Deposit

Athletic Fields 40.00$                   40.00$                    100.00$    
# Northwest Concession fee, per day 150.00 150.00 0.00
# Northwest Concession fee, 4 or more days

40.00 40.00 100.00
40.00 40.00 100.00
40.00 40.00 100.00

Futsal Court 40.00 40.00 100.00
Basketball Court 40.00 40.00 100.00
Tennis Court 40.00 40.00 100.00

20.00 20.00 0.00
80.00 80.00 0.00

40.00 0.00
20.00 20.00 0.00

. Staff Person 25.00 25.00 0.00
Youth Activity /Sports 

(Per Season) 65.00 - 85.00 65.00 - 85.00 0.00
Jr. Basketball (5-7 Years) 50.00 50.00 0.00

45.00 - 55.00 45.00 - 55.00 0.00
85.00 - 100.00 85.00 - 100.00 0.00
85.00 to 150.00 85.00 to 150.00 0.00

55.00 - 65.00 55.00 - 65.00 0.00
85.00 - 150.00 85.00 - 150.00 0.00

70.00 70.00 0.00
10.00 10.00 0.00

450.00 450.00 0.00
50.00 50.00 0.00

500.00 500.00 0.00
0.00

350.00 350.00 0.00
25.00 25.00 0.00

5.00 5.00
500.00 500.00 0.00

75.00 75.00
125.00 - 175.00 125.00 - 175.00 

10.00 - 20.00 10.00 - 20.00
10.00 - 20.00 10.00 - 20.00

15.00 15.00
35.00 35.00

5.00 5.00

35.00 35.00 0.00
0.00

Rec. Pass - Includes Archer & Rec Nite Out
Winter Schools Out: Camp
Highschool Dance: Teen Dance

Senior Social Club (annual)

Recognized Sports Providers %20 charge 

Youth Flag Football
Cheerleading
Flag Football Tournament

Adult Soccer (18 Years & Older)
Per Team

Summer Camp 

Adult Flag Football Team
Adult Basketball-individual

Adult Basketball Team

Per Person
Archery Tag

Rec Night Out
High School Hot Spot Program
Zombie Run
Middle School dance: Teen Dance

Field Prep (baseball or softball)

Youth Basketball

Bitty Sports (3-5 Years)
Youth Soccer

North West Ball Field 

Per Person
Per Team

Field Dragging Baseball - per occurrence

EXHIBIT A

Description of Services Provided Fees ($)

Recreation Resident

Youth Football

500.00 flat fee
Sunset Park Multi-Purpose Field
Howard Park Multi- Purpose Field
Memorial Park Multi- Purpose Field

Lights per hour ( all Fields)
Field Prep (football or soccer)

 



SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES

Originating 

Department

LEISURE

SERVICES
Memberships

Cart Fees

Club Service Fees

Annual Trail Fee

@

4 Junior rate $12 before 3pm and $5 after 3pm.  Walking only.

Memberships do not include tax

1
Locker rental, bag storage & Handicap Fee included with purchase of annual 
member fee & annual Cart fee

2 Valid from 11/1/2019 to 4/30/2020 - Cart fee $20 for 18 holes or $10 for 9 holes

3 $25 after 11:00am

Unlimited w/ Partner 1,200.00

Bag Storage Fee 100.00
Pull Cart Storage 150.00

Footnote / Explanation

Unlimited 800.00

USGA Fees 25.00
Locker Fee 50.00

18 Holes 20.00
9 Holes 10.00

Frequent Player Card 100.00
College Student (Full Time) (3) 50.00
Junior (15 years of age or younger) (4) 50.00

Cart Fee (1) 1,500.00
Seasonal Member Fee (2) 1,200.00
Seasonal Cart Fee 800.00

Member Fee 1,400.00

EXHIBIT A

Description of Services Provided Fees ($)

Golf



                    SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES

Originating 

Department

LEISURE Non-

SERVICES Resident

Parking Fees

$2.00 fee
Ballroom Rental Parking Per Hour 2.00$       $2.00

$2.00 - $5.00
Old Bridge Parking (Per hr) $2.00 - $5.00
Old Bridge Parking (Tenant/Employee Pass - per month) Incl. Tax 40.00$     40.00$    

40.00$     N/A
60.00$     N/A

Bryant Park

Boat Ramp and Boat Ramp over flow (per day) 10.00$     10.00$    24 Hrs.

Boat Ramp Trailer Parking Decal 50.00$     
Annual Florida Resident ($50.00 plus tax)

Boat Ramp Trailer Parking Decal -          150.00$  
Annual Non-Florida Resident ($150.00 plus tax)

Boat Ramp Trailer Parking Decal 150.00$  150.00$  
Annual Commercial ($150.00 plus tax)

$5.00 plus tax

1 Company Vehicle Requirements $40.00 plus tax

2 Leased Vehilce Requirements $60.00 plus tax

1

2

Residents with leased vehicles for which a parking decal is sought shall addtionally furnish a notarized copy of the lease 
in his or her name.

*Note all applicable taxes for all parking citations and designations shall be due. 

Beach Parking (per hr)

Beach Parking Decal (Annual Resident) $40.00 plus tax
Beach Parking Decal (Seasonal Resident) $60.00 plus tax

Fee for lost, stolen or destroyed replacement decals (beach, employee, 
business, hang tag, boat swim or other)

Footnote / Explanation

Vehicle registration in company name.  The person seeking the decal shall be referred to parking manager.

Beach

EXHIBIT A

Description of Services Provided Fees ($)

City Parking Fees Resident
Explanation

Pre-Paid Parking Rates For Individual Parking Spaces Hourly $2.00 - $5.00

Convenience Fee

When payments are presented in person at the Customer Service 
office to pay for citations, a convenience fee will be added to offset the 
added costs of handling in person presentment of payments. No 
additional convenience fee will be charged for payments made via Lock 
Box, or mail. Online payments may incurr a convenience fee.



SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES

Originating 

Department

LEISURE SERVICES

A. N/A

B. 250.00$             

C. Boat Ramp and Boat Ramp Overflow parking violations 50.00$               
D. Administrative fee for dismissing Parking Citation for improperly 

or not displaying Disabled placard/permit. 10.00$               
E. Administrative fee for dismissing Parking Citation for improperly 

entering the plate number or zone number 10.00$               

F. 10.00$               
Ordinances

Sec. 21-39 Failure to Pay Penalties for violations within 15 days from time of
issuance of the violation shall result in citation amount doubling. Fines Double

Sec. 21-43

25%

25%

Waiver

All parking violations shall be se frorth herein by ordinance or State Statute

Drivers who illegally park in or obsturct designated disabled parking spaces or 
access areas will be fined $250.00 per F.S. 316.1955 (1), (2)

Administrative fee for dismissing Parking Citation as allowed by parking  policies.

(a) Municipal parking violations fines and penalties for which full payment is not 
received within forty-five (45) calendar days from the date of issuance will be 
subject to no more that an additional twenty-five percent (25%) cost.

(b) Pursuant to F.S. 938.35, parking violations, fines and penalities for which full 
payment is not received within 90 (ninety) calendar days from the date of issuance 
will also be subject to an additional collection fee, if the account is referred to a 
private attorney who is a member in good standing of the Florida Bar or to a 
collection agency who is registered and in good standing pursuant to F.S. ch. 559, 
each retained by the city pursuant to its applicable procurement practies to pursue 
the collection of sunch unpaid financial obligations.  The amount of such collection 
fee shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the amount owed at the time the 
account is referred to the attorney or agents for collection, or in the actual amount 
charged by such private attorney or agents for collection, whichever is less. 

The Leisure Services Director or his/her designee may dismiss parking citations under certain 
extenuating circumstances. These circumstances may include, but are not limited to, an improperly 
displayed permit or meter receipt when a valid permit or receipt is later produced; disabled vehicles, 
verified official city business ambulance transport, police department vehicles, utility service providers, 
or verified meter malfunction or similar situations.

EXHIBIT A

Description of Services Provided Fees ($)

Beach, Boat Ramp & City Parking Violations Fee Schedule Fines



EXHIBIT A
       SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES

Originating 

Department

Fees ($)

LEISURE
SERVICES

Parking Fees

21-19 The sale of motor vehicles on public parking lots, public streets and highways is prohibited. 500.00$                       
21-35 $2.00 - $5.00
21-39 The violator shall have fifteen (15) calendar days to pay the stated penalty, or to request an  N/A

appeal hearing form, have it notarized for the municipal parking violation issued by the city.
21-61a 1, 2 Vehicles with 3 or more unpaid citations may be immobilized. N/A

21-61b Vehicle immobilization fee. $0 to 200.00
21-61 c, An immoblization device shall be removed, by an authorized representative during 

$0 - 60.00

21-61d 500.00$                       
21-62a(7),c Towed vehicle/citation fee. 60.00$                         
21-65 N/A

21-67

N/A

21-70 a,b
$25.00  - $50.00

21-33h Parking in a red zone (red curb). 50.00$                         
21-37.2 Vehicle displaying a valid disabled permit over 4 hours. 30.00$                         
21-61a, 1 Any vehicle with three or more citations over 15 days old may be immobilized. N/A
21-61a, 2 N/A

21-62, 21/33h $30.00
21-62, 21-33 N/A
21-64 Special Magistrates may hold hearings and render fees for all parking issues in the City. N/A
21-70a, b All appeals for an immobilized vehicle that has been immobilized or towed, vehicles will be. 25.00$                         

21-70d,g
$0 - $1500

Administrative

Fees operations window. $2.00
Mailings related to parking items may be required to pay a fee. Cost will vary
Postal Fees for mailed permits, documents, proofs, etc. 0 to $200.00

Waiver

Administrative Fee may be assessed when payments are presented in person at the parking 

Footnote/Explination

Modified Fees

No overnight parking allowed on City property
Towing may be done in accordance with city ordinance

The Special Magistrates shall make final judgment on all parking citations, hearing costs, 
fees, fines and penalties, dismissals, tow fees and citations. 

Any vehicle not lawfully displaying a license plate or vehicle identification number may be 
immobilized. 

Description of Services Provided

City Parking Violations Fines

Parking Fees (Hourly) for events (Meters)

business hours.  After hours, a city representative, including a tow company representative 
may do this. 

Any vehicle immobization device tampering, removing or destruction fee. 

All unpaid citations will be paid before release of any towed vehicle

The towing, storage, and/or immobilization charges and parking fines occasioned by the 
immobilization/impoundment of a motor vehicle pursuant to this article shall constitute a lien 
upon the vehicle, and may disposed of according to Ordinance, City contracts, or State 
Statutes. 

An appeal for an immobiliation device and/or towed vehicle may be completed on the 
appropriate  form requires a notorized signature within 3 days.  An Appeal fee may be 



EXHIBIT A
SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES

Originating 

Department
Fees ($)

7-18a 30.00$              
7-18b 30.00$              
7-18c Parking in beach area lots must pay designated rates. 30.00$              
7-18c 30.00$              
7-18d 30.00$              
7-18g No parking a vehicle with an obscured license plate or registration decal. 30.00$              
7-19a 30.00$              
7-19a All 3/4 ton vehicles or greater restircted to lower lot. 30.00$              
7-19b (1) Commercial vehicle over 20 minutes in beach area 30.00$              

7-19c 30.00$              

7-20. 30.00$              
7-21d 30.00$              
7-22.           250.00$            

7-23. N/A

7-54d. 50.00$              
21-2a, b 30.00$              
21-33a Double Parking. 30.00$              
21-33b 30.00$              
21-33c Within 20' of street intersection. 30.00$              
21-33d Outside designated parking space, or in spaces. 30.00$              
21-33e Parallel parking with wheels more than 12" from curb or street edge. 30.00$              
21-33f Facing against closest traffic flow. 30.00$              
21-33g In angle space with  back of vehicle to meter or curb. 30.00$              
21-33h Where signs, street or curb marking prohibit. 30.00$              
21-33i Parking in or on a bicycle path. 30.00$              
21-33j Parking more than 2 motorcycles in a space. 30.00$              
21-33.1 Parking in a fire lane. 50.00$              
21-33.2 Parking in an alley. 30.00$              

21-33.3b 30.00$              
21-34a Within 50' of RR crossing. 30.00$              
21-34b Within 15' of fire hydrant. 50.00$              
21-34c In front of public or private driveway or within 5 feet of driveway 30.00$              
21-34d Within 20' of driveway for Fire Station. 30.00$              
21-34e On Bridge. 30.00$              
21-34f In a lane or obstructing Traffic. 30.00$              
21-35e Overtime at Parking meter, or timed zone. 30.00$              
21-35f

30.00$              

21-36a, b 30.00$              

21-37a
30.00$              

21-37.1 Parked on right-of-way between sidewalk and raised curb in residential district. 30.00$              
21-37.2 Unauthorized parking in or obstructing a disabled parking space or access area. 250.00$            
21-38 Leaving vehicle unattended keys left. 30.00$              

21-39
N/A

Parking on a sidewalk.

Prohibited vehicles parked overnight, tractor trailers, semi trucks, tow trucks, busses, 
dump trucks, construction equipment, vans used for sale of food/beverage, stretch limos, 
bucket or boom trucks, swamp buggies

Unlawful to alter, duplicate, damage, destroy, a pay station receipt, permit tag, placard, or 
decal used for parking control issues, in an attempt to defraud the City. 
Commercial vehicle in street or alley in residential district or Commericial vehicle in 
industrial  district over one (1) hour, except trucks less than 3/4 capacity not involved in 
deliveries, service collection or construction
Recreational vehicles or trucks of 3/4 ton or greater in residential district, street or alley, 
or over (1) hour. 

Failure to Pay Penalties or file an appeal for violations within 15 calendar days form the 
time of issuance of the violation shall result in citation amount doubling. 

Expired tag/Registration/No tag 

Parking in designated/marked spaces only, or large vehicles must pay for all spaces. 

Parking in more than 2 motorcycles in a space. 
No parking in public right of ways in beach area.

Any recreational vehicle or trucks of one ton or greater prohibited in beach area.

Buses may discharge or load passengers in the lower lot, and must not block any 
roadway or other lane.
Overnight lodging in vehicle, with warning.
No resident or beach, tenant employee Parking Decal.
Unauthorized parking in or obstructing a disabled parking space or access area.
The violator shall have fifteen (15) days to pay ciation or appeal for a hearing and turn 
form in. 
Overtime at Bryant Park Boat Ramp.

Parking a motor vehicle in any area not located in beach area parking lots. 

Description of Services Provided

LEISURE SERVICES

Parking Violations 
Fines

Beach, City Areas, Streets & Alleys



Administrative Administrative fee for dismissing Parking Citation for improperly 
Fees or not displaying disabled placard. 10.00$              

Administrative fee for dismissing Parking Citation for improperly 
entering the plate number or zone number 10.00$              
Administrative fee for not displaying valid vehicle registration (for registered vehicle) 10.00$              
Does not display a valid resident or beach decal, yet has one 10.00$              
A temporary hang tag is not in view 10.00$              
The legal numbers of a disabled placard or permit are not visible 10.00$              
Entering the plate number of a boat trailer, rather than the vehicle plate number 10.00$              

Waiver

The Leisure Services Director of his/her designee may dismiss/void parking citations 
under           certain extenuating circumstances. These circumstances may include, but 
are not limited to, an improperly displayed permit or meter receipt when a valid permit or 
receipt is later produced; disabled vehicles, vehicles used on verified official city 
business, ambulance transport, police/sheriff department vehicles, utility service 
providers, verified meter malfunction or similar situations. 

Footnote/Explanation

Modified Fees



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
AGENDA DATE: February 4, 2020  DEPARTMENT:  Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Purchase authorization for Quicklime from LHoist North America of Alabama, LLC for the Water 
Treatment Plant 

SUMMARY: 

Authorize the purchase of Quicklime from LHoist North America of Alabama LLC, for an amount 
not to exceed $149,535.00. This amount is based on an estimated usage for the year of 500 
tons at $299.07 per ton. 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City of Lake Worth Beach is a member of a local cooperative purchasing effort, which 
includes the Cities of Riviera Beach and Boynton Beach. The City of Boynton Beach is the lead 
agency on this cooperative bid. As a member of this cooperative purchase the Cities are able to 
leverage its purchasing power with its neighboring utilities to provide a critical chemical, at a 
price point that would be otherwise unattainable.  

Quicklime is a necessary chemical which, when added to the raw water supply, precipitates the 
coagulation process necessary to remove hardness color and iron content, as well as other 
contaminants.  

The City of Boynton Beach bid the purchase in November 2017. LHoist North America of 
Alabama, LLC was the lowest responsive bidder. The purchase agreement was authorized to 
December 15, 2019, by the City of Boynton Beach on December 11, 2017, with a price of 
$299.07 per ton. The original agreement is valid for two (2) years with three (3) additional one 
(1) year renewal options.  

The City of Boynton Beach has extended the agreement for one (1) additional year to December 
15, 2020. Based on the cost effectiveness of this contract, it is recommended the City continue 
to purchase this critical chemical from LHoist North America of Alabama, LLC for Fiscal Year 
2020 for an amount not to exceed $149,535.00. 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/not approve purchase of quicklime from LHoist North America of Alabama, 
LLC, for an amount not to exceed $149,535.00.  

ATTACHMENT(S): 
Fiscal Impact Analysis 
 



 

 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $149,535.00 $35,888.40 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 

Net Fiscal Impact $149,535.00 $35,888.40 0 0 0 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 

Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

The funds have been identified in the FY2020 Operating Budget. 

Account 
Number 

Account Description Project 
Number 

FY20 Budget Current Balance Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

402-7022-
533.52-30 

Operating Supplies/ 
Chemicals 

 572,000.00 215,706.36 -$149,535.00 $66,171.36 

C. Department Fiscal Review:_________ 

Brian Shields – Director 
Candace Dale – Finance 
Christy Goddeau – City Attorney 
Michael Bornstein – City Manager 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
AGENDA DATE: February 4, 2020  DEPARTMENT:  Water Utilities 

 
 

TITLE: 

Authorize Amendment 3 to Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan Agreement DW501710 
for the 2-inch watermain phases 1A and 2 replacement projects 
 

SUMMARY: 

This Amendment 2 provides a decreased capitalized interest amount and revised amortization 
schedule on this design loan for 2-inch watermain phases 1A and 2 replacement projects. 
 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City Water Utility Department has planned the replacement over six years of approximately 
17 miles of 2 inch steel water pipes that are corroded and failing within the City water distribution 
system. The Commission directed staff to fund the capital improvement through water system 
revenue financing, which has resulted in award of several loans from the Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund. This current loan totals $4,131,353.22, which covers Phase 1A and 2 
construction, which was completed. This Amendment 3 amends the current agreement to a 
decreased amount of capitalized interest and a reduction in semiannual loan repayment on the 
amortization schedule. 
 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove authorization of Amendment 3 to Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund Loan Agreement DW501710 
 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Amendment 3 
Offer Letter 
Amortization Schedule 

 

A. Department Fiscal Review:_________ 
Brian Shields – Director 
Christy Goddeau – Legal 
Michael Bornstein – City Manager 



STATE REVOLVING FUND
AMENDMENT 3 TO LOAN AGREEMENT DW5O171O

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH

This amendment is executed by the STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Department) and the CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLOzuDA, (Project Sponsor) existing as a local governmental entity under the laws of the State
of Florida. Collectively, the Department and the Project Sponsor shall be referred to as "Parties"
or individually as "Party".

The Department and the Project Sponsor entered into a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Loan Agreement, Number DW50 I 71 0, as amended, authorizing a Loan amount of $4,3 16,528,
excluding Capitalized Interest; and

The Loan Amount, Semiannual Loan Payment amount, and Project costs need adjustment to
reflect actual costs; and

Certain provisions of the Agreement need to be revised.

The Parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The total amount awarded is reduced by $277,438. The revised total amount
awarded is $4,039,090.

2.

$806.99.
The Loan Service Fee is $86,331, and the capitalized Loan Service Fee interest is

3. The total amount of the Loan is $4,131,353.22,which consists of $4,039,090.00
disbursed to the Project Sponsor, 55,125.23 of accrued Capitalized Interest and $87,137.99 of
service fee charges.

4. The total amount remaining to repay on the Loan is 53,917,327.54, which amount
accounts for the Department's receipt of 3 Semiannual Loan Payments and consists of the
following:

(a) The unpaid principal of the original loan of $55 6,362.86 at an interest rate of 1.08
percent per anmrm.

(b) Amendment I unpaid principal of $3,3 60,9 64.68 at an interest rate of 0 .62 percent
per annum.

5. The Semiannual Loan Payment amount, adjusted to account for repayments received
to date, is hereby revised and shall be in the amount of $75,784.24. Such payments shall be
received by the Department on March 15,2020 and semiannually thereafter on September 15

and March 15 of each year until all amounts due hereunder have been fully paid.



Federal Resources, Including State Match, Awarded to the Recipient Pursuant to this Agreement
Consist of the Following

Federal Program
Number

Federal
Agency

CFDA
Number CFDA Title

Funding
Amount

State

Appropriation
Category

FS984522-160 EPA 66.468

Capitalization
Grants for Drinking

Water State
Revolving Fund

$4,039,090 t40129

6. Subsections 2.03(1) and (5) of the Agreement are deleted and replaced as follows:

(1) The f,rnancial assistance authorized pursuant to this Loan Agreement consists of the

following:

(5) Record Retention

The Project Sponsor shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the

terms of this Agreement for a period of five years from the date of the final amendment, and

shall allow the Department, or its designee, Chief Financial Officer, or Auditor General access to
such records upon request. The Project Sponsor shall ensure that working papers are made

available to the Department, or its designee, Chief Financial Officer, or Auditor General upon
request for a period of five years from the date of the final amendment, unless extended in
writing by the Department.

Subsection 2.03(4) of the Agreement is deleted.

Section 8.02 of the Agreement is deleted and replaced as follows:

Books, records, reports, engineering documents, contract documents, and papers shall be

available to the authorized representatives of the Department for inspection at any reasonable

time after the Project Sponsor has received a disbursement and until ltve years after the Final
Amendment date.

9. The Project Sponsor and the Department acknowledge that changes in Project costs

may occur as a result of an audit. Unless this Agreement is amended subsequent to an audit, the

following Project disbursements shall be final.

7

8

2



CATEGORY PROJECT COSTS ($)

23,033.00
26t,043.00

3,398,062.00
356,952.00

4,039,090.00
5,125.23

4,044,215.23

10. All other terms and provisions of the Loan Agreement shall remain in effect.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Administrative Allowance
Engineering Allowance
Construction and Demolition
Technical Services After Bid Opening

SUBTOTAL (Total Disbursed)
Capitalized Interest

TOTAL (Loan Principal Amount)

J



This Amendment 3 to Loan Agreement DW501710 may be executed in two or more
counterparts, any of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which constitute but one

and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Department has caused this amendment to the Loan
Agreement to be executed on its behalf by the Secretary or Designee, and the Project Sponsor
has caused this amendment to be executed on its behalf by its Authorized Representative and by
its affixed seal. The effective date of this amendment shall be as set forth below by the
Department.

for
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH

Mayor

Attest: Approved as to form and legal sufficiency

SEAL
City Clerk City Attorney

for

STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Secretary or Designee Date

4



 

 

 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

Environmental Protection 
 

Marjory Stoneman Douglas Building 

3900 Commonwealth Boulevard 

Tallahassee, FL 32399 

Ron DeSantis 
Governor 

 

Jeanette Nuñez 

Lt. Governor 

 

Noah Valenstein 

Secretary 

January 21, 2020 

 

 

 

Ms. Julie Parham 

Assistant Water Utilities Director 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

301 College Street 

Lake Worth, Florida  33460 

 

Re: DW501710 – Lake Worth Beach 

 Distribution Piping Replacement Phase 1 & 2 

 

Dear Ms. Parham: 

 

Attached is a copy of proposed Amendment 3 to the City’s State Revolving Fund loan agreement.  

The amendment adjusts the project costs and reduces the semiannual loan payment.  The adjustments 

are final unless further revisions become necessary as a result of an audit.  An amortization schedule 

is also attached. 

 

Please have the appropriate officials sign and seal two copies and return them to us within three 

weeks at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS 3505, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-3000.  We will 

sign the documents and mail a fully executed original to you.  If this Amendment is not fully 

executed before the next payment date, March 15, 2020, the higher payment amount specified in the 

preceding amendment (Number 2) will be due. 

 

If you have any questions about this amendment, please call Amber Douglas at (850)245-2915. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
Angela Knecht, Program Administrator 

State Revolving Fund Management 

 

AK/ad 

 

Attachment 

 

cc: Brian Shields – City of Lake Worth Beach 

 Michael Bornstein – City of Lake Worth Beach 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51 Page 1 of 16 

Calculation of Semiannual Payment for Remaining Years 

Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach Funding Number: 501710 
Beginning of Repayment Period: 03/15/2018 Payments Remaining: 57 

 Original Loan   Combined Rate: 1.08 

Date Balance 
Forward 

Disbursement 
Or Serv. Fee 

Comb. Int 
At 

03/15/2020 

Total Owed 
At 

03/15/2020 

Present 
Value* At 
09/15/2019 

Payment 
Amount 

09/15/2019 556,362.86  0.00  3,004.36 559,367.22

Subtotals:  559,367.22 556,362.86   11,366.00 

 Amendment 1   Combined Rate: .62 

Date Balance 
Forward 

Disbursement 
Or Serv. Fee 

Comb. Int 
At 

03/15/2020 

Total Owed 
At 

03/15/2020 

Present 
Value* At 
09/15/2019 

Payment 
Amount 

09/15/2019 3,360,964.68  0.00  10,418.99 3,371,383.67

Subtotals:  3,371,383.67 3,360,964.68   64,418.24 

Totals:  3,930,750.89 3,917,327.54   75,784.24 

*Present value is the total owed divided by (1+(Combined interest rate)/2)
The Payment Amount is computed using the present value.



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 2 of 16 

 
   State Revolving Fund Loan 

*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 
           

Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach            Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
Original Loan    Interest: 1.08   GAA Rate: 0 
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

03/15/2018                  0.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

0.00                0.00                0.00          584,132.22 

09/15/2018 1            9,367.36             6,213.05 
  

62.71 
  

3,091.60                0.00                0.00          577,919.17 

03/15/2019 2           16,130.44             5,400.81 
  

29.16 
  

3,091.60                0.00            7,608.87          564,909.49 

09/15/2019 3           11,597.14                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

3,050.51                0.00            8,546.63          556,362.86 

03/15/2020 4           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

3,004.36                0.00            8,361.64          548,001.22 

09/15/2020 5           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,959.21                0.00            8,406.79          539,594.43 

03/15/2021 6           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,913.81                0.00            8,452.19          531,142.24 

09/15/2021 7           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,868.17                0.00            8,497.83          522,644.41 

03/15/2022 8           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,822.28                0.00            8,543.72          514,100.69 

09/15/2022 9           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,776.14                0.00            8,589.86          505,510.83 

03/15/2023 10           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,729.76                0.00            8,636.24          496,874.59 

09/15/2023 11           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,683.12                0.00            8,682.88          488,191.71 

03/15/2024 12           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,636.24                0.00            8,729.76          479,461.95 

09/15/2024 13           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,589.09                0.00            8,776.91          470,685.04 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 3 of 16 

   State Revolving Fund Loan 
*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 

           
Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach            Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
Original Loan    Interest: 1.08   GAA Rate: 0 
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

03/15/2025 14           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,541.70                0.00            8,824.30          461,860.74 

09/15/2025 15           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,494.05                0.00            8,871.95          452,988.79 

03/15/2026 16           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,446.14                0.00            8,919.86          444,068.93 

09/15/2026 17           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,397.97                0.00            8,968.03          435,100.90 

03/15/2027 18           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,349.54                0.00            9,016.46          426,084.44 

09/15/2027 19           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,300.86                0.00            9,065.14          417,019.30 

03/15/2028 20           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,251.90                0.00            9,114.10          407,905.20 

09/15/2028 21           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,202.69                0.00            9,163.31          398,741.89 

03/15/2029 22           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,153.21                0.00            9,212.79          389,529.10 

09/15/2029 23           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,103.46                0.00            9,262.54          380,266.56 

03/15/2030 24           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,053.44                0.00            9,312.56          370,954.00 

09/15/2030 25           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,003.15                0.00            9,362.85          361,591.15 

03/15/2031 26           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,952.59                0.00            9,413.41          352,177.74 

09/15/2031 27           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,901.76                0.00            9,464.24          342,713.50 

03/15/2032 28           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,850.65                0.00            9,515.35          333,198.15 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 4 of 16 

   State Revolving Fund Loan 
*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 

           
Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach            Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
Original Loan    Interest: 1.08   GAA Rate: 0 
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

09/15/2032 29           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,799.27                0.00            9,566.73          323,631.42 

03/15/2033 30           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,747.61                0.00            9,618.39          314,013.03 

09/15/2033 31           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,695.67                0.00            9,670.33          304,342.70 

03/15/2034 32           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,643.45                0.00            9,722.55          294,620.15 

09/15/2034 33           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,590.95                0.00            9,775.05          284,845.10 

03/15/2035 34           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,538.16                0.00            9,827.84          275,017.26 

09/15/2035 35           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,485.09                0.00            9,880.91          265,136.35 

03/15/2036 36           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,431.74                0.00            9,934.26          255,202.09 

09/15/2036 37           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,378.09                0.00            9,987.91          245,214.18 

03/15/2037 38           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,324.16                0.00           10,041.84          235,172.34 

09/15/2037 39           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,269.93                0.00           10,096.07          225,076.27 

03/15/2038 40           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,215.41                0.00           10,150.59          214,925.68 

09/15/2038 41           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,160.60                0.00           10,205.40          204,720.28 

03/15/2039 42           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,105.49                0.00           10,260.51          194,459.77 

09/15/2039 43           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,050.08                0.00           10,315.92          184,143.85 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 5 of 16 

   State Revolving Fund Loan 
*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 

           
Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach            Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
Original Loan    Interest: 1.08   GAA Rate: 0 
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

03/15/2040 44           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

994.38                0.00           10,371.62          173,772.23 

09/15/2040 45           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

938.37                0.00           10,427.63          163,344.60 

03/15/2041 46           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

882.06                0.00           10,483.94          152,860.66 

09/15/2041 47           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

825.45                0.00           10,540.55          142,320.11 

03/15/2042 48           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

768.53                0.00           10,597.47          131,722.64 

09/15/2042 49           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

711.30                0.00           10,654.70          121,067.94 

03/15/2043 50           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

653.77                0.00           10,712.23          110,355.71 

09/15/2043 51           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

595.92                0.00           10,770.08           99,585.63 

03/15/2044 52           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

537.76                0.00           10,828.24           88,757.39 

09/15/2044 53           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

479.29                0.00           10,886.71           77,870.68 

03/15/2045 54           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

420.50                0.00           10,945.50           66,925.18 

09/15/2045 55           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

361.40                0.00           11,004.60           55,920.58 

03/15/2046 56           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

301.97                0.00           11,064.03           44,856.55 

09/15/2046 57           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

242.23                0.00           11,123.77           33,732.78 

03/15/2047 58           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

182.16                0.00           11,183.84           22,548.94 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 6 of 16 

   State Revolving Fund Loan 
*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 

           
Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach            Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
Original Loan    Interest: 1.08   GAA Rate: 0 
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

09/15/2047 59           11,366.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

121.76                0.00           11,244.24           11,304.70 

03/15/2048 60           11,365.75                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

61.05                0.00           11,304.70                0.00 

Subtotals:             684,956.69            11,613.86 
  

91.87 
  

100,732.60                0.00          572,518.36   
*Total to pay may reflect activity during repayment term 

 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 7 of 16 

 
   State Revolving Fund Loan 

*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 
           

Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach            Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
Amendment 1    Interest: .62   GAA Rate: 0 
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

03/15/2018                  0.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

0.00                0.00                0.00          937,961.01 

09/15/2018 1           72,287.64            69,379.97 
  

234.12 
  

2,673.55                0.00                0.00          868,581.04 

03/15/2019 2           65,534.56             6,144.17 
  

19.05 
  

8,537.76                0.00           50,833.58        3,137,375.29 

09/15/2019 3           70,057.86                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

10,159.25                0.00           59,898.61        3,360,964.68 

03/15/2020 4           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

10,418.99                0.00           53,999.25        3,306,965.43 

09/15/2020 5           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

10,251.59                0.00           54,166.65        3,252,798.78 

03/15/2021 6           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

10,083.68                0.00           54,334.56        3,198,464.22 

09/15/2021 7           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

9,915.24                0.00           54,503.00        3,143,961.22 

03/15/2022 8           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

9,746.28                0.00           54,671.96        3,089,289.26 

09/15/2022 9           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

9,576.80                0.00           54,841.44        3,034,447.82 

03/15/2023 10           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

9,406.79                0.00           55,011.45        2,979,436.37 

09/15/2023 11           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

9,236.25                0.00           55,181.99        2,924,254.38 

03/15/2024 12           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

9,065.19                0.00           55,353.05        2,868,901.33 

09/15/2024 13           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

8,893.59                0.00           55,524.65        2,813,376.68 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 8 of 16 

   State Revolving Fund Loan 
*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 

           
Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach            Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
Amendment 1    Interest: .62   GAA Rate: 0 
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

03/15/2025 14           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

8,721.47                0.00           55,696.77        2,757,679.91 

09/15/2025 15           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

8,548.81                0.00           55,869.43        2,701,810.48 

03/15/2026 16           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

8,375.61                0.00           56,042.63        2,645,767.85 

09/15/2026 17           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

8,201.88                0.00           56,216.36        2,589,551.49 

03/15/2027 18           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

8,027.61                0.00           56,390.63        2,533,160.86 

09/15/2027 19           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

7,852.80                0.00           56,565.44        2,476,595.42 

03/15/2028 20           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

7,677.45                0.00           56,740.79        2,419,854.63 

09/15/2028 21           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

7,501.55                0.00           56,916.69        2,362,937.94 

03/15/2029 22           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

7,325.11                0.00           57,093.13        2,305,844.81 

09/15/2029 23           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

7,148.12                0.00           57,270.12        2,248,574.69 

03/15/2030 24           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

6,970.58                0.00           57,447.66        2,191,127.03 

09/15/2030 25           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

6,792.49                0.00           57,625.75        2,133,501.28 

03/15/2031 26           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

6,613.85                0.00           57,804.39        2,075,696.89 

09/15/2031 27           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

6,434.66                0.00           57,983.58        2,017,713.31 

03/15/2032 28           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

6,254.91                0.00           58,163.33        1,959,549.98 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 9 of 16 

   State Revolving Fund Loan 
*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 

           
Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach            Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
Amendment 1    Interest: .62   GAA Rate: 0 
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

09/15/2032 29           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

6,074.60                0.00           58,343.64        1,901,206.34 

03/15/2033 30           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

5,893.74                0.00           58,524.50        1,842,681.84 

09/15/2033 31           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

5,712.31                0.00           58,705.93        1,783,975.91 

03/15/2034 32           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

5,530.33                0.00           58,887.91        1,725,088.00 

09/15/2034 33           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

5,347.77                0.00           59,070.47        1,666,017.53 

03/15/2035 34           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

5,164.65                0.00           59,253.59        1,606,763.94 

09/15/2035 35           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

4,980.97                0.00           59,437.27        1,547,326.67 

03/15/2036 36           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

4,796.71                0.00           59,621.53        1,487,705.14 

09/15/2036 37           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

4,611.89                0.00           59,806.35        1,427,898.79 

03/15/2037 38           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

4,426.49                0.00           59,991.75        1,367,907.04 

09/15/2037 39           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

4,240.51                0.00           60,177.73        1,307,729.31 

03/15/2038 40           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

4,053.96                0.00           60,364.28        1,247,365.03 

09/15/2038 41           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

3,866.83                0.00           60,551.41        1,186,813.62 

03/15/2039 42           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

3,679.12                0.00           60,739.12        1,126,074.50 

09/15/2039 43           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

3,490.83                0.00           60,927.41        1,065,147.09 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 10 of 16 

   State Revolving Fund Loan 
*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 

           
Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach            Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
Amendment 1    Interest: .62   GAA Rate: 0 
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

03/15/2040 44           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

3,301.96                0.00           61,116.28        1,004,030.81 

09/15/2040 45           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

3,112.50                0.00           61,305.74          942,725.07 

03/15/2041 46           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,922.45                0.00           61,495.79          881,229.28 

09/15/2041 47           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,731.81                0.00           61,686.43          819,542.85 

03/15/2042 48           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,540.58                0.00           61,877.66          757,665.19 

09/15/2042 49           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,348.76                0.00           62,069.48          695,595.71 

03/15/2043 50           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,156.35                0.00           62,261.89          633,333.82 

09/15/2043 51           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,963.33                0.00           62,454.91          570,878.91 

03/15/2044 52           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,769.72                0.00           62,648.52          508,230.39 

09/15/2044 53           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,575.51                0.00           62,842.73          445,387.66 

03/15/2045 54           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,380.70                0.00           63,037.54          382,350.12 

09/15/2045 55           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,185.29                0.00           63,232.95          319,117.17 

03/15/2046 56           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

989.26                0.00           63,428.98          255,688.19 

09/15/2046 57           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

792.63                0.00           63,625.61          192,062.58 

03/15/2047 58           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

595.39                0.00           63,822.85          128,239.73 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 11 of 16 

   State Revolving Fund Loan 
*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 

           
Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach            Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
Amendment 1    Interest: .62   GAA Rate: 0 
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

09/15/2047 59           64,418.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

397.54                0.00           64,020.70           64,219.03 

03/15/2048 60           64,418.11                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

199.08                0.00           64,219.03                0.00 

Subtotals:           3,879,719.61            75,524.14 
  

253.17 
  

332,245.43                0.00        3,471,696.87   
*Total to pay may reflect activity during repayment term 

 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 12 of 16 

 
   State Revolving Fund Loan 

*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 
           

Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach                        Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
All Increments Combined  
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

03/15/2018                  0.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

0.00                0.00                0.00        1,522,093.23 

09/15/2018 1           81,655.00            75,593.02 
  

296.83 
  

5,765.15                0.00                0.00        1,446,500.21 

03/15/2019 2           81,665.00            11,544.98 
  

48.21 
  

11,629.36                0.00           58,442.45        3,702,284.78 

09/15/2019 3           81,655.00                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

13,209.76                0.00           68,445.24        3,917,327.54 

03/15/2020 4           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

13,423.35                0.00           62,360.89        3,854,966.65 

09/15/2020 5           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

13,210.80                0.00           62,573.44        3,792,393.21 

03/15/2021 6           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

12,997.49                0.00           62,786.75        3,729,606.46 

09/15/2021 7           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

12,783.41                0.00           63,000.83        3,666,605.63 

03/15/2022 8           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

12,568.56                0.00           63,215.68        3,603,389.95 

09/15/2022 9           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

12,352.94                0.00           63,431.30        3,539,958.65 

03/15/2023 10           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

12,136.55                0.00           63,647.69        3,476,310.96 

09/15/2023 11           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

11,919.37                0.00           63,864.87        3,412,446.09 

03/15/2024 12           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

11,701.43                0.00           64,082.81        3,348,363.28 

09/15/2024 13           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

11,482.68                0.00           64,301.56        3,284,061.72 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 13 of 16 

   State Revolving Fund Loan 
*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 

           
Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach                        Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
All Increments Combined  
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

03/15/2025 14           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

11,263.17                0.00           64,521.07        3,219,540.65 

09/15/2025 15           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

11,042.86                0.00           64,741.38        3,154,799.27 

03/15/2026 16           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

10,821.75                0.00           64,962.49        3,089,836.78 

09/15/2026 17           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

10,599.85                0.00           65,184.39        3,024,652.39 

03/15/2027 18           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

10,377.15                0.00           65,407.09        2,959,245.30 

09/15/2027 19           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

10,153.66                0.00           65,630.58        2,893,614.72 

03/15/2028 20           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

9,929.35                0.00           65,854.89        2,827,759.83 

09/15/2028 21           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

9,704.24                0.00           66,080.00        2,761,679.83 

03/15/2029 22           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

9,478.32                0.00           66,305.92        2,695,373.91 

09/15/2029 23           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

9,251.58                0.00           66,532.66        2,628,841.25 

03/15/2030 24           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

9,024.02                0.00           66,760.22        2,562,081.03 

09/15/2030 25           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

8,795.64                0.00           66,988.60        2,495,092.43 

03/15/2031 26           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

8,566.44                0.00           67,217.80        2,427,874.63 

09/15/2031 27           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

8,336.42                0.00           67,447.82        2,360,426.81 

03/15/2032 28           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

8,105.56                0.00           67,678.68        2,292,748.13 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 14 of 16 

   State Revolving Fund Loan 
*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 

           
Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach                        Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
All Increments Combined  
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

09/15/2032 29           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

7,873.87                0.00           67,910.37        2,224,837.76 

03/15/2033 30           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

7,641.35                0.00           68,142.89        2,156,694.87 

09/15/2033 31           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

7,407.98                0.00           68,376.26        2,088,318.61 

03/15/2034 32           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

7,173.78                0.00           68,610.46        2,019,708.15 

09/15/2034 33           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

6,938.72                0.00           68,845.52        1,950,862.63 

03/15/2035 34           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

6,702.81                0.00           69,081.43        1,881,781.20 

09/15/2035 35           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

6,466.06                0.00           69,318.18        1,812,463.02 

03/15/2036 36           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

6,228.45                0.00           69,555.79        1,742,907.23 

09/15/2036 37           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

5,989.98                0.00           69,794.26        1,673,112.97 

03/15/2037 38           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

5,750.65                0.00           70,033.59        1,603,079.38 

09/15/2037 39           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

5,510.44                0.00           70,273.80        1,532,805.58 

03/15/2038 40           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

5,269.37                0.00           70,514.87        1,462,290.71 

09/15/2038 41           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

5,027.43                0.00           70,756.81        1,391,533.90 

03/15/2039 42           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

4,784.61                0.00           70,999.63        1,320,534.27 

09/15/2039 43           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

4,540.91                0.00           71,243.33        1,249,290.94 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 15 of 16 

   State Revolving Fund Loan 
*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 

           
Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach                        Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
All Increments Combined  
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

03/15/2040 44           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

4,296.34                0.00           71,487.90        1,177,803.04 

09/15/2040 45           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

4,050.87                0.00           71,733.37        1,106,069.67 

03/15/2041 46           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

3,804.51                0.00           71,979.73        1,034,089.94 

09/15/2041 47           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

3,557.26                0.00           72,226.98          961,862.96 

03/15/2042 48           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

3,309.11                0.00           72,475.13          889,387.83 

09/15/2042 49           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

3,060.06                0.00           72,724.18          816,663.65 

03/15/2043 50           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,810.12                0.00           72,974.12          743,689.53 

09/15/2043 51           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,559.25                0.00           73,224.99          670,464.54 

03/15/2044 52           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,307.48                0.00           73,476.76          596,987.78 

09/15/2044 53           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

2,054.80                0.00           73,729.44          523,258.34 

03/15/2045 54           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,801.20                0.00           73,983.04          449,275.30 

09/15/2045 55           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,546.69                0.00           74,237.55          375,037.75 

03/15/2046 56           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,291.23                0.00           74,493.01          300,544.74 

09/15/2046 57           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

1,034.86                0.00           74,749.38          225,795.36 

03/15/2047 58           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

777.55                0.00           75,006.69          150,788.67 



Wed, 8 Jan 2020 12:51  Page 16 of 16 

   State Revolving Fund Loan 
*** Amortized Repayment Schedule *** 

           
Sponsor: Lake Worth Beach                        Funding Number: 
501710 
 
 
All Increments Combined  
 

Date 
Pmt. 
No. Payment 

Serv. Fee 
Paid 

SF 
Interest Interest Grt. All. Assmt. Principal Paid Total to Pay* 

09/15/2047 59           75,784.24                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

519.30                0.00           75,264.94           75,523.73 

03/15/2048 60           75,783.86                 0.00 
  

0.00 
  

260.13                0.00           75,523.73                0.00 

Totals:           4,564,676.30            87,138.00 
  

345.04 
  

432,978.03                0.00        4,044,215.23   
*Total to pay may reflect activity during repayment term 

 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
AGENDA DATE: February 4, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability  

 

TITLE: 

Appeal by Daniel Hiatt and Frederick Schmidt, of PZB case # 19-00500004: approval by the 
Planning and Zoning Board of a Conditional Use Permit at 1812 Aragon Avenue, Unit A 

 
SUMMARY: 

Daniel Hiatt and Frederick Schmidt are appealing a final order of the Planning and Zoning Board 
which granted a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a “fabrication service excluding 
retail display and sales use” at 1812 Aragon Avenue, Unit A.  

 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The applicant, Kadassa, Inc., applied for a Conditional Use permit to operate a fabrication 
services excluding retail display and sales business for stone countertops at 1812 Aragon 
Avenue.  Kadassa made application after the City’s code compliance division opened a case for 
several violations including inadequate fencing, failing to have a business license, and failing to 
have a conditional use approval.  Those three violations remained and were discussed at the 
Planning and Zoning Board meeting.  

The Planning and Zoning Board meeting was held on Wednesday, August 7, 2019.  During the 
quasi-judicial hearing to hear the request for the conditional use permit, Daniel Hiatt spoke and 
raised a number of concerns.  The Planning and Zoning Board voted 7-0 to postpone PZB 19-
00500004, with the request of additional information from staff.  

At the Planning and Zoning Board meeting held on October 2, 2019, staff presented a revised 
staff report with additional attachments addressing the items that were of concern at the 
previous meeting. These items included a copy of the permit for the original construction of the 
buildings, a copy of the permit for the addition to connect the two buildings, a copy of the permit 
to renovate Unit A, the Florida Department of Health environmental regulations, a picture of the 
wet curtains that Kadassa installed at the subject property, and a picture of the vinyl screening 
installed within the existing fence and gate. The staff report also included additional information 
in regards to the property’s active Code Case (Case #19-2384), the existing roll-off container, 
parking calculations, and the result of an inspection performed by the City’s Water Utilities 
Division. Daniel Hiatt and Frederick Schmidt, through their attorney, Jason Mankoff, made a 
presentation on why they felt the conditional use permit should not be granted.  After reviewing 
the revised staff report with attachments, and having heard additional testimony from the 
applicant and the affected parties, the Board voted 5-1 to approve the request for a Conditional 
Use Permit to allow a “fabrication service excluding retail display and sales” use at 1812 Aragon 
Avenue, Unit A.  

Subsequently, following the quasi-judicial appeal process (summarized below), Mr. Mankoff, on 
behalf of Daniel Hiatt and Frederick Schmidt timely filed an appeal of that decision. The Written 
Basis of Appeal is attached.  



 
Please note that the appeal packet includes all information that was provided to the 
Planning and Zoning Board at both the August 7, 2019 and the October 2, 2019 hearings. 
 
Quasi-Judicial Appeal Process 
Section 23.2-17(b) and (b)(1) of the City’s code, outlines the process for appealing decisions of 
the planning and zoning board/historic resources preservation board to the City Commission. It 
states:  

 
b) To city commission. Should an applicant for development approval or an affected 
party with demonstrated standing decide to appeal a decision of the planning and 
zoning board or the historic resources preservation board, he shall submit to the 
development review official a notice of appeal within fourteen (14) days of the issuance 
of the written decision. Thereafter, the applicant or affected party shall submit to the 
development review official in writing the basis for the appeal within thirty (30) days of 
the board's written decision; except appeals from decisions pertaining to variances 
shall be appealed directly to circuit court as described in subsection c). The 
development review official shall forward the appeal and the board's decision to the 
city commission for review.  

 

1. After courtesy notice as provided in this article, the city commission shall 
conduct a quasi-judicial hearing, and shall consider those applications on 
appeal from the planning and zoning board or the HRPB based on the record 
made in the proceeding below. The city commission shall convey its decision in 
writing to the appellant and the development review official. The considerations 
substantiating the decision of the city commission shall be documented.  

 
Although a quasi-judicial appeal hearing will be conducted, it will not be a de novo hearing, 
meaning that the commission will not hear the case all over again or consider new 
evidence.  Instead, it will consider the information presented at the Planning and Zoning Board 
meetings, information that has been provided to the Commission as noted above, and minutes 
from the meetings.   In addition, under the City’s Rules and Procedures (resolution 26-2017), it 
states in Rule 6 that an applicant will be given ten minutes to make a presentation.  For purposes 
of this quasi-judicial appeal, staff believes it would be appropriate to allow each party to make 
comments or give a presentation within this ten minute time frame.  The comments of course 
will be limited to the information provided to, discussed at, or voted on at the Planning and 
Zoning Board meetings.  Thereafter, the commission members may make comments, ask 
questions, and review the information presented at the Planning and Zoning Board meetings.  

 
As stated in section (b)(1), “the considerations substantiating the decision of the city commission 
shall be documented.”  This means that the Commission’s reasons for upholding or rejecting 
the Planning and Zoning Board’s decision should be placed in a written order and the 
considerations substantiating the decision should be based on whether the Planning and Zoning 
Board’s decision was based on competent, substantial evidence.  
 
The courts have defined substantial evidence as that which will establish a substantial basis of 
fact from which the fact at issue can be reasonably inferred. It is such relevant evidence as a 
reasonable mind would accept as adequate to support a conclusion.  Competent means that 



 
the evidence relied upon to sustain the ultimate finding should be sufficiently relevant and 
material that a reasonable mind would accept it as adequate to support the conclusion reached. 
See e.g., Village of Palmetto Bay v. Palmer Trinity Private School, Inc. 128 So. 3d 19 (Fla. 3d 
DCA 2012). 
 
Finally, although the City’s code does not address public comment for this type of quasi-judicial 
appeal, the Commission would be within its authority to allow public comment even though its 
decision cannot be based upon any new evidence that may be presented by a member of the 
public.  

 

MOTION: 

Move to uphold/reverse the decision of the Planning and Zoning Board for Case 19-00500004. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): All attachments are available in paper form only 
A. Notice of Appeal by Affected Party 
B. Basis of Appeal by Affected Party 
C. Conditional Use application 
D. Applicant Justification Statement  
E. Full Staff report and attachment for the August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning hearing 
F. Staff PowerPoint Presentation from the August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning meeting 
G. August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes  
H. Full staff report and attachments from the October 2, 2019 Planning and Zoning Meeting 
I. Staff PowerPoint Presentation given at the October 2, 2019 meeting  
J. October 2, 2019 Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
K. Final Development Order 
L. Proof of advertising of Appeal hearing  

 



















































Kadassa Inc 

1812 Aragon Avenue 

Suite A 

Lake Worth, Fl. 33411 

 

July 1, 2019 

 

 

Phone: (561) 588-1444 

Fax: (561) 588-2467 

 

Re: Kadassa Inc Justification Statement 

 

Application Request 

 

On behalf of Martin Arias this application requests approval of a conditional use permit. The 

nature of our business is to Fabricate Stone Countertops from Granite, Marble, and Quartz Slab 

Material 

 

Landscaping is existing on the site, no changes are proposed. 

 

Surrounding Property Information 

The Property on the north of our site is Warehouse & Parking to the east is I-95, to the west is 

Barnett Dr. and to the south is Aragon Ave. 

 

Harmonious and Efficient design 

The existing buildings surrounding this site are similar in size and type to those industrial 

building located throughout the IPOC district immediately north of our site. 

 

Preservation of Natural Conditions 

The site has approximately 2 existing buildings and no changes are anticipated. 

 

Screening and Buffering 

All existing landscaping will not change, we will be adding a screening material to the existing 

chain link fence and gate to obscure the view of our operations and outdoor storage usage. 

 

Emergency Access 

Emergency access will be provided via Aragon Ave and Barnett Drive. 

 

Access to Public Ways 

Access will be provided via Aragon Avenue and Barnett Drive. 

 

Pedestrian Circulation 

Existing sidewalks are provided on the site around the existing buildings. 



 

Design of ingress and Egress Drives 

Ingress and egress are already provided and are existing. 

 

Coordination of On-Site Circulation with Off-Site Circulation. 

On site circulation is existing no new circulation is provided. All traffic flow is existing and well 

established. 

 

Design of On- Site Public Right of Way 

No on-site public right of ways are proposed for this development. 

 

Off-Street Parking Loading and Vehicular Circulation Areas 

Off Street Parking vehicular circulation and loading areas are existing, no changes proposed. 

 

Refuse and Service Areas 

Refuse and Service areas are existing 

 

Protection and Property Values 

This site has been arranged to enhance property values. 

 

Transitional Development 

The proposed site is located in an area that transitions from industrial to mixed use. 

 

Consideration of Future Development 

Future uses are projected to be industrial in use and type. 

 

 

General Findings Relating to Harmony with LDRs and Protection of Public Interest-

Conditional Uses 

 

1.- The conditional uses indicated on the proposed site plan will be in harmony with the uses 

which are most likely to occur in the immediate are where located. The proposed conditional  

uses are industrial in nature and similar to other uses located in the IPOC district.  

2.- The proposed conditional uses are industrial in nature and will be in harmony with the 

existing industrial uses in the immediate area. 

3.- The proposed conditional uses will not result in more intensive development in advance of 

when such development I approved by the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive 

Plan as the area is already designated with and industrial future land base. 

4.-  The  future land use designation for the surrounding area is industrial; therefore the 

proposed conditional uses are compatible with future development. 

 

 

 

 



Specific finding for All Conditional Uses 

 

 

 

1. The proposed Conditional Use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will 

result in a significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any 

street to a level lower than would result from a development permitted by right. 

 

2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through 

traffic on local streets than would in a development permitted by right and is  

appropriately located with respect to collector and material streets. 

 

 

3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, or will 

appropriately mitigate anticipated emissions to a level compatible with that which would 

result from a development permitted by right. 

 

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation  to the thoroughfare system 

that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a 

manner resulting in  higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would 

result from development permitted by right. 

 

 

5. The proposed Conditional Use will be so located in relation  to water lines, sanitary 

sewers, storm sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither 

extension nor  enlargement nor any other alteration of such systems in a  manner 

resulting in  higher net public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 

 

6. The proposed Conditional Use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire 

protection service beyond the capacity of those services, except that the proposed 

facility may place a demand on municipal police or fire protection services which does 

not exceed that likely to result from a development permitted by right. 

 

 

7. The proposed Conditional Use will not generate significant, noise, or will appropriately 

mitigate anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a 

development permitted by right. 

. 

8. The proposed Conditional Use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any 

residential property. 

 

 

 

 



 

Additional Requirements: 

 

We understand and agree that: 

 

Prior to approving any Conditional Use Permit, the decision making authority shall ensure that 

the following requirements have been met: 

 

1.- Any and all outstanding code enforcements fees and fines related to the project site have 

been paid to the City. 

 

2.- Any previously imposed conditions of approval for the use at the site have been met, if 

applicable, unless request for amendment of conditions is part of the current Conditional Use 

Permit application. 

 

Where it is necessary to provide write notice to surrounding property owners, the planning 

Zoning & Preservation Department (PZHP) will provide a copy of the notice letter to the 

Applicant. 

 

It is the responsibility of the Applicant to mail the required notice letters to property owners 

within a 40-ft. radius of the subject property. Letters shall be mailed a minimum of 10 days in 

advance of the scheduled meeting date. 

 

The Applicant shall obtain, from the Palm Beach Country Property Appraiser’s Office, a radius 

map and a list of property owners within a 400 ft. radius of the subject property. 

 

A copy of the radius map and property owner list shall be provided to the City’s PZHP 

Department along with an original certificate of mailing, such as the U.S. Postal Service or other 

company that offers mailing services would provide. 

 

These documents are considered as part of an application and shall be provided to the PZHP 

Department prior to the public hearing date. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attached Materials 

Survey (abstracted within 2 years of the date of the aplication) 

Justification statement to address the conditional use criteria in section 23.2 

Site/Floor plan (layout of leased space, outside &inside) 











Kadassa Inc 

1812 Aragon Avenue 

Suite A 

Lake Worth, Fl. 33411 

 

July 1, 2019 

 

 

Phone: (561) 588-1444 

Fax: (561) 588-2467 

 

Re: Kadassa Inc Justification Statement 

 

Application Request 

 

On behalf of Martin Arias this application requests approval of a conditional use permit. The 

nature of our business is to Fabricate Stone Countertops from Granite, Marble, and Quartz Slab 

Material 

 

Landscaping is existing on the site, no changes are proposed. 

 

Surrounding Property Information 

The Property on the north of our site is Warehouse & Parking to the east is I-95, to the west is 

Barnett Dr. and to the south is Aragon Ave. 

 

Harmonious and Efficient design 

The existing buildings surrounding this site are similar in size and type to those industrial 

building located throughout the IPOC district immediately north of our site. 

 

Preservation of Natural Conditions 

The site has approximately 2 existing buildings and no changes are anticipated. 

 

Screening and Buffering 

All existing landscaping will not change, we will be adding a screening material to the existing 

chain link fence and gate to obscure the view of our operations and outdoor storage usage. 

 

Emergency Access 

Emergency access will be provided via Aragon Ave and Barnett Drive. 

 

Access to Public Ways 

Access will be provided via Aragon Avenue and Barnett Drive. 

 

Pedestrian Circulation 

Existing sidewalks are provided on the site around the existing buildings. 



 

Design of ingress and Egress Drives 

Ingress and egress are already provided and are existing. 

 

Coordination of On-Site Circulation with Off-Site Circulation. 

On site circulation is existing no new circulation is provided. All traffic flow is existing and well 

established. 

 

Design of On- Site Public Right of Way 

No on-site public right of ways are proposed for this development. 

 

Off-Street Parking Loading and Vehicular Circulation Areas 

Off Street Parking vehicular circulation and loading areas are existing, no changes proposed. 

 

Refuse and Service Areas 

Refuse and Service areas are existing 

 

Protection and Property Values 

This site has been arranged to enhance property values. 

 

Transitional Development 

The proposed site is located in an area that transitions from industrial to mixed use. 

 

Consideration of Future Development 

Future uses are projected to be industrial in use and type. 

 

 

General Findings Relating to Harmony with LDRs and Protection of Public Interest-

Conditional Uses 

 

1.- The conditional uses indicated on the proposed site plan will be in harmony with the uses 

which are most likely to occur in the immediate are where located. The proposed conditional  

uses are industrial in nature and similar to other uses located in the IPOC district.  

2.- The proposed conditional uses are industrial in nature and will be in harmony with the 

existing industrial uses in the immediate area. 

3.- The proposed conditional uses will not result in more intensive development in advance of 

when such development I approved by the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive 

Plan as the area is already designated with and industrial future land base. 

4.-  The  future land use designation for the surrounding area is industrial; therefore the 

proposed conditional uses are compatible with future development. 

 

 

 

 



Specific finding for All Conditional Uses 

 

 

 

1. The proposed Conditional Use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will 

result in a significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any 

street to a level lower than would result from a development permitted by right. 

 

2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through 

traffic on local streets than would in a development permitted by right and is  

appropriately located with respect to collector and material streets. 

 

 

3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, or will 

appropriately mitigate anticipated emissions to a level compatible with that which would 

result from a development permitted by right. 

 

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation  to the thoroughfare system 

that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a 

manner resulting in  higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would 

result from development permitted by right. 

 

 

5. The proposed Conditional Use will be so located in relation  to water lines, sanitary 

sewers, storm sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither 

extension nor  enlargement nor any other alteration of such systems in a  manner 

resulting in  higher net public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 

 

6. The proposed Conditional Use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire 

protection service beyond the capacity of those services, except that the proposed 

facility may place a demand on municipal police or fire protection services which does 

not exceed that likely to result from a development permitted by right. 

 

 

7. The proposed Conditional Use will not generate significant, noise, or will appropriately 

mitigate anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a 

development permitted by right. 

. 

8. The proposed Conditional Use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any 

residential property. 

 

 

 

 



 

Additional Requirements: 

 

We understand and agree that: 

 

Prior to approving any Conditional Use Permit, the decision making authority shall ensure that 

the following requirements have been met: 

 

1.- Any and all outstanding code enforcements fees and fines related to the project site have 

been paid to the City. 

 

2.- Any previously imposed conditions of approval for the use at the site have been met, if 

applicable, unless request for amendment of conditions is part of the current Conditional Use 

Permit application. 

 

Where it is necessary to provide write notice to surrounding property owners, the planning 

Zoning & Preservation Department (PZHP) will provide a copy of the notice letter to the 

Applicant. 

 

It is the responsibility of the Applicant to mail the required notice letters to property owners 

within a 40-ft. radius of the subject property. Letters shall be mailed a minimum of 10 days in 

advance of the scheduled meeting date. 

 

The Applicant shall obtain, from the Palm Beach Country Property Appraiser’s Office, a radius 

map and a list of property owners within a 400 ft. radius of the subject property. 

 

A copy of the radius map and property owner list shall be provided to the City’s PZHP 

Department along with an original certificate of mailing, such as the U.S. Postal Service or other 

company that offers mailing services would provide. 

 

These documents are considered as part of an application and shall be provided to the PZHP 

Department prior to the public hearing date. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attached Materials 

Survey (abstracted within 2 years of the date of the aplication) 

Justification statement to address the conditional use criteria in section 23.2 

Site/Floor plan (layout of leased space, outside &inside) 



 
  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:   July 31, 2019 
 
TO:   Members of the Planning and Zoning Board 
 
FROM:   Alexis Rosenberg, Neighborhood Planner 
 
THRU:  Kevin Fischer, AICP, Planning and Preservation Manager  
 
MEETING:  August 7, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: PZB Project Number 19-00500004: Request by Martin Arias of Kadassa Inc. for consideration of a 
Conditional Use Permit for a medium-intensity “fabrication services excluding retail display and sales” use at 
1812 Aragon Avenue. The project is located within the Industrial Park of Commerce (I-POC) zoning district. The 
subject property’s PCN is 38-43-44-21-04-005-0170. 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SYNOPSIS: 
 

Applicant Martin Arias of Kadassa Inc. 

Owner 1812 Aragon Ave LLC (Consent Received)  

General Location Northeast of the Aragon Avenue and Barnett Drive intersection 

Existing PCN Numbers 38-43-44-21-04-005-0170 

Existing Land Use Warehouse/Distribution 

Zoning Industrial Park of Commerce (I-POC) 

Future Land Use 
Designation 

Industrial 

 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 

The subject property is a large size lot (21,580 square feet), located northeast of the corner of Aragon Avenue 

and Barnett Drive. The existing site is occupied by Kadassa Inc, which provides fabricated stone countertops from 

granite, marble and quartz materials. The applicant was notified of the need for a conditional use to operate at 

this location upon submitting a business license application.  

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division 

1900 2ND Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

561-586-1687 



PZB No. 19-00500004 

P a g e  | 2 
 

ANALYSIS:  
 
Public Support/Opposition 
 

Staff has not received any letters of support or opposition. 

 
Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan 
 
The proposed manufacturing facility is compatible with the following portions of the City of Lake Worth’s 
Comprehensive Plan: 
 
Policy 1.1.1.10: Industrial  
 
The Industrial land use category is intended to provide for the establishment and enlargement of office, 
manufacturing and light to moderate industrial uses that would be incompatible in other areas of the city due to 
increased traffic generation. The implementing zoning district is I-POC. 
 
Policy 1.1.2.12: Locational Strategy for the Industrial Designation   
 
The Industrial land use designation is intended for mapping the area located west of I-95, known as the Lake 
Worth Park of Commerce (LWPOC). This location offers parcels of vacant and under-utilized land that provide a 
logical setting for development of office, manufacturing and light to moderate industrial uses that have the 
potential for increased traffic generation. This location also enjoys direct access to I-95 via the 10th Avenue North 
highway interchange. 
 
Policy 11.1.2.16:  
 
The City shall maintain its unique urban character and charm by preserving historic sites and districts within the 
City as much as possible, and direct economic development projects to existing mixed-use corridors and sites as 
well as to the Lake Worth Park of Commerce. 
 
Strategic Plan Pillar 1: Positioning Lake Worth Beach to be a competitive viable location of choice  
 

A. Ensure effective economic development incentives and zones  
B. Adopt and implement clear, concise, consistent, predictable and unified rules, regulations and processes 
C. Optimize business district traffic patterns and parking assessments 
D. Foster the assessment and planning for City owned assets including beach, golf and marina 
E. Provide superior public amenities and services to retain existing and entice new residents and businesses 

 
Section 23.2-29(d): General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public interest 

 

The project is in compliance with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and protection of public 
interest, as follows: 

 

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with the uses 
which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the immediate area where 
located.  



PZB No. 19-00500004 

P a g e  | 3 
 

 
Staff Response: The site contains a zoning designation of I-POC, as due the surrounding parcels. This use is 
consistent with the types of industrial uses anticipated to occur within the I-POC district. Therefore, the proposed 
“fabrication services excluding retail display and sales” use is a denser style of development that will be 
compatible and harmonious with the existing and anticipated surrounding uses. Meets Criterion. 

 
2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with existing uses 
in the immediate area where located. 
 
Staff Response: The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District Current Use 

North Industrial  Industrial Park of Commerce     
(I-POC) 

Warehouse/Distribution 

South Industrial  (I-POC) Warehouse/Distribution 

East Industrial  (I-POC) Light Manufacturing 

West Industrial  (I-POC) Warehouse/Distribution 

 
Per the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser, the surrounding current uses are warehouse/distribution and 
light manufacturing. In addition, all of the surrounding properties contain a future land use designation of 
Industrial and a zoning designation of I-POC. The fabrication services use type is in harmony with the existing uses 
in the immediate area. Meets Criterion. 
 
3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater harm than 
would result from use of the Property for some use permitted by right or some other conditional use permitted 
on the Property. 
 
Staff Response: The Conditional Use request at 1812 Aragon Avenue will not negatively affect the public benefit 
or cause greater harm than that of a use permitted by right in the I-POC zoning district. The area surrounding the 
subject site is industrial in nature, which is anticipated in the I-POC zoning district. The business is utilizing the 
existing building shell, with no proposed expansion. Meets Criterion. 
 
4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance of when such 
development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan. 
 
Staff Response: The Conditional Use request to allow a fabrication services on this site will not result in a more 
intensive development in advance of the Future Land Use Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. As 
mentioned, the Industrial land use designation is intended for uses of this nature.  Additionally, the use is 
consistent with surrounding uses in this industrially designated area. Meets Criterion. 

 
Section 23.2-29(e): Specific standards for all conditional uses 
 

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements, which will result in a 
significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level lower than would 
result from a development permitted by right. 



PZB No. 19-00500004 

P a g e  | 4 
 

 
Staff Response:  At the medium intensity classification (2,500 to 7,500 square feet) uses are not permitted by 
right and require either a Conditional Use permit or Administrative Use permit. This use is consistent with 
allowable uses in the I-POC and will not generate higher trip generation rates than other uses that would be 
permitted in this zone.  Meets Criterion. 
 
2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic on local 
streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately located with respect to 
collector and arterial streets. 
 
Staff Response: As mentioned, this use does not significantly affect the volumes of traffic expected on the City’s 
roadway network. The through traffic on local streets will not be heavily increased as a result of the existing 
“fabrication services” use. Meets Criterion. 
 
3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, to a level compatible with 
that which would result from a development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Response: The Conditional Use for a “fabrication services” use on the site will not produce any significant air 
pollution emission greater than that of a use permitted by right within the I-POC. Meets Criterion. 
 
4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that neither extension 
nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier 
incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Response:  Being an anticipated use in the I-POC zoning district, this use on the subject site will not result in 
a higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from a development permitted by 
right. The use is an anticipated type of use in this district. Meets Criterion. 
 
5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, 
surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other 
alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than 
would result from development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Response: Due to there being no major alterations to the property, the Applicant is utilizing the existing 
infrastructure. No adverse impact to infrastructure or public utilities is anticipated to occur as a result of this 
request. Meets Criterion. 
 
6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection service beyond the 
capacity of those services.  
 
Staff Response:  As mentioned, being an anticipated use (that is currently existing) in the I-POC zoning district, 
this use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection services beyond capacity. Meets Criterion. 
 
7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate anticipated 
noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a development permitted by right. Any proposed 
use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth in section 15.24, Noise control. 
 



PZB No. 19-00500004 

P a g e  | 5 
 

Staff Response: Per Section 15-24.2, no person shall make, continue or cause to be made any unreasonable noise 
or disturbing noise. Unreasonable noise is defined as “any noise in or emanating from any property located 
within the corporate limits of the City of Lake Worth which equals or exceeds a measured sound level of sixty-five 
(65) dBA or dBC (whichever frequency is higher) between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. Sunday through 
Thursday, a measured sound level in excess of eighty-five (85) dBA or dBC (whichever frequency is higher) 
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m. Sunday through Thursday; and a measures sound level which 
equals or exceeds sixty-five (65) dBA or dBC between the hours of 12:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. Friday through 
Saturday and a measured sound level meeting or exceeding eighty-five (85) dBA or dBC (whichever frequency is 
higher) between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m. Friday through Saturday.” 
 
It is also noted that the fabrication activities will take place inside of an enclosed building. Meets Criterion.    
 
8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any adjacent property in 
excess of that allowed in Section 23.4-3, Exterior lighting. 
 
Staff Response:  The subject site is surrounded by industrial uses. Additionally, there are no site changes 
proposed to the use that would create undesirable lighting that would impact surrounding areas. Meets 
Criterion. 
 
Section 23.4-13.7(B)(1): Industrial/manufacturing facilities Design and Performance Standards. 

 

The project is in compliance with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and protection of public 
interest, as follows: 

 
(a) Maximum lot size not to exceed five (5) acres.  

Staff Response: The lot size is 0.495 acres, not in excess of the five acre maximum. 

 

(b) Height: Maximum height of any industrial/manufacturing structure excluding office not to exceed thirty-
five (35) feet including silos or building façades.  

Staff Response: The building is a single story structure and does not exceed 35 feet. 

 

(c) Silos: The number of silos shall not exceed four (4) within the site area and shall be effectively screened.  

Staff Response: The site does not contain silos. 

 

(d) Outdoor storage: Outdoor storage, commercial vehicle parking, display and sale of products shall be 
shielded from all public rights-of-way. See section 23.4-19 for additional outdoor storage regulations.  

Staff Response: The applicant will be adding vinyl slats to the existing chain link fence and gate to obscure the 
view of the area of the property with outdoor storage (included as a condition of approval). 

 

(e) All production and processing shall be restricted to an enclosed building.  

Staff Response: Fabrication services will occur inside of an enclosed building, as noted on the Floor Plan 
(attachment B). 

 



PZB No. 19-00500004 

P a g e  | 6 
 

(f) Buffering requirements shall apply as required by existing ordinances, but may be increased based on a 
site specific review basis.  

Staff Response: As previously noted, material will be added to the existing fence/gate to screen the outdoor 
storage area. 

 
Conclusion: 

The analysis has shown that the required findings can be made with respect to the Conditional Use Permit 
request.  The use as proposed is in harmony with the underlying zoning district and surrounding areas, subject to 
compliance with staff’s proposed conditions of approval. 

 
CONSEQUENT ACTION:  
 
The Planning & Zoning Board’s decision will be final for the Conditional Use Permit. The Applicant may appeal the 
Board’s decision to the City Commission.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff has reviewed the documentation and materials provided, applying the applicable guidelines and standards 
found in the City of Lake Worth Zoning Code. The proposed use generally meets the criteria of the 
Comprehensive Plan and LDRs. Staff recommends that the Board review the application and the Code criteria 
outlined below in order to determine if the request is in compliance. Final approval shall be at the discretion of 
the Board.  
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
 
I MOVE TO APPROVE/DISAPPROVE PZB PROJECT NUMBER 19-00500004: Request for a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow for a medium-intensity “fabrication services excluding retail display and sales” use at 1812 Aragon Avenue, 
with the conditions recommended by staff included in Attachment C. 
 
Attachments:  

A. Zoning Map  
B. Floor Plan 
C. Conditions of Approval    
D. Application Package 

 





PRODUCTION
AREA     

CUTTING
AREA

STORAGEEMPLOYEE
BATH

GUEST
BATH

OFFICEEXTERIOR
MATERIAL
STORAGE
AREA

PARKING

PARKING

PARKING

PARKING

PARKING

PARKING

EXIT

CHAIN LINK
GATE ENTRY

PARKING

2 BAY
DOORS

D
O
O
R

23” 60”
2
8
”

2
8
”

12.5”

37”

2
0
”

33”

9.6”

8
.3

7.6”

5

TRASH 

D
O
O
R

D
O
O
R

D
O
O
R BAY

DOOR



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR 
PZB CASE No. 19-00500004 

 

Date of Preparation:   July 31, 2019 
P&ZB Meeting Date:   August 7, 2019 
Applicant: Martin Arias    
Location: 1812 Aragon Avenue      

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
PZB CASE No. 19-00500004 

1. Per LDR Section 23.4-19, outdoor storage in industrial district shall be screened from all public rights-of-
way. Therefore, the existing fence and gates shall have screening material to screen the outdoor storage 
materials from Aragon Avenue.  

2. The applicant shall have one year from the Planning & Zoning Board approval date to obtain a City 
business license. If more than one year from the Planning & Zoning Board approval date has elapsed, 
the Conditional Use approval shall expire.   

3. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code and all 
other applicable Codes including but not limited to the Florida Building Code.   

4. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied. 

5. In the event of a legal challenge to this approval, the applicant shall be responsible for all costs to defend 
the action of the city in approving any and all permits related to this application. Should the applicant 
fail to enter into an agreement fund the costs of litigation, the city, at its discretion, may rescind this 
approval and revoke all permits issued. 

6. All proposed signage shall require review and approval of a building permit per Section 23.5-1 (of the 
Land Development Regulations). 

7. Per Section 15-24.2, no person shall make, continue or cause to be made any unreasonable noise or 
disturbing noise (defined in Section 15-24.2).  

 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division 

1900 2ND Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

561-586-1687 

 













Kadassa Inc 

1812 Aragon Avenue 

Suite A 

Lake Worth, Fl. 33411 

 

July 1, 2019 

 

 

Phone: (561) 588-1444 

Fax: (561) 588-2467 

 

Re: Kadassa Inc Justification Statement 

 

Application Request 

 

On behalf of Martin Arias this application requests approval of a conditional use permit. The 

nature of our business is to Fabricate Stone Countertops from Granite, Marble, and Quartz Slab 

Material 

 

Landscaping is existing on the site, no changes are proposed. 

 

Surrounding Property Information 

The Property on the north of our site is Warehouse & Parking to the east is I-95, to the west is 

Barnett Dr. and to the south is Aragon Ave. 

 

Harmonious and Efficient design 

The existing buildings surrounding this site are similar in size and type to those industrial 

building located throughout the IPOC district immediately north of our site. 

 

Preservation of Natural Conditions 

The site has approximately 2 existing buildings and no changes are anticipated. 

 

Screening and Buffering 

All existing landscaping will not change, we will be adding a screening material to the existing 

chain link fence and gate to obscure the view of our operations and outdoor storage usage. 

 

Emergency Access 

Emergency access will be provided via Aragon Ave and Barnett Drive. 

 

Access to Public Ways 

Access will be provided via Aragon Avenue and Barnett Drive. 

 

Pedestrian Circulation 

Existing sidewalks are provided on the site around the existing buildings. 



 

Design of ingress and Egress Drives 

Ingress and egress are already provided and are existing. 

 

Coordination of On-Site Circulation with Off-Site Circulation. 

On site circulation is existing no new circulation is provided. All traffic flow is existing and well 

established. 

 

Design of On- Site Public Right of Way 

No on-site public right of ways are proposed for this development. 

 

Off-Street Parking Loading and Vehicular Circulation Areas 

Off Street Parking vehicular circulation and loading areas are existing, no changes proposed. 

 

Refuse and Service Areas 

Refuse and Service areas are existing 

 

Protection and Property Values 

This site has been arranged to enhance property values. 

 

Transitional Development 

The proposed site is located in an area that transitions from industrial to mixed use. 

 

Consideration of Future Development 

Future uses are projected to be industrial in use and type. 

 

 

General Findings Relating to Harmony with LDRs and Protection of Public Interest-

Conditional Uses 

 

1.- The conditional uses indicated on the proposed site plan will be in harmony with the uses 

which are most likely to occur in the immediate are where located. The proposed conditional  

uses are industrial in nature and similar to other uses located in the IPOC district.  

2.- The proposed conditional uses are industrial in nature and will be in harmony with the 

existing industrial uses in the immediate area. 

3.- The proposed conditional uses will not result in more intensive development in advance of 

when such development I approved by the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive 

Plan as the area is already designated with and industrial future land base. 

4.-  The  future land use designation for the surrounding area is industrial; therefore the 

proposed conditional uses are compatible with future development. 

 

 

 

 



Specific finding for All Conditional Uses 

 

 

 

1. The proposed Conditional Use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will 

result in a significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any 

street to a level lower than would result from a development permitted by right. 

 

2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through 

traffic on local streets than would in a development permitted by right and is  

appropriately located with respect to collector and material streets. 

 

 

3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, or will 

appropriately mitigate anticipated emissions to a level compatible with that which would 

result from a development permitted by right. 

 

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation  to the thoroughfare system 

that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a 

manner resulting in  higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would 

result from development permitted by right. 

 

 

5. The proposed Conditional Use will be so located in relation  to water lines, sanitary 

sewers, storm sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither 

extension nor  enlargement nor any other alteration of such systems in a  manner 

resulting in  higher net public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 

 

6. The proposed Conditional Use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire 

protection service beyond the capacity of those services, except that the proposed 

facility may place a demand on municipal police or fire protection services which does 

not exceed that likely to result from a development permitted by right. 

 

 

7. The proposed Conditional Use will not generate significant, noise, or will appropriately 

mitigate anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a 

development permitted by right. 

. 

8. The proposed Conditional Use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any 

residential property. 

 

 

 

 



 

Additional Requirements: 

 

We understand and agree that: 

 

Prior to approving any Conditional Use Permit, the decision making authority shall ensure that 

the following requirements have been met: 

 

1.- Any and all outstanding code enforcements fees and fines related to the project site have 

been paid to the City. 

 

2.- Any previously imposed conditions of approval for the use at the site have been met, if 

applicable, unless request for amendment of conditions is part of the current Conditional Use 

Permit application. 

 

Where it is necessary to provide write notice to surrounding property owners, the planning 

Zoning & Preservation Department (PZHP) will provide a copy of the notice letter to the 

Applicant. 

 

It is the responsibility of the Applicant to mail the required notice letters to property owners 

within a 40-ft. radius of the subject property. Letters shall be mailed a minimum of 10 days in 

advance of the scheduled meeting date. 

 

The Applicant shall obtain, from the Palm Beach Country Property Appraiser’s Office, a radius 

map and a list of property owners within a 400 ft. radius of the subject property. 

 

A copy of the radius map and property owner list shall be provided to the City’s PZHP 

Department along with an original certificate of mailing, such as the U.S. Postal Service or other 

company that offers mailing services would provide. 

 

These documents are considered as part of an application and shall be provided to the PZHP 

Department prior to the public hearing date. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attached Materials 

Survey (abstracted within 2 years of the date of the aplication) 

Justification statement to address the conditional use criteria in section 23.2 

Site/Floor plan (layout of leased space, outside &inside) 













Item F.4

• PZB 19-00500004: Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow 
a medium intensity “fabrication services excluding retail display and 
sales” use at 1812 Aragon Avenue



Site Location



Background/Proposal

• Background
⁻ Martin Arias of Kadassa Inc. 

⁻ Owner: 1812 Aragon Ave LLC

⁻ Address: 1812 Aragon Avenue 

⁻ Zoning District: Industrial Park of Commerce (I-POC)

• Request to the Board
⁻ Conditional Use Permit to allow the use a fabrication service excluding retail 

display and sales 



Neighboring Properties

Property to the south Property to the west

Property to the eastProperty to the north

Neighboring units to the east 



Existing Conditions

Subject property at 1812 Aragon Avenue 



Analysis

• Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
• Policy 1.1.1.10 Industrial 

• Policy 1.1.2.12 Location Strategy for the Industrial Designation 

• Consistent with the general findings to harmony with the LDRs and 
protection of public interest (LDR Section 23.2-29(d))

• Consistent with the specific standards for all conditional uses (LDR 
Section 23.2-29(e))

• Consistent with industrial/manufacturing facilities design and 
performance standards (LDR Section 23.4-13(c)(7)(B)(1))



Analysis

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District
Current Use/            

Name of Development

North 
(adjacent)

Industrial (I)
Industrial Park of 

Commerce (I-POC)
Warehouse/distribution

South (across 
Aragon 

Avenue)
I I-POC Warehouse/distribution

East (adjacent) I I-POC Light Manufacturing

West 
(adjacent)

I I-POC
Warehouse/distribution



Staff Recommendation

• The proposed Conditional Use Permit generally meets the criteria of 
the Comprehensive Plan and LDRs. Staff recommends that the Board 
review the application and the Code criteria outlined in the staff 
report in order to determine if the request is in compliance. Final 
approval shall be at the discretion of the Board. 

















 
  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:   September 25, 2019 
 
TO:   Members of the Planning and Zoning Board 
 
FROM:   Alexis Rosenberg, Neighborhood Planner 
 
THRU:  Mark Stivers, AICP, Deputy Director for Community Sustainability  
 
MEETING:  October 2, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: PZB Project Number 19-00500004: Request by Martin Arias of Kadassa Inc. for consideration of a 
Conditional Use Permit for a medium-intensity “fabrication services excluding retail display and sales” use at 
1812 Aragon Avenue, Unit A. The project is located within the Industrial Park of Commerce (I-POC) zoning district. 
The subject property’s PCN is 38-43-44-21-04-005-0170. 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SYNOPSIS: 
 

Applicant Martin Arias of Kadassa Inc. 

Owner 1812 Aragon Ave LLC (Consent Received)  

General Location Northeast of the Aragon Avenue and Barnett Drive intersection 

Existing PCN Numbers 38-43-44-21-04-005-0170 

Existing Land Use Warehouse/Distribution 

Zoning Industrial Park of Commerce (I-POC) 

Future Land Use 
Designation 

Industrial 

 

HISTORY 

This item was originally heard at the August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning Board. At the meeting, the Board 

motioned to continue the item to the next available meeting date.  

Per the City’s records and per Palm Beach Property Appraiser’s records, the original buildings were constructed in 

1978. Building A, the south structure, was a 5,940 square foot structure, and Building B, the north structure, was 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division 

1900 2ND Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

561-586-1687 



PZB No. 19-00500004 

P a g e  | 2 
 

a 3,520 square foot structure. In 1981, a building permit was approved to construct a 2,112 square foot structure 

that connected Building A and Building B. Furthermore, in 2010, there was an approved building permit to 

remodel Unit A, a 4,300 square foot space, into a wholesale bakery. The bakery had a City business license from 

2014 to 2017. While there is no active business license at this time for 1812 Aragon Avenue, Unit A, the proposed 

business, Kadassa Inc., has been operating at this location since 2017.  

Based on the questions posed by the Planning and Zoning Board on the original August 7, 2019 public hearing, 

the following information has been collected:  

 As it stands, the draft Ordinance proposing changes to the City’s Use Table proposes a medium-intensity 

“fabrication services excluding retail display and sales” use permitted by right in the I-POC zoning district.  

 In speaking with Public Services, the waste collection bin on the site is not classified as a dumpster, but is 

classified as a permanent roll-off container, which is defined differently from a dumpster in Section 12-1. 

On June 28, 2019 Karen Stokes, Community Code Officer complied the portion of the code case regarding 

the South Florida Waste Management roll-off container because, per Jason Yaeger of Public Services, the 

owner was granted approval to have the South Florida Waste Management roll-off container at the 

property. It has also been confirmed that the City has a franchisee with South Florida Waste 

Management for the allowance to transport the waste through the City, which is a requirement per 

Section 12-3.  

 The City’s Code for roll-off containers (Section 12-2) does not reference required screening for roll-off 

containers. 

 Per LDR Section 23.4-4(f), fences shall be set back to the minimum building setback line on the front of 

the lot. The building is set back 10 feet from the front property line and the existing fence and gate is 

setback 14 feet from the property line.  

 Based on the total building size of 11,824 square feet, the entire building is required to provide 12 

parking spaces under the industrial or manufacturing category. The property has a total of about 16 

parking spaces. For Bay A specifically, which is a 4,300 square foot space, five parking spaces are 

required. Based on a site visit and the applicant’s floorplan, there are seven parking spaces provided for 

Bay A (this does not include the driveways).   

 The current active code violation(Case #19-2384), per Karen Stokes’ notes, resulted from a complaint. In 

speaking with Karen Stokes on September 18, 2019, all items, except for the business license, on the 

active code violation have been resolved.  

 The applicant stated that they have purchased new wet saws and wet curtains to mitigate dust pollution. 

The wet curtains are in Attachment I.  

 The applicant has installed the vinyl slats within the existing chain-link fence in order to visually screen 

the outdoor storage from the public right of way. Pictures of the screening is in Attachment J.  

 The Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) was contacted to verify if there are any 

additional regulations for a business that is conducting stone/granite/quartz fabrication. While they have 

not provided a response, staff is including a condition that requires the applicant to obtain any required 

state licensing prior to obtaining a City business license.   

 The Florida Department of Health office in Palm Beach County was contacted to verify if there are any 

additional regulations for a business that is conducting stone/granite/quartz fabrication. It was stated 

that a Florida Department of Health permit may be required if the facility will be served by a septic 

system or private drinking water well, or if installation of a new well is needed to supply the wet saw. 

Based on the proposal, the property is served by City of Lake Worth Beach water and sewer service; 



PZB No. 19-00500004 

P a g e  | 3 
 

therefore, this condition is not applicable. However, per the Florida Department of Health, all businesses 

shall comply with the General Pollutant Emission Limiting Standards (Section 62-296.320 F.A.C). This 

provision has been added as a condition of approval.  

 An inspection done on the premises on September 26, 2019 by Judy Love of the Water Utilities Division 

confirmed that the subject property is compliant with Section 18-84, Discharge Prohibited To Stormwater 

System.  

Additional conditions of approval prepared by staff include:   

1. The business shall have 60 days from the date of Board approval to obtain a City of Lake Worth Beach 

Business License. Per LDR Section 23.2-29(k), a conditional use permit granted by the Planning and Zoning 

Board shall be void after one year from the date of the approval unless a building permit has been issued 

for the construction of all facilities provided in the site plan associated with the conditional use or 

otherwise needed to house the use, and construction is diligently pursued. However, based on the 

meeting minutes from the August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning Board meeting, it was discussed to place 

the 60 day condition on this particular business because they had been operating without a business 

license since 2017.  

2. Per LDR Section 23.2-29(g)(1), prior to obtaining a City business license, all outstanding code enforcement 

fees and fines related to the project site shall have been paid to the City.  

3. Per LDR Section 23.4-19, all outdoor storage shall be completely screened from all public rights-of-way 

and any adjacent property that is zoned for residential or mixed use. Therefore, screening shall be 

maintained to ensure that the outdoor storage is not visible from Aragon Avenue.  

4. Per LDR Section 23.4-10(b)(3), unless a Unity of Title is recorded with another parcel, all parking spaces 

shall be located on-site, at 1812 Aragon Avenue.  

5. Per LDR Section 23.4-13(c)(7)(B)(e), all fabrication, including cutting and polishing of the materials, shall 

take place within the building.  

6. The roll-off container shall remain within the property lines of 1812 Aragon Avenue. While Code Section 

12-2(b)(4) states that permanent roll-off containers can be located in the right-of-way, it was discussed at 

the August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning meeting to keep the container on site. 

7. The roll-off container shall have a continuous landscape screen so that it is not visible from Aragon 

Avenue. While Section 12-2 does not cite buffer criteria for roll-off containers, screening was discussed at 

the August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning Board meeting, and therefore has been recommended as a 

condition.  

8. The applicant shall continuously ensure compliance with Chapter Two, Article Seven, Division Two, 

Prohibited Discharge Standards, of the City’s Code.  

9. Per the Florida Department of Health, all businesses shall comply with the General Pollutant Emission 

Limiting Standards (Section 62-296.320 F.A.C).  

10. The wet curtains that have been installed to mitigate dust pollution shall be maintained for the duration 

of a fabrication services use, and replaced when necessary.  

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 

The subject property is a large size lot (21,580 square feet), located northeast of the corner of Aragon Avenue 

and Barnett Drive. The existing site is occupied by Kadassa Inc, which provides fabricated stone countertops from 

granite, marble and quartz materials. The applicant was notified of the need for a conditional use to operate at 

this location upon submitting a business license application.  



PZB No. 19-00500004 

P a g e  | 4 
 

ANALYSIS:  
 
Public Support/Opposition 
 

Staff has not received any letters of support or opposition. 

 
Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan 
 
The proposed manufacturing facility is compatible with the following portions of the City of Lake Worth’s 
Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan: 
 
Policy 1.1.1.10: Industrial  
 
The Industrial land use category is intended to provide for the establishment and enlargement of office, 
manufacturing and light to moderate industrial uses that would be incompatible in other areas of the city due to 
increased traffic generation. The implementing zoning district is I-POC. 
 
Policy 1.1.2.12: Locational Strategy for the Industrial Designation   
 
The Industrial land use designation is intended for mapping the area located west of I-95, known as the Lake 
Worth Park of Commerce (LWPOC). This location offers parcels of vacant and under-utilized land that provide a 
logical setting for development of office, manufacturing and light to moderate industrial uses that have the 
potential for increased traffic generation. This location also enjoys direct access to I-95 via the 10th Avenue North 
highway interchange. 
 
Pillar IV.A of the City’s Strategic Plan 
 
Achieve economic and financial sustainability through a versatile and stable tax base.  
 
Pillar IV.D of the City’s Strategic Plan  
 
Influence the supply and expansion of jobs.  
 
Section 23.2-29(d): General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public interest 

 

The project is in compliance with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and protection of public 
interest, as follows: 

 

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with the uses 
which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the immediate area where 
located.  
 
Staff Response: The site contains a zoning designation of I-POC, as due the surrounding parcels. This use is 
consistent with the types of industrial uses anticipated to occur within the I-POC district. Therefore, the proposed 
“fabrication services excluding retail display and sales” use is a denser style of development that will be 
compatible and harmonious with the existing and anticipated surrounding uses. Meets Criterion. 



PZB No. 19-00500004 

P a g e  | 5 
 

 
2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with existing uses 
in the immediate area where located. 
 
Staff Response: The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District Current Use 

North Industrial  Industrial Park of Commerce     
(I-POC) 

Warehouse/Distribution 

South Industrial  (I-POC) Warehouse/Distribution 

East Industrial  (I-POC) Light Manufacturing 

West Industrial  (I-POC) Warehouse/Distribution 

 
Per the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser, the surrounding current uses are warehouse/distribution and 
light manufacturing. In addition, all of the surrounding properties contain a future land use designation of 
Industrial and a zoning designation of I-POC. The fabrication services use type is in harmony with the existing uses 
in the immediate area. Meets Criterion. 
 
3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater harm than 
would result from use of the Property for some use permitted by right or some other conditional use permitted 
on the Property. 
 
Staff Response: The Conditional Use request at 1812 Aragon Avenue will not negatively affect the public benefit 
or cause greater harm than that of a use permitted by right in the I-POC zoning district. The area surrounding the 
subject site is industrial in nature, which is anticipated in the I-POC zoning district. The business is utilizing the 
existing building shell, with no proposed expansion. In addition, the applicant has installed wet curtains over the 
overhead doors and purchased new wet saws in order to limit dust pollution. Meets Criterion. 
 
4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance of when such 
development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan. 
 
Staff Response: The Conditional Use request to allow a fabrication service on this site will not result in a more 
intensive development in advance of the Future Land Use Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. As 
mentioned, the Industrial land use designation is intended for uses of this nature, and per the City’s Use Table in 
LDR Section 23.3-6, it is an anticipated use in the I-POC zoning district. Additionally, the use is consistent with 
surrounding uses in this industrially designated area. Meets Criterion. 

 
Section 23.2-29(e): Specific standards for all conditional uses 
 

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements, which will result in a 
significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level lower than would 
result from a development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Response:  At the medium intensity classification (2,500 to 7,500 square feet) uses are not permitted by 
right and require either a Conditional Use permit or Administrative Use permit. This use is consistent with 



PZB No. 19-00500004 

P a g e  | 6 
 

allowable uses in the I-POC and will not generate higher trip generation rates than other uses that would be 
permitted in this zone.  Meets Criterion. 
 
2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic on local 
streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately located with respect to 
collector and arterial streets. 
 
Staff Response: As mentioned, this use does not significantly affect the volumes of traffic expected on the City’s 
roadway network. The through traffic on local streets will not be heavily increased as a result of the existing 
“fabrication services” use. Meets Criterion. 
 
3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, to a level compatible with 
that which would result from a development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Response: Per the City’s Use Table in LDR Section 23.3-6, a low intensity, which is a building size less than 
2,500 square feet, fabrication service use is permitted by right in the I-POC zoning district. Therefore, with a 
slightly larger building, the nature of the business remains the same as that of a smaller building. The applicant 
has taken measures to further reduce dust pollution such as installing wet curtains over the overhang doors and 
purchasing new wet saws which reduce the level of dust production. This use at a medium intensity is subject to 
the same State regulations as that of a fabrication service at a low intensity level. Thus, the Conditional Use for a  
“fabrication service” use on the site will not produce any significant air pollution emission greater than that of a 
use permitted by right within the I-POC. Meets Criterion. 
 
4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that neither extension 
nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier 
incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Response:  Being an anticipated use in the I-POC zoning district, this use on the subject site will not result in 
a higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from a development permitted by 
right. The use is an anticipated type of use in this district. Meets Criterion. 
 
5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, 
surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other 
alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than 
would result from development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Response: Due to there being no major alterations to the property, the Applicant is utilizing the existing 
infrastructure. No adverse impact to infrastructure or public utilities is anticipated to occur as a result of this 
request. Meets Criterion. 
 
6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection service beyond the 
capacity of those services.  
 
Staff Response:  As mentioned, being an anticipated use (that is currently existing) in the I-POC zoning district, 
this use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection services beyond capacity. Meets Criterion. 
 



PZB No. 19-00500004 

P a g e  | 7 
 

7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate anticipated 
noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a development permitted by right. Any proposed 
use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth in section 15.24, Noise control. 
 
Staff Response: Per Section 15-24.2, no person shall make, continue or cause to be made any unreasonable noise 
or disturbing noise. Unreasonable noise is defined as “any noise in or emanating from any property located 
within the corporate limits of the City of Lake Worth which equals or exceeds a measured sound level of sixty-five 
(65) dBA or dBC (whichever frequency is higher) between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. Sunday through 
Thursday, a measured sound level in excess of eighty-five (85) dBA or dBC (whichever frequency is higher) 
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m. Sunday through Thursday; and a measures sound level which 
equals or exceeds sixty-five (65) dBA or dBC between the hours of 12:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. Friday through 
Saturday and a measured sound level meeting or exceeding eighty-five (85) dBA or dBC (whichever frequency is 
higher) between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m. Friday through Saturday.” 
 
It is also noted that the fabrication activities will take place inside of the building, enclosed with wet curtains over 
the overhead doors when performing the fabrication. Meets Criterion.    
 
8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any adjacent property in 
excess of that allowed in Section 23.4-3, Exterior lighting. 
 
Staff Response:  The subject site is surrounded by industrial uses. Additionally, there are no site changes 
proposed to the use that would create undesirable lighting that would impact surrounding areas. Meets 
Criterion. 
 
Section 23.4-13.7(B)(1): Industrial/manufacturing facilities Design and Performance Standards. 

 

The project is in compliance with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and protection of public 
interest, as follows: 

 
(a) Maximum lot size not to exceed five (5) acres.  

Staff Response: The lot size is 0.495 acres, not in excess of the five acre maximum. 

 

(b) Height: Maximum height of any industrial/manufacturing structure excluding office not to exceed thirty-
five (35) feet including silos or building façades.  

Staff Response: The building is a single story structure and does not exceed 35 feet. 

 

(c) Silos: The number of silos shall not exceed four (4) within the site area and shall be effectively screened.  

Staff Response: The site does not contain silos. 

 

(d) Outdoor storage: Outdoor storage, commercial vehicle parking, display and sale of products shall be 
shielded from all public rights-of-way. See section 23.4-19 for additional outdoor storage regulations.  

Staff Response: The applicant has added vinyl slats to the existing chain link fence and rolling gate to obscure 
the view of the area of the property with outdoor storage (included as a condition of approval). 

 

(e) All production and processing shall be restricted to an enclosed building.  



PZB No. 19-00500004 

P a g e  | 8 
 

Staff Response: Fabrication services will occur inside of the building, as noted on the Floor Plan (attachment 
B). The overhead doors, when open, will be covered with wet curtains in order to limit dust pollution.  

 

(f) Buffering requirements shall apply as required by existing ordinances, but may be increased based on a 
site specific review basis.  

Staff Response: As previously noted, material has been added to the existing fence and gate to screen the 
outdoor storage area. 

 
Conclusion: 

The analysis has shown that the required findings can be made with respect to the Conditional Use Permit 
request.  The use as proposed is in harmony with the underlying zoning district and surrounding areas, subject to 
compliance with staff’s proposed conditions of approval. 

 
CONSEQUENT ACTION:  
 
Approval of the Conditional Use Permit application; approval with conditions; continue the hearing to a date 
certain to request additional information; or deny the Conditional Use Permit application. The Planning & Zoning 
Board’s decision will be final for the Conditional Use Permit. The Applicant may appeal the Board’s decision to the 
City Commission.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff has reviewed the documentation and materials provided, applying the applicable guidelines and standards 
found in the City of Lake Worth Zoning Code. The proposed use generally meets the criteria of the 
Comprehensive Plan and LDRs. Staff recommends that the Board review the application and the Code criteria 
outlined below in order to determine if the request is in compliance. Final approval shall be at the discretion of 
the Board.  
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
 
I MOVE TO APPROVE/DISAPPROVE PZB PROJECT NUMBER 19-00500004: Request for a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow for a medium-intensity “fabrication services excluding retail display and sales” use at 1812 Aragon Avenue, 
with the conditions recommended by staff included in Attachment C. 
 
Attachments:  

A. Zoning Map  
B. Floor Plan/Site Plan 
C. Conditions of Approval    
D. Application Package 
E. Permit for Original Construction  
F. Permit for Addition  
G. Permit for Renovation  
H. Florida Department of Health Environmental Regulations  
I. Wet Curtains 
J. Vinyl Screening  

 

 





SToRAGE

RooM

850so.Fr
OFFICE
AREA

(Nc. G,BAIH)

CUTTING

AREA SLAB SToRAGE

560oso. FT

WAREHoUSE

SPAcE

FABRIcATtoN
&

PoLISHING

AREA

PROPOSED
OUTDOOR
STORAGE

AREA

ARAGON AVENUE

I
I
E
o
(t

]D

o(J
o

s6
O*6@

....6S

leSE
F; sUEot.uru*

co
P(o
(J
oJ
c,
..t:
ut
-oo

\oCJ !T'>m
Lt< rl
C--b<tr!9 cro
o 'i.= !€<,i b9: =@c)Hlz

oJ

Description

Existing

Floorplan

Single Story
Comm. Warehouse

Scale: 1/16" = 1L0"

1

08-12-19

SHEET

A1
Drawn &. uesrgneo

bv lawn Bono

Rev

Date



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR 
PZB CASE No. 19-00500004 

 

Date of Preparation:   September 25, 2019 
P&ZB Meeting Date:   October 2, 2019 
Applicant: Martin Arias    
Location: 1812 Aragon Avenue      

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
PZB CASE No. 19-00500004 

 

1. The business shall have 60 days from the date of the Board approval to obtain a City of Lake Worth Beach 
Business License. Per LDR Section 23.2-29(k), a conditional use permit granted by the Planning and Zoning 
Board shall be void after one year from the date of the approval unless a building permit has been issued 
for the construction of all facilities provided in the site plan associated with the conditional use or 
otherwise needed to house the use, and construction is diligently pursued. However, based on the 
meeting minutes from the August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning Board meeting, it was discussed to place 
the 60 day condition on this particular business because they had been operating without a business 
license since 2017.  

2. Per LDR Section 23.2-29(g)(1), prior to obtaining a City business license, all outstanding code enforcement 
fees and fines related to the project site shall have been paid to the City.  

3. Per LDR Section 23.4-19, all outdoor storage shall be completely screened from all public rights-of-way 
and any adjacent property that is zoned for residential or mixed use. Therefore, screening shall be 
maintained to ensure that the outdoor storage is not visible from Aragon Avenue.  

4. Per LDR Section 23.4-10(b)(3), unless a Unity of Title is recorded with another parcel, all parking spaces 
shall be located on-site, at 1812 Aragon Avenue.  

5. Per LDR Section 23.4-13(c)(7)(B)(e), all fabrication, including cutting and polishing of the materials, shall 
take place within the building.  

6. The roll-off container shall remain within the property lines of 1812 Aragon Avenue. While Code Section 
12-2(b)(4) states that permanent roll-off containers can be located in the right-of-way, it was discussed at 
the August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning meeting to keep the container on site.  

7. The roll-off container shall have a continuous landscape screen so that it is not visible from Aragon 
Avenue. While Section 12-2 does not cite buffer criteria for roll-off containers, screening was discussed at 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division 

1900 2ND Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

561-586-1687 

 



PZB No. 19-00500004 
P a g e  | 2 

 
the August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning Board meeting, and therefore has been recommended as a 
condition.  

8. The applicant shall continuously ensure compliance with Chapter Two, Article Seven, Division Two, 
Prohibited Discharge Standards, of the City’s Code. 

9. Per the Florida Department of Health, all businesses shall comply with the General Pollutant Emission 
Limiting Standards (Section 62-296.320 F.A.C.).  

10. The wet curtains that have been installed to mitigate dust pollution shall be maintained for the duration 
of the fabrication services use, and replaced when necessary.  

11. Per LDR Section 23.2-29(j), conditions and requirements stated as part of the approval of a conditional 
use shall be a continuing obligation of the property owner unless and until the conditional use shall expire.  

12. In the event of a legal challenge to this approval, the applicant shall be responsible for all costs to defend 
the action of the city in approving any and all permits related to this application. Should the applicant fail 
to enter into an agreement fund the costs of litigation, the city, at its discretion, may rescind this approval 
and revoke all permits issued. 

13. Per LDR Section 23.5-1(b), all proposed signage shall require review and approval of a building permit.  
14. Per LDR Section 15-24.2, no person shall make, continue or cause to be made any unreasonable noise or 

disturbing noise. [Section 15-24.2]  

 













Kadassa Inc 

1812 Aragon Avenue 

Suite A 

Lake Worth, Fl. 33411 

 

July 1, 2019 

 

 

Phone: (561) 588-1444 

Fax: (561) 588-2467 

 

Re: Kadassa Inc Justification Statement 

 

Application Request 

 

On behalf of Martin Arias this application requests approval of a conditional use permit. The 

nature of our business is to Fabricate Stone Countertops from Granite, Marble, and Quartz Slab 

Material 

 

Landscaping is existing on the site, no changes are proposed. 

 

Surrounding Property Information 

The Property on the north of our site is Warehouse & Parking to the east is I-95, to the west is 

Barnett Dr. and to the south is Aragon Ave. 

 

Harmonious and Efficient design 

The existing buildings surrounding this site are similar in size and type to those industrial 

building located throughout the IPOC district immediately north of our site. 

 

Preservation of Natural Conditions 

The site has approximately 2 existing buildings and no changes are anticipated. 

 

Screening and Buffering 

All existing landscaping will not change, we will be adding a screening material to the existing 

chain link fence and gate to obscure the view of our operations and outdoor storage usage. 

 

Emergency Access 

Emergency access will be provided via Aragon Ave and Barnett Drive. 

 

Access to Public Ways 

Access will be provided via Aragon Avenue and Barnett Drive. 

 

Pedestrian Circulation 

Existing sidewalks are provided on the site around the existing buildings. 



 

Design of ingress and Egress Drives 

Ingress and egress are already provided and are existing. 

 

Coordination of On-Site Circulation with Off-Site Circulation. 

On site circulation is existing no new circulation is provided. All traffic flow is existing and well 

established. 

 

Design of On- Site Public Right of Way 

No on-site public right of ways are proposed for this development. 

 

Off-Street Parking Loading and Vehicular Circulation Areas 

Off Street Parking vehicular circulation and loading areas are existing, no changes proposed. 

 

Refuse and Service Areas 

Refuse and Service areas are existing 

 

Protection and Property Values 

This site has been arranged to enhance property values. 

 

Transitional Development 

The proposed site is located in an area that transitions from industrial to mixed use. 

 

Consideration of Future Development 

Future uses are projected to be industrial in use and type. 

 

 

General Findings Relating to Harmony with LDRs and Protection of Public Interest-

Conditional Uses 

 

1.- The conditional uses indicated on the proposed site plan will be in harmony with the uses 

which are most likely to occur in the immediate are where located. The proposed conditional  

uses are industrial in nature and similar to other uses located in the IPOC district.  

2.- The proposed conditional uses are industrial in nature and will be in harmony with the 

existing industrial uses in the immediate area. 

3.- The proposed conditional uses will not result in more intensive development in advance of 

when such development I approved by the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive 

Plan as the area is already designated with and industrial future land base. 

4.-  The  future land use designation for the surrounding area is industrial; therefore the 

proposed conditional uses are compatible with future development. 

 

 

 

 



Specific finding for All Conditional Uses 

 

 

 

1. The proposed Conditional Use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will 

result in a significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any 

street to a level lower than would result from a development permitted by right. 

 

2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through 

traffic on local streets than would in a development permitted by right and is  

appropriately located with respect to collector and material streets. 

 

 

3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, or will 

appropriately mitigate anticipated emissions to a level compatible with that which would 

result from a development permitted by right. 

 

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation  to the thoroughfare system 

that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a 

manner resulting in  higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would 

result from development permitted by right. 

 

 

5. The proposed Conditional Use will be so located in relation  to water lines, sanitary 

sewers, storm sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither 

extension nor  enlargement nor any other alteration of such systems in a  manner 

resulting in  higher net public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 

 

6. The proposed Conditional Use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire 

protection service beyond the capacity of those services, except that the proposed 

facility may place a demand on municipal police or fire protection services which does 

not exceed that likely to result from a development permitted by right. 

 

 

7. The proposed Conditional Use will not generate significant, noise, or will appropriately 

mitigate anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a 

development permitted by right. 

. 

8. The proposed Conditional Use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any 

residential property. 

 

 

 

 



 

Additional Requirements: 

 

We understand and agree that: 

 

Prior to approving any Conditional Use Permit, the decision making authority shall ensure that 

the following requirements have been met: 

 

1.- Any and all outstanding code enforcements fees and fines related to the project site have 

been paid to the City. 

 

2.- Any previously imposed conditions of approval for the use at the site have been met, if 

applicable, unless request for amendment of conditions is part of the current Conditional Use 

Permit application. 

 

Where it is necessary to provide write notice to surrounding property owners, the planning 

Zoning & Preservation Department (PZHP) will provide a copy of the notice letter to the 

Applicant. 

 

It is the responsibility of the Applicant to mail the required notice letters to property owners 

within a 40-ft. radius of the subject property. Letters shall be mailed a minimum of 10 days in 

advance of the scheduled meeting date. 

 

The Applicant shall obtain, from the Palm Beach Country Property Appraiser’s Office, a radius 

map and a list of property owners within a 400 ft. radius of the subject property. 

 

A copy of the radius map and property owner list shall be provided to the City’s PZHP 

Department along with an original certificate of mailing, such as the U.S. Postal Service or other 

company that offers mailing services would provide. 

 

These documents are considered as part of an application and shall be provided to the PZHP 

Department prior to the public hearing date. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attached Materials 

Survey (abstracted within 2 years of the date of the aplication) 

Justification statement to address the conditional use criteria in section 23.2 

Site/Floor plan (layout of leased space, outside &inside) 











e/ret -6 br, :L 'ilc t

F /^ \ z1 t 
^ 
c ..b i.\ - ?-.\1::a . ": r.

d4i

;li

ARCHITECI
RALPH S. MOE. J

@

-'*€\*

n-o o!_i-1_4.14.:!_9.__tLA-d

I

i
,i

€1( OrLr lsq: -lj
&=r*- *,* ' '- +!*5

:b

'f

iLLl __G_
!3-i!-Lil:re.!

A-:,:\ S EA"C!ltr'! 6A3aet4,
a P;.!i _!Elat' l! '.:{OAbEO l\

ffi ru- e5a, tx :J:1 , e-.f .t:.a:a1 ?.- aL-\
6i:],::1 Jtr,l- | aF 1.\,
(r! rrrr i:_:qtr,rr.-a :n.jrr::€7 i tf,!.!F

I r.,.. * i

,l
-l_ rir i i

a :a- i ':'tt ' )it

! I Siri& i! ir i {!;l: htn@ To fle s*r s d\ x]lrrud
9! .!', !, f'

:! r!-],' :'

cPi/_3 iAc ii5E:

"^.._/,/t_fJ_ 
-",,.-'.", 

-,, 
1,1 "U:/lr;'?//h'

ssu'r, (' .,iftnd' s3{tNot

feQ.!.l . -.E-4ri
ra6--!i

L!,: ri ,r

. : 
' 

n, :

-":rjEti- r,:r! n,::: )ii. lrr- ig.. r^ 6./qE? i! P{!gl
nt i,-ia :}:r {,.1,r4!:

1.. rr ..1 f.i {r i i r, rlq
r'. a, x::l -'p ;t, )-?-. A " t'"L.-

ssoLffi, ?cNrN6 S !EG|R6 FSSdfeNE

-+'
:l

a \1\"'t,r' a:- \a t": at r,'t
!:!r " !,r ' t.: r 

"!

&
l

I

:

-:r,. 1! ta .=!-..,.i:' z:r ;.-t /,'42- ??_a:4:lea.-.6'a
.lar

.s

4 ' ;-.5.---.. r:*: (r'> rr5' t 17

\^:.. a t >
\v.!:- C.+ { lC'

. \r ,.,i'j a,ea.,
llljr.al.T. !x-__-_ i!!F
ii{:5
ltr ril-rJr *Jle:
I FSUhCr:ro\ SS'6reJ S\ iili-qs! 5:- ge;" r/i

vAloe sr :*a.
: !5ts$ETe Er SO: t69 . S!{*: : - a!i.'

a.t!iFff5 . efl!! 1. r:.:,'

-igr_.|Aa:: . i< -r.cf,.+') aa

!
:l

'RUN-OFF
WAIER II4UST

8E COfiITATNED

ON OWN
pROpERIY.-

(



t : r.{ +.r '.'
f,;,.t:.": .: -:.r,il . ";"i:tl.lii.}s

i'ii,.l';'1.:.. , .:r) *FPLY
1l

+:
'-t

r -.1\

.rirl

L

I

.:

;,.t.

i
li:

,a
I

i"f
I
i+,- ,

11

;

::- - .-, +

, ^ /:1s+

i
I tftffl &t1d!! allg ftrll

t I u"rtr;ltle
I l*k0$$HB

, t, i.!

I-
I

._t,
It)

,, .,'t,, t

f.:l'ri;. I

1,1

r,!,,.

;i

I
I,

rl: I r'rr:;;1,,,.",,1
i:.

"a':i

"3
.r ,Lir:*i:il

*.^,, ,... *$*J"
t&' cptu 4ardd
/,.tu.!se,E

l7 i?r$

,lea

KJE
R

IJ
l lc

RALPH 5
CH

iil.r-

| _li* ! ,r .;-,r,. *. *_- - : .
: r : r ,,r. r t ; , -i15

$

':-"" , 4i
3 ttrtebL P+tpa

S.4t D4t.ulto

6o-.1



f;ll i.i :l,i{\-'@rT,-'--: ::\i-:

/
.! 11 " t/\

*.-t- _.a'l | .q a
. t':;..# 'l.tg

-,o:; -'A
t:*\ri?'-]T51

- 
,.dLLf !F!

@!l?€ll ltiracg

';@-i;&l iNri
Neu ..ltr)91{ 

*

ri. 
j

;l
ii hJt

H
ii;
l:r

.-- '- _$sd

U

'F)'l!ffi
'r':r,* i)isr

,uJ Lr) ;_" j -, :1@t--
-tri,.s 5- :i, iaa.

,,{
sl ,/":l'i.l'l

,. ,,i$f

1 ,'.j I "a1, '!

",2.."-*rl ii .{

Y SfrrClllag'
' .tF6

\
--/(-f

.{:f .., ' 1

frit56ffi!6ltIioE;-d

.A) rtt124 /trt4/ Wr />w/iy'* aq 1qt 5P,t7 tq/l >16 /

: oiltt .!4 /4/-)tto d7 rqtl ,tlq42v lqeM a7t E

ryti-Eaoz- a;;t :\ i;!;:" !'rj r !i\; t\1'rRr :
''ei-;; +€j6-.i--;-

.qh t. aa .e G e. --
:r.L,r. 'ir {ir3- r

'4i 
'

-1$

r^\
' ,l'l'noi*

. ,,n{i,'r,/'.
,4 ,rT

l1
,l
i':

|:

;

ll

it
I

ii

rl
.i

i

I

-1

o .J

--.-:-:tir- 
- - --i - -

:d:t a

.*

rtHtt ErJ9 "

- 
-grycrr?j

- lip naE,a.,q .

Al, ljltl -oig,
.te4€_,

a-w dEg r :alg r n1:l /i !f*

'w

&af{

ti

&ita
gsdo
E ts

ffi

rde

valL

.trr
.r!

ffi).

'Ntl
rffw

M

str u!1r
.'',2
.q:a

s

,.1)

:sr

r.i)

.4fl

!)

::' ldat

, :A1C.

tr* be

I
hl s

T
u

r3l
Y€lto1, itYl

Hd-lv
tHf

-_4

!.-1 ing rY iiiir-:J ':i "i ---

,L{ ,U u

a:.\



I
H

r€

MOE, J
T6C

RA,L
AR cHl

1 .-*e: .-t -!t:. --1: 6": I ,tg 
-r.- -Ld ,.r--.- 1a"'o' -1-'."-ll'' -r-J&'i -1

A-,B *A G" .P r{-
L^k:

I N D r! i -r'i I A i,._ e -"r- l
B u r r C F : F.' , !: tca 5i:Ln!:

"i

ill

1i
.1.Y

F5t 3lqrr:
APPROVED FOi CMNWPN

tgt*21 trt 4
+itl.P +\

| \Lr.' --l, , q$4+i' -*;i 
;;;;.-_l,,,", **"-*E-

119-i .t

I

I
I

ri
''i'i

't
I

,F,:-..::::l
i

,.r
i

!:_.-.

l:.::::-l4l r:-.,::--: ,i. d

6

'- - I

T -*'-

g 4 l t el

i:ri_!! i:. :: .i1 1:: : i.l $

*.1c,i
iJ. "-

l
l

i
1 '.;;tlj t* .

.i
irrll'

t

a{iili

" ""-l
' ],...j

-' i.

-.,1 L

-"--'l l

i
-..]i

.-L

E*-t.



xx

IE

OUCIM TEW $PACE

l:1 :, :, ,r

;.,-:l:: , -i:'l
:ri! :l : .1 -:.ti:.f ,

:'.-.i; :,r'

.:'.,'l sl., j-' {' .,. i
I r-Vli -

t rli'-,i, '" ttil

4
d

s

j
!
g

il
P:I
E

\a
CE
IT
iF
;e

rt

I

sfl
6F
rE
EH

6fr

8$

H-E
rE
EF

F8

*tEn

3R

AP
ats

PX

t;

L

ct
?s
F

E

a

s

b

fi
I
E

E
ds
Rd

eE

a

o

T----_-__T
tl
tl
l-l
I nq I

r gF !

!l
llL--------f

I
I

-_-____J

--_---T
I

I

-t
sF!

c)ot,m
7m'Tt
mn
m
z.
c)ma

aaaaS
fFHBdtnlDEll>>t-zv

$$EEE
88QEg
IflINEO:zzm QXnh5!28pi;Hm
>P6==
X4AND9846 :n :rtFtrP>oo

free
*FF
2==ifrm@22

t4
Itp

p

d

t-m
6)
mz.g

zoI
tTl

a
c,o
6

Iq
8
a

q

qq
a
6

!aio
I

I
I

5E

B'
*i
rU

cg

EB
E

{

[ifr[.l1]
IEgEgEH
4f*'5F
F36 t

IE
lil
t(nt>
til
llIT
IF
lz.

xfiil9$
!aiiE*

E{r:$
nE=6i
!x *_s;! H=
6e *i
6s $f;
l? 5z
EE €Hd! 3*
i" *a

E dg

t>

|,1

--r>
ls

l!3 I
il-

iiE

LUIS A. LOPEZ
CONSULTING ENGINEER

REMODELING PROJECT FOR:

COSIFALERO, lnc.
18I2"A" ARAGON AVENUE

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA. 5346I

€
3

E

t
$

B

rBi
:*
s

! I
ees
EEH
H4q

E

fr
F
E

t
FI

$-i.rBOYNTON BEACH, FL,

501.73H590
501&2{m3fts



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

 

Ron DeSantis 
Governor 

 

                               Scott A. Rivkees, MD 
                                                          State Surgeon General 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

 

  

Florida Department of Health, Palm Beach County 
Division of Environmental Public Health 
800 Clematis Street – 4th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 
PHONE: 561-837-5900  
FloridaHealth.gov /  palmbeach.floridahealth.gov 

 
 

 

Environmental Rules and Regulations 
 

FLORIDA STATUTES:  Title XXIX- Public Health 
Chapter 386 –Particular Conditions Affecting Public Health 
 
Part I – Sanitary Nuisances 
 
386.01 Sanitary nuisance - A sanitary nuisance is the commission of any act, by an individual, 
municipality, organization, or corporation, or the keeping, maintaining, propagation, existence, or 
permission of anything, by an individual, municipality, organization, or corporation, by which the 
health or life of an individual, or the health or lives of individuals, may be threatened or impaired, 
or by which or through which, directly or indirectly, disease may be caused.  
 
386.041 Nuisances injurious to health: 
 
(1) The following conditions existing, permitted, maintained, kept, or caused by any individual, 
municipal organization, or corporation, governmental or private, shall constitute prima facie 
evidence of maintaining a nuisance injurious to health:  
 
(a) Untreated or improperly treated human waste, garbage, offal, dead animals, or dangerous 

waste materials from manufacturing processes harmful to human or animal life and air 
pollutants, gases, and noisome odors which are harmful to human or animal life. 

 (b) Improperly built or maintained septic tanks, water closets, or privies. 

 (c) The keeping of diseased animals dangerous to human health. 

 (d) Unclean or filthy places where animals are slaughtered. 

 (e) The creation, maintenance, or causing of any condition capable of breeding flies, mosquitoes, or  

 other arthropods capable of transmitting diseases, directly or indirectly to humans. 

 (f) Any other condition determined to be a sanitary nuisance as defined in s. 386.01. 
 
Chapter 403 – Environmental Control 
Part I – Pollution Control 
403.161 Prohibitions, violation, penalty, intent: 
 
(1) It shall be a violation of this chapter, and it shall be prohibited for any person:  
 
(a) To cause pollution, except as otherwise provided in this chapter, so as to harm or injure 

human health or welfare, animal, plant, or aquatic life or property.  
 
(b) To fail to obtain any permit required by this chapter or by rule or regulation, or to violate or fail 

to comply with any rule, regulation, order, permit, or certification adopted or issued by the 
department pursuant to its lawful authority. 



 

 
FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 

 

CHAPTER 62-296 – STATIONARY SOURCES – EMISSION STANDARDS  

 
62-296.320 General Pollutant Emission Limiting Standards: 
 
(1) Volatile organic compounds emissions or organic solvent emissions. 
 
(a) No person shall store, pump, handle, process, load, unload or use in any process or installation, 
volatile organic compounds or organic solvents without applying known and existing vapor emission 
control devices or systems deemed necessary and ordered by the Department. 

 
(2) Objectionable Odor Prohibited - No person shall cause, suffer, allow or permit the discharge of air 
pollutants which cause or contribute to an objectionable odor. 
 
NOTE:  An objectionable odor is defined as any odor present in the outdoor atmosphere which by 
itself or in combination with other odors, is or may be harmful or injurious to human health or welfare, 
which unreasonably interferes with the comfortable use and enjoyment of life or property, or which 
creates a nuisance.  [F.A.C. 62-210.200(219)] 
 
62-296.320 General Pollutant Emission Limiting Standards: 
 

(4) General Particulate Emission Limiting Standards - The following emission limiting standards shall 
apply to emissions units of particulate matter not subject to a particulate emission limit or opacity limit 
set forth in or established elsewhere in this chapter. 
 
(c) Unconfined Emissions of Particulate Matter: 
 

1. No person shall cause, let, permit, suffer or allow the emissions of unconfined particulate matter 
from any activity, including vehicular movement; transportation of materials; construction, alteration, 
demolition or wrecking; or industrially related activities such as loading, unloading, storing or handling; 
without taking reasonable precautions to prevent such emissions. 
 

3. Reasonable precautions include the following: 
 

a. Paving and maintenance of roads, parking areas and yards 
b. Application of water or chemicals to control emissions from such activities as demolition of 
buildings, grading roads, construction, and land clearing 
c. Application of asphalt, water, oil, chemicals or other dust suppressants to unpaved roads, yards, 
open stock piles and similar activities 
d. Removal of particulate matter from roads and other paved areas under the control of the owner or 
operator of the facility to prevent re-entrainment, and from buildings or work areas to prevent 
particulate from becoming airborne 
e. Landscaping or planting of vegetation 
f.   Use of hoods, fans, filters, and similar equipment to contain, capture and/or vent particulate matter 
g. Confining abrasive blasting where possible 
h. Enclosure or covering of conveyor systems 

 
 



,

E
F

P
d"

)L









Item F.1

• Continuation of PZB 19-00500004: Consideration of a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow a medium intensity “fabrication services excluding 
retail display and sales” use at 1812 Aragon Avenue, Unit A



Site Location



Background/Proposal

• Background
⁻ Applicant: Martin Arias of Kadassa Inc. 

⁻ Owner: 1812 Aragon Ave LLC

⁻ Address: 1812 Aragon Avenue 

⁻ Zoning District: Industrial Park of Commerce (I-POC)

• Request to the Board
⁻ Conditional Use Permit to allow the use a fabrication service excluding retail 

display and sales 



History

• Item was originally heard  on August 7, 2019

• Original buildings wee constructed in 1978

• An addition to connect the two buildings was approved in 1981

• A building permit to remodel Unit A into a wholesale bakery was 
approved in 2010

• There is one active business license for Unit A for a contractor 
• The representative for this project confirmed that there is a contractor 

working in the +/-800 square foot office space within Unit A. The office space 
is shared and the contractor does not work for Kadassa. 



Site Plan/Floor Plan



Neighboring Properties

Property to the south Property to the west

Property to the eastProperty to the north

Neighboring units to the east 



Existing Conditions

Site visit on 9/16/19, 
showing wet curtains, 
and fence and gate 
screening 

Site visit on 9/26/19 by 
City Water, Sewer, and 
Storm Administrator. She 
stated that the business 
was compliant with Water 
and Sewer’s regulations



Existing Conditions

Drain across the street,  
to the south

Driveway across the 
street,  to the south

Drain along property 
line

Drain along property 
line

Subject property, Bay A



Existing Conditions

Street view, facing east  Street view, facing west



Analysis

• Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
 Policy 1.1.1.10 Industrial 
 Policy 1.1.2.12 Location Strategy for the Industrial Designation 

• Consistent with the City’s Strategic Plan 
 Pillar IV.A: Achieve economic and financial sustainability through a 

versatile and stable tax base 
 Pillar IV.D: Influence the supply and expansion of jobs 

• Consistent with the general findings to harmony with the LDRs and 
protection of public interest (LDR Section 23.2-29(d))

• Consistent with the specific standards for all conditional uses (LDR Section 
23.2-29(e))

• Consistent with industrial/manufacturing facilities design and 
performance standards (LDR Section 23.4-13(c)(7)(B)(1))



Analysis

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District
Current Use/            

Name of Development

North 
(adjacent)

Industrial (I)
Industrial Park of 

Commerce (I-POC)
Warehouse/distribution

South (across 
Aragon 

Avenue)
I I-POC Warehouse/distribution

East (adjacent) I I-POC Light Manufacturing

West 
(adjacent)

I I-POC
Warehouse/distribution



Staff Recommendation

• The proposed Conditional Use Permit generally meets the criteria of 
the Comprehensive Plan and LDRs. Staff recommends that the Board 
review the application and the Code criteria outlined in the staff 
report in order to determine if the request is in compliance. Final 
approval shall be at the discretion of the Board. 



































Legal Notice No. 36156

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the City of lake Worth Beach, Flocida, City Commiseion will hold a public hearing to hear an appeal of a decision of the Planning andZoning Board in the City Hall Commission Chambers, 7 North Dixie Hwy, at 6:00PM or as soon thereafter as possible, on Tuesday, February 4, 2020. The meeting orpublic bearing maybe continued by the Commission from time to time as required.The appeal being considered is as follows:

PZB Project# 19-00500004, a request by Jason Mankoff of Cildin Lubita on behalfof Daniel Hiatt and Frederick Schmidt, to appeal the Final Order rendered by thePlanning and Zoning Board on Octobor 2, 2019, and issued on Novembet 7, 2019,which approved a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the use of a medium intensity fabrication service sxduding retall display and sales at 1812 AragonAvenue, Unit A. The subject parcel is located in the Industrial Pork of Commerce(IPOC) Zoning District. The subject property’s PCN is 38-43-44-21-04-005-0170.

Because this is an appeal, the City Commission will not ho taking now testimony butwill consider the record from the Historic Resources Preservation Board meeting.Public comment may be allowed. If a nerson derides to anneal any decision mode

586-1659 no later tha”
Publish: The Lake Worth Herald
January 23, 2020

msotino or hoarirw. ha or she will need a record of the procoedinos. and that, forsuch puroose. ho or she may used to ensure that a verbatim recordof tha nrocaethrizs is made. which record includes the testimony and evidenueupwhich the anneal is to be based. IFS 6.O105). In accordance with ths frnvidcosof the American with lhilies Am (ADA). this document may beflediSt inan alternative format. Persons in Seed of special accommodation toünea inthis nmceedinz am entitled to the oroylsion of certain assistance. PI1Th5fi1-
. jive isi uavs neicee sue innK 0 Loja assissa]nprwsu.



I5I}I€55 OFFI(E GENERAL (BTR}

IACTTVE IH

'f 87f afiw
1/3A/2AL5

/3s/2015
138/2016

/3s/2016
i"828

SRICATTOH QF COUHTER TOPS GR.ANITE

33

'lg7l2s77 by afiOfi1tt

RTIN ARIAS

€ SPARRCIFJ DR #B

'VAL PALPI EEACH FL 33411

61i 588-1444

-

*

3, i,:,i r^ &1 , it- ilt l '"t* ot 1'il'',

90. B?8 Businesc numbar:

Business name:

Itlailing address:

Location addreEs:

Euslness phone:

EI"IER6E},ICY THOHE:

23700

KADAsSA IIK
148 sPARRtll'd DR #B

ROYAL PALI,I BEACH FL 3]41].

1.8I.2 ARAGtr.{ AVE A

(561) 5ss-144a
(561i 795-4732

Add'1 Chrg

35"68

35"60

"66

Fen

0CT I'IOV DEC lAf'l FEB HAR APR

t.5 15 15 16 16 16 16

RRRRRR.R

i"f',r*:'fi{} lip'i#;-iur $ ,nr tnaaii-.;.'

Charges suramary Lic/Transfr
Arnaunt changed : 95.7?

Amaunt paid : 95.72

Amount due: .09

UnpostedlUnapplied neceipts
t"letllltransfer unpost*d :

Heultransfer unappliEd :

Ren*ual unposted:
Renenal unappXied:

Renewal Sunmary

Honth;
Year:

ReneeJal stetus;

9,6

00
g0

BO



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
AGENDA DATE: February 4, 2020  DEPARTMENT: Commission 

 

TITLE: 

US-1 Multimodal Corridor Study 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
The Palm Beach Transportation Planning Agency (TPA) will be presenting on the US-1 
Multimodal Corridor Study that began back in 2017.   

 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On Dixie Highway throughout the Lake Worth corridor, there are multiple opportunity zones for 
lane repurposing/elimination.  Should the City wish to move forward and explore these 
possibilities, an FDOT approved traffic study would be necessary.  The TPA could contribute up 
to $50k for this study.  Following their presentation to the Lake Worth Community 
Redevelopment Agency on January 14th, the CRA is now also willing to contribute an additional 
$50k for this traffic study.  The City would be responsible for any additional funds needed OR 
possibly provide in-kind services in lieu of payment. 

 
MOTION: 
 
Move to approve/not approve proceeding with a traffic study illustrating the impacts of lane 
repurposing on current and future vehicle congestion with the understanding that the City’s 
contribution shall be in-kind services (to be agreed upon with the TPA) or an amount not to 
exceed $30k. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis N/A 
 


	Top
	A. North Grade Elementary School presentation by Nicole Patterson
	B. Proclamation declaring February 11-17, 2020 as 2-1-1 Awareness Week
	A. January 7 RM minutes
	010720 RM Minutes

	B. January 21 RM minutes
	012120 RM Minutes

	C. January 27 WS minutes
	012720 WS Minutes

	A. Construction Agreement with JW Cheatham for the District 3, Year 4 Neighborhood Road Program
	JW Cheatham staff report
	Work Order 7

	B. Task Order #12 with Baxter Woodman for the Construction Engineering and Inspection Services for the District 3, Year 4 Neighborhood Road Program
	Baxter Woodman staff report
	Task Order 12

	C. Agreement with Environmental Services, Inc. for Historic Resources Survey Update, Phase IV
	Environmental Services staff report
	Resolution 38-2019
	Agreement

	D. Resolution 04-2020 Fee Schedule Amendment
	Fee Schedule staff report
	Resolution 04-2020
	Exhibit A - amended fees & charges

	E. Quicklime purchase for Water Treatment Plant
	Quicklime staff report

	F. 2-inch watermain phases 1a and 2 amendment 3 loan agreement
	Watermain Replacement staff report
	Amendment 3
	Offer Letter
	Amortization Schedule

	A. Kadassa, Inc Appeal
	Kadassa Inc. Appeal staff report
	Attachment A - Notice of Appeal by Affected Party
	Attachment B - Basis for Appeal by Affected Party
	Attachment C - Conditional Use Application
	Attachment D - Applicant Justification Statement
	Attachment E - Full staff report and attachments for the August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning Meeting
	Attachment F - Staff Presentation from the August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning hearing
	Attachment G - August 7, 2019 Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes
	Attachment H - Full staff report and attachments from the October 2, 2019 Planning and Zoning Meeting
	Attachment I - Staff Presentation given at the October 2, 2019 Planning and Zoning Meeting
	Attachment J - October 2, 2019 Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes
	Attachment K - Final Development Order issued
	Attachment L - Proof of advertising of Appeal hearing
	Kadassa BL 16-46709 1812 Aragon

	A. US-1 Multimodal Corridor study
	US-1 Corridor staff report

	Bottom

